50TH CONGRESS, } HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, {REPORT
2d Session, ; : g a No. 3536.

ROBERT SMALLS vs. WILLIAM ELLIOTT.

DrceEMBER 7, 1888.—Referred to the House Calendar and ordered to be printed.

Mr. Crisp, from the Committee on Elections, submitted the following
REPORT:

The Committee on Illections have had under consideration the con-
tested-election case of Robert Smalls vs. William Elliott, from the
Seventh district of South Carolina, and report as follows :

Robert Smalls and William Llhott were opposing candidates for a
seat in the Fiftieth Congress fromn the Seventh district. of South Caro-
lina at the November election, A. D. 1886.

By the returns of said election Williamm Eliott received 6,493 votes
and Robert Smalls received 5,061 votes, showing a majority for the
former of 532 votes.

Within the time prescribed by law Robert Smalls caused to be served
upon William Elliott notice of his intention to contest said election.

Contestant in said notice specities as grounds of contest substan-
tially, that the board of county canvassers failed and refused to count
and include in the returns made by them to the State board the whole
number of legal votes cast at said election, and that thus he was de-
prived of 1,216 legal votes which were cast for him; that the persons
appointed managers at certain precinets neglected and refused to open
the polls, whereby he was deprived of 2,000 votes ; that irregularities
aﬂectmg the election at certain preuncts were dohlgnully and deliber-
ately committed by the partlmns of Elliott in order to have the returns
thrown out; that at certain precinets a much larger number of votes
were cast for him than were countedand returned ; that the supervi isors
of registration in certain counties refused to dns(,h.u'ge their duties in
the registration of voters; that the managers of election in the county
of Sumter illegally rejected ballots of voters who desired to vote for
him, and that the managers at certain precinets named made a frand-
ulent and illegal count of the ballots actually cast.

William Elliott answered this notice of contest, denying generally and
specifically the various allegations of the (/untc&t(mt and ¢harging that
the contestant and bis partisans inaugurated and pm(,tn(,cd bribery ;
that by the threats wnd violence of contestant and his partisans a Luge
number of colored peoplie who desired to vote for him were prevented
from doizg so; that at some of the precinets the managers were unable
to legaily and propm'ly conduct the election by reason of the riotous
conduet, the threats, and violence of the partisans of contestant in in-
timidating and preventing colored voters from voting for him; that by
a systeny of undue influgnee and social and religious ostr ausm inaugu-
rated by contestant lcu‘ga numbers of colored people who desired to
vote for him were prevented from doing-so ; and that a large number of
the colored voters of the district who unght otherwise have voted for &



2 SMALLS VS. ELLIOTT.

eolored Republican candidate refrained from voting for contestant be-
cause he, contestant, had been convicted by a jury of his country of re-
ceiving a bribe while State senator from Beéaufort County.

On the issues thus presented much testimony was taken by buth
parties. Within the proper limits of'a report it is imposslb]c to present
ally or even a large part of the evidence bearing upon the various gues-
tmns made, but your committee will endeavor to deal with every point
of any importance presented in the case, and to submit its conclusions
thereon. , :

So much of the election laws of South Carolina as bear upon the
questions made in the case accompany this report, marked Exhibit A.

POCOTALIGO,

Contestant claims that there was an excess of ballots in the box when
the count hegun of 105 or 148 votes; that only 143 votes were cast at
the precinet; that the managers, after drawing out the excess in accord-
ance with th law, returned to the commissioners of election, who are
the county canvassers, the vote of this precinet as follows: Llliott, 87
votes; Smalls, 56 votes; and that the county board of canvassers in
canvassing the vote ot Beaufort County so counted it,  Contestant then
examined 118 witnesses, each swearing that he voted for Smalls, and
daims from this that there was fraud on the part of the managers ; that
the return is impeachied and should be disregarded, and that he should
have counted for him the 118 votes of those sworn, and Elliott should
have the remainder of 143, which he says was the total vote cast.
Devaux, the Repablican supervisor, and Bampfield, the son-in-law of
contestant, swear they were present at the count by the man: agers, and
that there was an excess of ballots, that is, more ballots in the box than
on the poll list.  Dampfield says that he suggested to the managers
that the proper way to do was to ascertain the number of” hallots in “the
box, then mix them up and draw ont enough to reduce the number in
the box to the number on the poll list. “This was done. Bampfield
says the excess was 148, Devaux says the excess was 105, Devaux
says that of the 105 drawn out 47 were Swallg ballots.  That would
leave 53 Elliott ballots drawn out.  There is no evidence as to who put
the surplus ballots in the box.  The managers were not examined.  The
law of South Carolina provides, “If more ballots shall be found on open-
ing the box than there are names on the poll list, all the ballots shall he
returned to the box and thoronghly mixed together, and one of the
managers or the clerks shally without seeing the ballots; draw therefrom
and immediately destroy as many ballots as there arve in exeess ot the
number of names on the poll list.”  The (lmwingf ot of the excess of
ballots seems to have been done in accordance with the law, in the
‘presence of the Federal supervisors of clection and thv sen-n- l.lw of
contestant, and at the suggesbmn of the latter,
Contestee denies that there is any cvidence as to \\lmh \olo Wil
counted by the county canvagsers from this pr(-mn(t
The law of South Carolina requires one of the managers of (slv(,txou,
within three days after the election, to deliver to the commissioners of
clections the poll list, the boxes containing the ballots, and a written
statement of the result of the cleetion in his preeinet,  The counnis.
sioners of elections, who are the county board of canvassers, on the
'I‘lwsd.w next following the eleetion, after being duly sworn xlmll pro-
veed to canvass the votes of the county, shi xll make such statement
thercof as tho nature of the election requires, and sball transmit to the
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board of State canvassers any protest, and all papers relating to the
election, and finally, after adjournment, shall by messenger transmit to
the governor and secretary of state the returns, poll lists, and all pa-
pers appertaining to the election.  These papers remain in the office of
the secretary of state, who is tho custodian thereof, o

It appears in the record that contestant offered in evidence a paper
claiming it to be a copy of the poll list and return kept by the maua-
gers of election at Pocotaligo precinet.  Contestee objected to its intro-
duetion because it was not certified to be a copy of the poll list and re-
turn by any official; and not proven by any one to be such. \We have
this paper before us; it is clearly not the original, and is not certified
by any one as a true copy. There is no evidenee in the record tending
to prove that it is a correct copy.  Under the cirecumstances your com-
mittee do not think this paper should be considered. -

~The only evidence in the record as to the vote cast, counted, and re-
turned at this precinet is that of Devaux and Bampfield. The highest
and best evidence of the return, which is presumed to be on file in the
office of the secretary of state, is a certified copy thercof, which was
easily accessible.  Your committee are of the opinion that, in the ab-
senee of any evidence of the loss, destruction, or inaccessibility of the
returns, parol evidence as to what the vote was should not be con-
sidered. This is the established rule of law, and the propriety of the
rule is well illustrated in this ease by the conflict in the testimony of
the two witnesses by whom the number of votes cast is sought to be
proven.  In the absence of any legal evidence as to how the vote was
counted from this precinet by the county canvassers in canvassing the
vote of’ the county, the evidence of the voters as to how they voted is
immaterial, ' ' ‘

In the foregoing and one other precinet an excess of ballots was found.
In South Carolina the voter deposits his own ballot in the box. The
law says the opening in the box shall only be large enough to admit of
the entry of one ballot at a time; but it is difficult to sce how it could
be so arranged as to prevent the voter from depositing two or more
ballots at the same time if he desired to do so. The presumption is that
the managers complied with the law in seeing that no ballots were in
the boxes at the beginning of the election. There is nothing in the
evidence that throws any light on the matter,

FORT MOTTIL AND ADAMS RUN.

At these two precinets the election appears to have been properly
held, the returns made out regularly and signed, the boxes locked and
sealed; and in cach case delivered to one of the managers to be carried
to the county board. The Fort Motte box was carried to the oflice of
Dr. Hydrick, & Democratic county politician, who was not one of the
county canvassers, and in his absence left with a young medical student
therein,  Dr. Hydrick, upon his return, refused to take charge of tho
box. The young gentleman who had received it in his absence then
carried the box to the president of the county bourd of canvassers, who
refused to receive it because it was not delivered to them by one of the
managers,  The box was then deposited in the office of the probate
judge of the county, where it now remains. - The Adams Run box was
taken by one of the managers to Waterboro, and left in the storc or
office of one Graber, a man who had nothing to do with the election of-
ficially, and since that time the box has been lost sight of.  The county
canvassers in making up the returns counted no votes. from either of
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these precincts. It appears from the evidence that the supervisors at
each of these precincets, at. the time of the counting of the vote, made

and mutaally signed a paper showing ihe vote cast thereat. These

returns or statements are in evidence and are here copied.
N FORT MOTTE, ORANGEBURGH €O

Robert Smalls: ‘

- VYVVVV.iiiiin R R TN RSP TR 30
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VYV VOV i i e, e amaen e e veemerieemerreacns 20

William Elliott: ; AR ~ L , o T
v v v v viiii viv v v viiil,

Return of the election held at IFort Motte precinet, Drangeburgh Co., November 2, 1886,

The whole number of votes given for member of Congress was 304, of which Robert

Smalls received 236 ; of which William Elliott received 63, :

* We, the undersigned supervisors, certify that the above isva correet return of the
votes cast at the election held at Forte Motte precinct of Orangeburgh County, on the
2d-day of November, 1886, , ' : ~

' ‘ : ‘ ‘Horacr Kritr,
8. J. Murkay,
“Supervisors.

Return of the election held at Adams Run precinet, Colleton County, November 2, 1886,

The whole number of votes given for member of Congress was 214, of which Smalls
received 177 ; of which Elliotl received 37, ,

We, the undersigned supervisors, certify that the above is a correci return of the
votes cast at the election held at Adams Run precinet, of Colleton County, on the 2d
day of November, 1886, N '

: M. W. SIMMONS,
C. R, Banuwy, - ;
Supervisors.

- Your committee are of the opinion that under the circumstances of
this case these returns should bereceived and counted. At Fort Motte
recincet Robert Smalls received 236 votes and William Elliott received
8 votes., At Adams Run precinct Robert Smalls received 177 votes
and William Elliott received 37 votes, SR , :

~ GREEN POND.,

~ Contestant charges that 195 votes were polled at this precinet, of
which the connty board of canvassers credited to Elliott 160 votes and
to Smalls 33 votes; charges fraud upon the managers of election be-
cause eight or ten minutes elapsed between the closing of the polls
and the beginning of the count, during which the public could not see
the Lallot-box, and charges that 130 witnesses swear they voted for
Smalls.  There is no legal evidence of what vote was counted by the
sanvassers from this precinet.  Neither the returns or any certified or
uncertified copy thereof appears in the record. Thesereturns were easily
accessible.  The irregularity complained of was this: The polling place
was the back room of a store; in the partition which separated this
room from the store was a door which was open during the day. When
the polls closed the managers went into the store, where there was a



SMALLS V8. ELLIOTT. 5

counter, and proceeded publicly to count the vote. No charge or inti-
mation of frand or impropriety was made at the time, and the evidence
now relied on to establish fraud is that of 130 witnesses, who, it is
claimed, each testify that he voted for Smalls. Nearly all of these wit-
nesses are very ignorant; can neither read nor write. They do say
they voted for Smalls, but when cross-examined mwany say they could
not tell whether their tlckets were Smalls or Elliott tickets, Many of
them did not know for what office Smalls was running, and the cross-
examination shows that some of them did not vote but only thouglt
they had. The testimony of some of these witnesses is here given:

[Edwards, on page 475.]

MATTHEW EDWARDS (colored), a witness of legal age, produced by contestant upon
due m)lmce to contestee, deposes as follows in reference to qﬂestmus propounded by
counsel:

Q. What is your name, age, residence, occupation, aud where were you on the see-
ond day of November last 7—A. Matthew Edwards; abont 30, I reckon ; live at Gireen
Pond precinet ; farmer; I was at Green Pond.

Q. Did you vote thore for Congressman on the 2nd day of November laBH If so,
state of your own free will for whom you voted.—A, Robert Smalls,

Q. ¥From whom did you get your ticket ?--A Didn’t have nary one; wouldn’t gtve
me no ticket,

Q. Then you did not vote 1—A. No; no more than put my name down,

Q. What did you mean when you said you voted for Sll\d“ﬁ ¥—A., Becanse I in-
tmuiod to vote for him. ‘

Cross-examined by Mr. HOWELL:

Who was it that would not give you a ticket ‘I——A Jacob Wlnto, because I
dldu t have a registered certificate.
Q. Then you did not vote —A. No, sir.
Q. Is Jacob Smalls a Republican ?-—-A Yes,

‘ MATTHFW (his x mark) EDWARDS,
[Manignult on page 404.]

Q. Can you read and write +—A. No. ‘

Q. Who told you that you voted for &mal]s 1—A. “April Smglnton,

Q. Do you know the solemnity of an oath #--No, sir; I don’t. ‘

ﬁg If you were to tell a lie would you stick to it 7—A. No, I’m not g,mug to tly to

tell any.

Q.. What time did you get to tho polls, and what time dld you Jeavet=A. I got
here in the morning a little after sunrise, and left between 1 and 2 o'clock in the
afternoon.

Q. Were you present when the managers opened the polls 7—A, Yes, I do.

k (). Who was present besides yoursel%?—A Black and white was. hcre, but I dou’p
10w none.

CUFFY (his x mark) MANIGAULT:

[‘iee also Jack Mitehell, page 500.)

Jack MHCHELL, being duly swom, deposeﬂ a8 follows

Q. Give your name, age, residence, occupation, and stuta vvhme you wero on’ the
2ud day of November last.—A. Jack Mitchell; near 50; Green Pond pmcmct
farmer ; Green Pond poll..

Q. Uul you.vote there that dzw for Congmasman? If 8o, atate of your free wxll
for whom you voted and from whom ‘you got your tickets.

(Objection same a4 when same quesmou was asked Samipson MoNexl} firat Wlt.uesa
sworn this day.)

. Yes; for Robert Smalls; got my ticket from Daniel Fields.

Q How many tickets did you vote that day for Congressman 1

(Objection same us when same queatwn was asked S&mpsou MeNeill, ﬂrst w:tuﬁss
sworn this day. ) o o .

One, ‘

Q. 111?“1 any one reud your ticket for you be(‘ora you voted 1—A, " Nu, gir; I read it

myso
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Cross-examination :
(('i‘ounsel handed witness the name of Robert Smailf; in print and witnass oould notz
ruuxb) , SR
’ ACK (hisx nmrk) Mmcum,x,. :

[See aim Bmy Mimhen page 028 1

Q. How do you know, hen, that you yoted for Robort &xxml‘ls. ?-~A Bv (,Impman
read my ticket, and I éan read Robert Smalls’ name in print, - :
(The name 0(’ Robert Sma]ks inpr mt shown him, and he said it was E l]mtt’s n.uncb,)

BIILY (his'x mark) Mn'umx,x,. :

It is ﬂubmltted that ewn n“ there was legal evulon( e as to iow the
return for this precinct was counted, the sworn returns of the mana-
gers.and county eanvaﬂsers should not be Overturued by such evidence
asthxs.; i A o .

'Bn"mx EPISCOPAL cnﬁi{cn; -

Coun ty and State boards bot;h rejected this poll 'The reason assigned
for this rejection is because noune of those. oﬁarmg to vote lwhl or pro-_
duced regxsbra)txon certificates, ;

- The law requires regzstmtmn for the parmeular prevumt a,t, w}nch (x'
party votes. . _ ;

All oIectnrs of the State shall be reglstered as hemum{ter px‘ovsdod' and no ]mr?
son shall be allowed to voto at any election hemufter m be held unless rogxstewd a9
herein required. '

The supervisor of regxatratmn shall determme aB t;o ﬂm legal qualific: wtions of m\y‘
atp{nhcanb for registration by summary process, requiring oath, evidence, or both,

1e deems proper, subject to revision by the assistant supervisors and himself in
all cases where he has refused to register an applicant. Irom the decisions of the
supervisors of registration, any applicant who is rejected shall have the right to a
review thereof by the circuic court, provided he gave notico in writing to the super-:
visor of his applicatiou for sueh revxew, and the groundy thereof, within five days
from the date of his rejection, and commence his proceadmgs within ten days fmm
the service of said notice.
" Each elector registered as aforesaid rahall theruzpon be furnished Ly the anpervmor
with a certificats, which shall contain a statement of his age, ocenpation, and place.
of residence, as entered in the said registration hook, and which omm!watu shall he
signed by the said supervisor; and no person shall be allowed to vote at any other.
reciuct than the one for which he is registered, nor unless he produces and ex-
ibits to the managers of clection such certificate: Provided, In caso there shall be
no election precinet within any townshxp or parish, the snpervisor shall-designate
in the certificato at which of the neighboring precinets the elector shull vote; andin’
‘case there e more than one precinet in any township or Ffmsh, the supervisor-shall
likewiso designate in the certificate at which of the said precinets the elector shall
vote. The certificate of registration shall be. ot the followmg form
Regiatration comﬁcate number ——;

.- County, - “Township or parlsh. :
. Election pmmn(,t; .
The bcamr, g qlmhﬁed votcr m ‘the ubove premno t, and resides at
, i1 I‘owuslnp, or - Parmh, and ig —— ynzxrs of age, and enmtl(*d 10
'bvete at such precmct

" Registered on the ~—— da} ei e A D 1&——

k Szzpermsor m" }wg;fciratwm o

That evarv elector nhall hnve the rxghta to a Tenew ai of his cortificato th]mnt fco
or charge, when the same becomes dﬂfaued by time or mcxdent, upon his mu‘mnderlnfr
auch certificate, so defaced, to the supervigor of regmtmtxon ]

Iu case of the removal of an elector from one residence to- mmthm in tlm saIme
precinet, such elector shall notify the supervisor of registration, and shall surrender
1i8 certiﬁcam of registration to ‘the said supervisor o% registration, who shall enter

the fact upon the registration ‘book, and:shall give such elector a new certificate in
accordance with sueh change of residence.
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The tesmmony of the supervusor of reglstratlon for Berkeley Oounty is
glven o

F'rm 1, (:rAILLABD, bemg awam, sayw '

Q. 1. Stato your name, age, occupation, zmd piaee ef reszdanm.-——.& }stﬁeli Gaxi
Lu‘d ‘37 years old ; planter; Belmont plantation, Berkeley County, 8. C. . -

Q. 2. Do you hold any oiﬁce ;i 8o, what ?M-A I do; supervisor ot regxstratmn fm‘
Berkeley County, 8,C.

Q.k.i How long have you beeu supervnwr of regmtratmn r—A. ()ue year and two
Wee g
Q.4 During your term of office hiave you hold your haoks of registmtmn opon for
the purpose of registering voters at the court-house, as required by law 1—A. 1 did,

Q.. Did you ever refuse Lo-register and give certificate of retrmbrmmn m any voter
who applied for rogistration ¥—A. I never did.

©.Q. 6. Did'you ever refuse to change the certificate of r{mlsfrfmon 0{‘ a.nv wtor or to
issne n cerfificate of mnewai upon bemw 4pphmi to for either of ilmse purposes $—A,
1 never did.

- Q.7 Did you ever: issue 4(~erhﬁvate of” mgmtmtxmx for Bmck meco »al Chureh,
'meﬂi Gmiles from Mt, Pleasant t¥—A. I neverdid, for the mmple reason t%mt I hadno
application for any,

Q..8. Do the books of rcg,mtratmn show for what procnmt a cel‘tlfncnte ot registra-
tion is issued #—A, They

Q. 9. State whether or xmt any’ certlﬁcate of regiﬂtmtmn hau ever been issued for
that precinet.—A. They have not,

Q. 10, Is Berkeley Connty divided- into tmvnslnys or pamahes ?»——A Into p*mshes;.

The foregoing extract gives all he says (m tho. snhgaei; in }ns examinm&um in- cinaf :
()n cross-examination he Bays:

“Q. 6. Did you prepare a registration book for the voters of Buck l pmcopal Lhm’ch
precinet 1—A, 1 opened the bonks, but there is not a name on it, there being no ap-
plicant; no one applied for an original or a transfer certificate,

Q. 7. Did you notify the voters that a transfor was necessary under the law creat-
ing that new voting precinct 1—A. I did not, it not being my dutyto doso,

Q B, Was any book prepared and sent to the comumnissioner of election for that pre-
¢inet ?—A. I had a blank-Dook with the heading for “ Brick }upmmp:ﬂ Chureh,” but
no mnnﬁ bemg on ity I dul not h;md itin,. o )

L'rsxm, Gan,nmn,
Sworn to hefore me the 24th day of M;u'ch, 1887. PR ;
frnesy L O y - D (,.»me; L

) o : B o Not. Inb 8. C.

'l‘lng was a new. pollmg premuct.

Section 5 of the act of the general a.s':;embly, No. 41‘), J.ppmved Julyi
‘5. 1882 (17 Statutes of South (Jarolum,, page 1172); provides as follows:
© Whenever a new polling precinct is established by law, it shall be the duty of the
supervisor of registration to transfer from the books of rcgsfmi:mn the names of sueh.
qualified voters registored at other precinets as should, nuder this act, register and
vote at the new precmcte so " established, and who may request such (ransfer, and to
make such changes as may be necessary in the certificate of registration issued to

siicl voters, and such_ voters shall there&ftfar vote only at mmh precmuts to whwh
thoey have been thus transferred.

“T'he chairman of the board of county canvassers. says in lns testlmony
that he refused to count the vote of this precinct “on the ground that
the voters voting at that premncb were not registbred there,”  This poll
‘we think was properly rejected.

QRAHAM’VHJLE.

The contestant claims tlmt; 48 voma for Smalls and 1 for E Elliott, which
wore excladed from the count by the managers because thev were
sceratched and mutilated; should be countcd The ele(,tlon law of Snuth
_{Jarolma provides that—»- ,

© The voting shall be hy ballot, winoh hmil ,,ﬁhail ‘he of p ain whﬁe papex‘, twa and
mw»half' inches wide by five inches lang, eclear, and even cut, without ornament,
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-

designation, mutilation, symbol or nuul\ of’ mxy kind whatsoever, except the name
or names of the person or persons voted for and theoffice to which snch person or
persons are intended to be chosen, which name or numes and oflice or offices shall
bo written or printed, or partly written and partly printed thereon in black ink;

aud such ballot shall be so folded as to conceal the name or names thercon, and su
folded shall be deposited in a box to be constructed, kept, and disposed of as hereuf-
ter provided ;-and no ballot uf any obhvr doscuptmn imm«t in any ulm*imu hox shall
be counted, : :

It appears irom the evidence that the managers of election refused to
count these votes because they were marked and mutilated. Such bal-
lots were forwarded with the other returns to the coanty board of can:
vassers, who also rejected them fer the same reason, and under the evi-
dence submitted your committee do not feel authorized to overrule the

action of the managers of election of the precinct ‘md the (,uunf) bo.ud
ot canvassers, all sworn oﬂl( ers o{ the law. ‘

PROVIDENC}E. :

Contestant claimg that this poll should be rejected because of fraud
on the part of the managers in drawing from the box an exeess of hallots.
We have heretotfore referred 1o the statute of South Carolina providing
for the method of disposing of any surplus of ‘ballots found in any box
used at an election.  The claimed surplus in this case was 80, There is
no legal evidence in the record of what the vote was at this precinet or
how it was connted.  If there was asurplus of ballots the preponderance
of evidence satisfies your committee that the law of the State was ex-
actly complwd with in-drawing them from the box, S ‘

CEDAR CREEK..

The county board rejected this box beeause only one of the inanagers

was sworn.  The others were present acting as managers, and ¢ ontestee
admits that the return should have been counted. The vote here was :
Smalls, 18; Elliott, none, '

SANDY TbLAND.

Phis preom('b was 1ot m(,luded in notice of" mntmf and aenee the
evidence referring to it should not be considered.  Itis well settled that
a contestant can not make any points in his contest which ave uot in his
notice of contest. (McCrary on Elections, sec. 343.) ~

GREEI tN

This poll was oponed by mekms, one of the lll«llld”‘(fl‘h, :m(l {wo oth(‘r
persons appointed by the Federal supervisors.  Greer was a regularly
appointed manager, and reached the poll at 7 o’clock a. m.; the poil
was then opened, he took the place of one of (he managers appointed
by the Federal supervisor, and the election was thus managed to the
close. -The county canvassers rejected the poll because of this irregu-
larity. It is not perteetly clear that this was wrong, but your mmluxt
tep are inclined to think that this poll should have been wunted

'_[‘he vote was William Elliott, 4 ; -Robert bnmlls, 65,

bAN TIuE.

‘This box was rejected because only one manager held the electlon.
The law was entirely disregarded. Poll was in open air under a tree,
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no space railed off, and every one dllowed to vote whether a legal voter
or not. The evndeuce shows that the one manager allowed 25 men not
registered and 34 who had changed their re&ndem,e to vote. This box
‘was properly rejected. 2

As to the precincts of Cedar Creek, bandy Island, Greer’s, and Santee,
all in Georgetown County, we may remark that the county board ot
_canvassers was composed of two Demoerats and one Republican, the
latter the Republican county chairman since 1876 and also the Stute
senator, and upon his motion these precinets were rejected by the board.

MUDDY ORERK.

Contestant claims that at this precinet there were 83 votes for Dar-
gan, 9 for Elliott, and 1 for Sm alls, and that the 83 Dargan votes were
u)unted for Llhott, and he was given by the managers 92 votes, when
he was only entitled to 9. There is nothing in the record to show how
this precinct was reported and counted by the county bourd. The only
evidence is that of one Cooper, who himself says that ho was not pres-
ent at the canvass by the county board, and his only knowledge is de:
rived from a paper shown him Ly one Swails, Republican Cengressional
chairman, which paper was not signed by the canvassers or any one
else, It is submitted that election returns can not be get aside on such
flimsy and worthless evidence as this,

SALTERS.

Contestant claims that the polls were not opened until 10 o’clock.
The supervisor refused to act because thepolls were not opened accord-
ing to law, and in his brief (page 115) contestant says, ¢ We infer that
86 votes were returned from this precinet for Elliott and none for
Smalls,” whereupon he gravely asks that we deduct from the vote of
Elliott 86 votes. There is nothing in the record that shows how many
votes, if any, were counted from this precinct, and your committee sub-
mit that it would hardly be a safe rule, in the absence of all evidence,
to “infer” a given number of votes were cast and counted for a candi-
date, md then proceed to deduct that number from his returns,

LAKE CITY,

bontest.mt claims that this precinet is in the Sixth borvgresmonal dis-
trict, and that the vote cast there for Illiott should be deducted from
the wunt,. There is absolutely no evidence in the record to sustain
this claim. . The precinct is what is called 4 ¢ Line precinet,” and ballots
were there received in separate boxes both for the can(hdut(,s in the
Slxth and Seventh districts. This was doue in acwrdmwe wnth the
a\v of the btate.

| FAILURE 'Jf.‘o oPEN I?OLLS. 5

1 t appears from the evidence that at several of the precincts in the
distriet the polls were not opened, and contestant claims that such
failure was designed Ly the pohtm.tl friends of contestec for the pur-
pose of depriving him, contestant, of a large number of votes, Indeed,
he claims that he was thus depnvul of about 2,000 votes, and while
contestant does not aver that this number of votes should be counted
for him, he does insist that in the event that the committee finds that
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he has not a majority of i;he votesz east that then a new election should
be ordered. Out of the whole number of‘ precinets in the dmrim‘ there'
was a failure to open the polls at only four., Y
The registered voters of these precincts were: but an mmnsu!u mme
parﬁ of the voters of the entire district, and unless the failure to opén
the polls there can be. traced to the contestee, or it appears that such
failure was the result of a design on the part of his political supporters
to thus deprive legal voters of an opportunity to vote for contestant,
under no. rule of law with which your committee is acquainted could
such falinre of itself justify the ordering of a new election.  We have-
very carefully considered the evidence bearing upon the points made,
and: (md that contestee, the Democratic executive committee, and the
appointing officers did all they could to secure the opening of the polls
at each precinet. - We further find that at some of these precinets there
appear to be as many Democratic as Republican voters who were de-
prived of an opportumty to vote, and there is no satisfactory evidence of
the number of either class who'were thus deprived of the right of saff-
rage, We submit some of the evzéence he*mng' upon the% p(}m’fs

J Q AVARbHAIL, hemg; hmt duly uworn, m ‘answer to fo]]nwmu' r;ueammm. aya (p.

Q W!mra do yfm restde ?-——A In the eity of Lahunbm, S L el
i Q. What iy your age and ocoup:xtmn ?—-—A I am’ thirty- seven yea.rs nm mu! am X

awyor, ‘

), Where were yon rea;dmg m the year 1886¥--A In ﬂm uty t}f Co}umb:a, mu nfy
of Rwhmud,s C.

Q.- What position did you lmld in tbe Democratw party in the gmmml elu tion of
1869—A. I was chairman of the Demoeratic execntive committee for tho connty of
Ricliland, and also chairman of the Democratic executive committeo for ﬂm Seventh
Oongreﬂsmnul distriet of Sonth Carolina.

Q. Did you hold a meeting of the ex, com. ONhat ‘Congressional :lwt,rwt, to eonsidor
the conduct of the campaign therefor ¥—A. 1 did, at Charleston, 8. C., about theﬁme
of the opening of the campaign in that district, 1 think about 18t 0431., 86, :
Q. Was any instructions passed at that meetm;, in regard to having all’ the pnlls
opened at the election 1--A, Yes; there were such instructions. lhere being great
difficulty in getting managers to-adt for the Federal boxes it the year 1844, some
polls were not opened at tho olection that yoar on that account. The committeo de-
ternrined to prevent the recurrence of that, if possible, at the election of 1886, and to-
do-all in their power to have all the polls opened in the Seventh (}Gngsessmxmf dis-
trict, All the county chairmen of the committees composing . the Seventh Cong. dis-
trlct were instrocted to andoavor to see or assmb in gpmng manugem to serve at t]m
vn.rmus precinets,

Q. Did you extend such instﬂmtmns to the commxssxoners ai }*mlorai e}mtiaus for
‘this county *—A, I did, and endeavored to assist the chairmain in getting managers,
and uped my jufluence to get gentlemen to serve at Gadsden and Rastover preci nets.

Q. You found it dxﬁicula ta get porsons to consent to aot aa manag,aw at thcaﬁ l}wo
precinets 1—A. Yes.

Q. It was the desire of the Democratic party or managera to Imm an. ehmhon f‘or
‘Congresaman at Gadsden at the regular cloction for 1886, was it t—A. Yes, and I.did
all’] conld to hwve the. volls opened; T theuight I had gotten parties who would act
‘a8 nmnagex gy and wan surpnsed when' I hear tlmy had nof (,.xllml im fhe lml]m‘ box

g OHN H, PEARSGN, w}w bemg ﬁmt (hlly ﬁworng m answar te E ”9 f(xngwmg qmss-
,s, says (p, 780):

Q Where do you ms:da 1—A. (Jolmnbm, Rwhland Cmmty, 8, (3
Q. What iy your oceupationt—A. Lawyer T :
Qi Whatis your age¥—A. Thirt :

Q. What office do-you now hoh{ t—A. 1 hold twn, : pm}mte mdgrs for’ Rxchland
Counﬁtv, and. chmrman of the. bourd of cammxs&mnfsrs of l«ulemf olwtmnﬂ m this
county. - .

Q. Were you' prmr to aml hmng the Iaat genaml aleetmn a com’r 0( Fr*dcmi alec-
txona 1—A. 1 was,

Q. Who were the other cammisswnem assomated With yon aﬁ th&t tmm ?—-—A‘ ’I‘bos.
'D‘ “Hopkins and Pringle T. Youmana.
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Where ‘are they now 1—A. Mr. Hupkins is l:vmg in this connty, and 1 am in«
icrmm\ that Mr, Youmans ig in Birmingham, Ala. -~ -

Q. Mr, Youmans has removed then permauentxy fmm thls cr}unby !«A. 801 under-

t,sud I know he so stated to me,- - - ; ,
. What is Mr. Youmans' pmtessmu? A Lawyor.

Q. Has Mr. Youmans ever held any political posxtmu 4«—A Nob to my kuowlodge,.,
except that of commisgioner of election atoresald,

Q. Did you, as chairman of the board of’ rom:msxmners, receive “any siiggestions
from any officor of the Democratic organization or party as to procuring wanagers to
open the polls at Bastdver and Gadsden precincts, and, if so, from whom ¥ State fully
what was said and doneé,—A, Tdon’t know that T xe(,ewed any su&,gestifms, bat I'did
hear Colonel J. Q. Marshall, the chairman of the executive committee of Democratic
party of this county, and chairman of the executive committes of the Ssventh Con-
gressional district, state that it was the wishes of the Democratic party to have a full
board of managers at Gadsden and Eastover precincts, and he gave as his reasons
that at the preceding Congressional election there were no managers at. hastover‘
precinet.  I'did not consider any suggestions, - . :

Q. Did you appoint managers for those two piaccs ?——A I did,

« ' Will you stute how: you. appointed them, and when, and who they were?»—A
Wo ap;mmtvd them ot a meeting of the board of commissioners ; we held a meeting.
of the board, I think, about one week prior-to. the election; and-appointed, 1 think,
for (m(lesdm; premncb, Harry L. Adams, W, W Ray, dmi B, MceC, Clarkwn Mr.
Hopkins wrote each gentloman a letter apprising them of their appointment, and
those names were published, I think, tho following day in & ddl‘y neWspapor pub~
lished i this county.

Q. Did thoso gentlemen act 1—A, Thoy did not, ‘ ;

Q. When did they notify you of their rofusal to d(}b AL T x‘ecmve(l notmcamou of
all 'of them, excéept possibly: Adams, pemaually, and we knew w:thm two days after.
that novo of them would act.

Q. Did you fill their places?-—A; ()n ﬁndmg thoy wou}d not aot 10 xmmedmwly
hl!od their places’ that da.y. . ‘

Q. Who did - you appoint in their puces? -A. My reeo}lecmou is Jnﬂ H. Admns,
e Williams, and T, A. Scott. ,

Q. ‘Were those parties notified in same mw? A Yeos, in same way ; 0nG or. two of
them immediately refused to aet. T, A, Scott did not immediately.  We then ap-
pointed one or twonore ; not positive whether it was one that declined immediately
to net with Mr. Scott. These were the l.mt appomtnmnta that were madu. Tr umble

was one last, appointed to act, ~

Q. Did you publish in the papers these names {tppmumd 1—A. Ye'a, by spevml ad-
vertiseinent, containing names of managers :mppmntul for the hasmverand (mdsden
pwenw!m )

Q.- When did this ﬂpvc,m,l advertisoment &mwm A1 thmk on Sunday mormug,
preceding ‘Tuesday of election 5 not pomtxvu, bat T know it Wi l&ﬁt opportunity ] !uul
to publish it. ‘

Q. Were yon netified by Mr. Adams, T mmblo or Scott at anv t,nne bemm ’l‘lmudu\’
day of election, of their refusal to act, and, if so, "t what time 1A, T was; Mr, I Al
Scott came to my office just before dark on Monday preceding day of last election and
stated that he couldn’t serve because the-other managers had refused to uet, and that
he didi’t intend to serve anyhow, a8 he didn’t care to risk a trialin the U. 8, court,
and he went on to say he had served before and decided not to serve any more,

Q. Whatdid other managoers appointed who declined assign as reasons for so do-
ing ?—A. I can ouly give IL Ray’s. reasons : he smd he was a- pmumung p):yw,z.m
and didn’t have time. -

Q. The only information you “had tl:.mt tlmsu other last numag«,rs \s ould not serva
was what Mr. Scott told you?—A. That-was my only source. .

Q. What then adid- you ‘do whoen-Scott told youn they wouldu’t snrvo?mA I re-
mained in any office nntil the Jast moment to see if I could do anything, and after I
left there T went on the street and offered five dollars to Dr. Butler if he would be
one of three to go to Gadsden and be managers ; hut he refused to go. - My reason for:
o Té'li!ig Dr. Butler $5.00 was that he stated he.would go down, and-I then told him
P grivo Tiim $0.00 and his ¢xpenses if he would go.  He then declmed ' ’I’hm vonver»
*nlmn took place in the prosence of Mr. Moore, on Main st. - :

= Qo Dityow make .t,pp{xcatmn to any other person than Dr. Bntler ’-~A I dul tmt; i
;t wus then Jate at night 5 I was waiting on Dr. Butler, - = ¢
-0 Had you previous to'that u(perietwed any ditficulty in gc}tt)ug purtlus to aw as»
managers F-A. I liad; T so stated in that speeial advertisement, '

Q. Al those persons you ,xppomted wore xuudouts in or near: (xududen pwmnct 1 o
A I think they were. :

Q. Did you experience any d:fﬁwlw in gettmg maaagem fur the Isastover box, and,

if 50, what difficulties 1—A. Yes; there ‘were two sets of managers appointed for East-
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over—three at each time. Paul H, Joyner was among the first set named, and four
of those who were residents around there, and of the six appointed refused to act, and
we then appointed C. O, Marshall at the last moment, just before the train left. Mr.
Marshall was living here in. Columbia, and he carried the ballot-box down to East-
over,

Q. Had Mr. Marshall not accepted and earried the box with him there wou d have
been no election at Eastover ¥—A, There would have been no election at Eastover.

Q. Did any one coms for or send for the box for (Gadsden precinct ¥—A. I was in-
formed that Mr, Scott would come for it during the first part of the day, but he came
and declined toscrve or take box, and no box wassent to Gadsden, and none of those
appointed as managers for Gadsden qualified.

Q. Were any returns ever made to your board of commissioners from Gadsden for
the election of Congressman ¥—A. No. ,

Q. Did the supervisor of Federal elections for Gadsden send up or return to you
any box of votes for or at an election held for Con{;ressman 1—A. No. :

Q. Do you know anything of an attempt at holding an eloction for Congressman
at Gadsden '—A. No.

L. 8. ERRICH sworn, testified (p. 661):

Q. State your name, age, occupation, and residence.—A. L. S, Ehrich; 32; mer-
chant; reside at Georgetown, S, C, ,

Q. Where wero you born'—A. City of New York,

Q. How long have you been in this State ¥—A. 12 years.

Q. How long in this county !—A, Not quite 11 years. ,

Q. What were your political proclivities while at the North A, My sympathics
were with the Republican party, but I never cast a vote until I camo Sonth.

Q. You were not of a legal age to vote, then, before you came South ?-—A. No; I
was not.

Q. As the Democratic county chairman at the last election, did yon make any effort
to throw any obstructions in the way of opening the polls at any precinct in the
county —A. I did not; that matter being entirely with the county canvassers,

Q. Did you receive from Col. Elliott any expression of his wishes as to the opening
of the polis 7—A., 1 did. I received a letter from Col, Eiliott in which he wrote me
a8 county chairman, that he desired an election held at every precinet in the county.

Q. Did you acquaint Dr, 8parkman with Col. Elliott’s wish T—A. T handed him the
letter to read, ,

Q. Was there any conspiracy or preconceived plan on the part of the Democracy,
80 far as you know, to fail to open any of the polls, or to prevent by any other ineaus
a free, full, and fair election in this county ?—A. None.

BraTE OF Soutit CAROLINA, County of Beawfort:

Personally appeared before me, Thomas Talbird, a notary public in and for the
county and State aforesaid, W. . ALLEN, white, a witness on behalf of coutestee,
and of legal age, who, being duly sworn, deposes and says (p. 772)

Q. Col. Allen, where do yon reside?—A. Bluffton, :

Q. Were you in Bluffton on the second day of November last 1—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you sece Joe Robinson, alias Red-Hot Joe, on that day 1—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you have any conversation with him in regard to the polls 1-—A. Yes, sir.

- Q. State the conversation, please.—A. I wont up to the polls, as I heard there was
some little excitement and disappointment at the polls not being opened, and sug-
gested to Robinson that it would be better to wait awhile longer, as I expected Bar-
res every moment from the country. After waiting awhile I proposed to Robinson to
have the polls opened ; that the supervisor would swear in managers, and it would
be perfectly legal, Tate asit was.

Q. Did Jos Robinson accede to your proposition ¥—A, He did not decline at first,
but said he would go and consult Captain John Liudsey, and F. C. Johnson, and
agreed fo meet mo in half an hour on the grounds. At the appointed time we met
aud-he declined the offer.. Itold him I was very sorry he did, as he had everything
“to gain by it. : ; . :

Q. About, what time a day did that conversation take place7—A. Between ten and
eleven,

Q. Were there many white men in Bluffton on the second of November last?—A.
They were coming in pretly early, and a great mauny turned back wheu they met the
managers, who went oft quite early. , o ‘

Q. What managers did they mect?—A, Those from the wesi of Bluffton met
Preacher, who, I think, was a manager. ‘ ‘

Q.  How did the number of white men compare with the number of colored men on
that day '—A. The turnout was very small on the part of the colored men, and be-
tween eleven and twelve I think the number of colored men and white men were
about equal,
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Q. How did the number of colored people compare with former elections —A. Won-
derfully small, : : : ' o ~

W. H. Ntver (white) i :

Q. Were you present at a conversation hétween Col, Allen and Joe Robinson on the
second of Noveuiber last, at Bluffton A, 1 was, ; :

Q. State what the conversation was.—A. To the best of my recollection; Col. Allen
said to Robingou, that be thought it would be perfectly legal to have the supervisors
sworn inmanagers of election. Sl : B ~

Q. Did Joe Robinson agree to the suggestion? —A. I'don’t recolloct.

Q. 1t youhad voted at the last election, where would you have voted 1—A. Bluffton.

Q. How did the numbor of whitesand colored compare at Bluffton on election day 1—
A, They were about equully divided,;about as many of the one as of the other, that is

my recollection. ‘ , ; .

Q. I'rom what you observed, did the colored people exhibit the same interest con-
cerning tho last election as at previous elections 1:—A. I think not; they seemed very
indifferent. : : S ~

The difficulty of getting managers to act is illustrated by the experi-
ence of K. W, I'ripp, manager at Brick Church, Saint Holena Island:
Q. What, if any, official position did you hold in reference to the election for. Con-
gressman;held in Brick Church precinet, on St, Helena Island, on the 2nd day of
November lagt ?—A. I was appointed one of the managers with John Brown and
William Pritehard. - I went to bunt up John Brown; he-was sick and would not
serve, I then saw Pritchard, aud he said hie would not serve because he was afraid
of the people mobbiug him; that the people were threatening all the white Demo-
Cerats, und he would not have anything to do with it, I then went to Beaufort and
- got authority to appoint some one intheir place ; ther I went to MeDozuald and tried
to get him; he would not serve because it interfored with his trade as & storekeeper,
-1 then: appointed Gabriel Edings, a Republican and a good man, to serve with me;
We two conducted the poll ; we appointed Jackson W. Brown as clerk ; he was also
Republiean supervisor, ) ~

‘We have thus carefully examined all the questions made by the con-
testant except his claim that Brick Church precinet, St. Helena Island,
which was rejected by the managers of election and canvassers, should
be counted, Ior convenience and to avoid repetition the question made
by the contestant as to this precinet will be considered with the ques-
tion made by the contestee as to Beaufort precinet, Ladies Island pre-
cinet, and Central School-House precinct. ; \

‘We come now to examine the points made on the other side. ;

Contestee charges that contestant was not the free choice of his party
for the nomination for Congress, and that the contestant had been con-
victed of receiving a bribe while State senator from Beaufort County,
which facts caused a large number of Republican voters to give their
support to him, contestee. 1t appears from the evidence contained in
the record, Exhibit B, that on the 22d day of October, 1877, at a court
of general sessions for the county of Richland, in the State of South
Carolina, Robert Smalls was indicted for the offense of accepting a bribe
while State senator of South Carolina.. Upon this indictment Smalls
was daly tried by a jury of his country, six of whom were colored men,
convicted, and sentenced to the State penitentiary for the term of three
years. Smalls sued out a writ of error to the supreme court of the State,
and before the case was heard in that court he was pardoned by the gov.
ernor, AT ; S i a

It appeared in evidence on the trial of that case that while Smalls was’
State senator and chairman of the senate committee on printing he ac-
‘epted a bribe of $5,000 to aid in the passage of a resolution to make
appropriation for expenses of printing. An examination of the evidence
had on that trial will satisfy any one beyond all reasonable doubt of the
guilt of Smalls. It appears from the evidence in the record before us
that this conduct of Smalls was discussed throughout the district, and
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that a large number of the colored people reahzed that he was an unfit
person to be elected a Representative to the Congress of the United
States.  Your committee can not incorporate in this report all the evi-
dence bearing upon this point. Some portion of it, however, is pre-
sented, so that the House may understand its character and scope.  Z.
IL buutelic, a Repubh( an, on pages 712, ’;’1.5 and 714 testmef as fol
ows: ,

Q. Wh% iy yom‘ armnpat;on —-A Supermtondent of Buiow Phnaphate Mmes. o

Q. 2, Where were you born #-~A. In the State of Maine. . '

Q. 1% How long have 3ou been resulmg in South Cmolum —A. Ezght years zuxd mx
months.

Q. 4, Havo you bwu wnueutm with the Bulow works dumng thcs whom t e )mt
have wsuled in South Carolina?—A. Yes,

Q. 5. In what county of this State and what Gmxgroaswna! dmtm}t are the xumes?

(The counsel for contestant objects to further e\f‘uninatmn of: th;s thnmss on the
ground that no votice has been given of his examination.) - v ,

A. In Berkeley County and Seventh Corngressional «lmtnbt

(. 6. What are your politics 1—A. Rcpublican, S

Q. 7. Do you know anything concerning the last Tederal uloctwn for Coug,rwsman
from the Seventh Congressional district in regard to intimidation of colored mel,
and, if so, state what?—A. I know of nothing at the election.

Q 8 Did tie colored peoplein yoar. sectmn evmw the mme mternst it the hwt
election as at the vamus elections 7 : -
(Objected to as Ladmg)

. Auswer, No, - N : e

S Q.9 Inwhat way w.w %hxs Iack of mtcrm@t mamfestad ?-A va fuw of (hmn
went to the polls, -

Q. 10, Do youor do you ‘ot ktmw of zmy colt‘)rul meit who dcsmul fosu pporb Cohmel
Elhott at the last election, and, if so,state what number, ~»A I‘iwre wore several,
and I know of tive,

Q. 11, Do you or do you not know if any were prevm\ted from gupporting Oul
Elliott #—A, They were prevented through fear of the othor colored people,  ~

Q. 12. How many hands do you oxnplny at) the Bnlow mines 1—A From thrw izo
five hundred. . . ,

Q13 Didall oi your handﬁ gu to vote en e}e{mon dav?

{Objected to.) ~ R : ;

Answer. No, R ' ' : ‘

- Q. 14, Didor «hd not as many of your Imnds vote on elecbion (Lw s at pmvmtm
sloctions ? , o

(Objected to,) -

Answer.'No.

Q. 15, State the difference in the nuniber of _your hands voting at the la.sb elm,bmu
and the provious clections as nearly as yon can.—Ay At previous elections all voters
went to-the po}ls cat the last (alectmu there were very tmv o dou’c t]nnk more than
ten went, '

Q. 16, Can youw a.emunt for this Jack of mtemﬂt m:d if so, imw d{) ymi ‘s{,vmmb for
it —A. They were all opposed to Smalls,

Q. 17. Do you or do you not know of the -means by which Smaila obtainod t}le
nomination or anything in regard {o his nomination ¥—A, Not directly.

Q. 18 Do you or do you not know anything of the election of delegates from your{
precinet to: the Rupnblmun nominating convention for Congressman 1—A. I was
there at one of the meetings, which ended in a quarrel ; after I had left I heard a
large portion of-the colored peoplo liad left, and that Smally delegates were elocted.

Q. 19 Did you or did you not hear any speeches by Repubhcuus on the day that
that meoting was held 3—A. L.did. , ;

Q: 20, What did you hear; did. you or did: yau 1ot haa.r any (,h.n'; (i3 made ﬁmgatust
Bmalls by Republic ans ;-A I dxd I heard him charged asa bnbﬁ takm &nd @ cem«’
victed felon, - - R ; R

Q. Was Smalls prosmxt 1AL He was. e S e

© Q. 22, Who made the cliarge 1—A, ‘A man na.med Bmwn. ~ ' ‘

Q 23, Was Bowen o white or a colored man $—A. He was a wlnred man.

Q. 24. Did_or did not Smalls say anything in regard to the ('hurge, and’ 1f so,
what 1—A.. He said that no man could say that-and live teri minntes. o

Q. 25. What became of Brown after that 1—A. After Lie came down from: ’che stand
he came to.-my carriage and st.nd there the balance of the day.

Q. 26,-Did-or (hd 1ot Brown gwe any reason for wmmg to you 1

(Objected to.)-

‘Answer. He said Lie: dxd nots know whub Smalls’ bulhes mxgm do,
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Q. 27. Have you witnessed ul«schuxw in your neighborhood in past years —A. No,
Q. 28, Do yowor do yon not know anything of the means used by colored Ropuly-
Heans to make colored voters. volet—A. Up to the last vlection every voter had to
go to vote or he whipped by the women, :

Q. 20, Was or way thore not any su 'h actmn at the recent o]eoiwn AT hem
was nothing of the kind, ;

Q. 30, Whoni did you support at-the Iaat, olection, if any ouo !-A 1 suppurted
Bowen, ' ,

Q. 31. What has hocome of Bowen —A, He diod before the ulvotmn.

Q.’.rz DII‘? you or-did you not, after the death of Bowen, give Smalls auy sup-

wrt 7—A., No.

! Q. 33, Why wmlm you not_support -Smalls 1-—A, -1 dld not thmk Xt fit I‘or the
osition,

: Q. 34, Did or did you not-have any (onvmmtmu wxih hma]m prior.to the elpc tien
iirrezard to theprobable resnlt? State what.—A, Tdid; I had n conversation with
hine in regard to Bowen getting the nontination; ho said Bowon had nob money
onougl, but ho had money enough to carry him through,

Q. B Did you or did you not_ovor offer to het Smalls who would ho electod 1—A,
Yes,

Q. 36, Did ﬁmulh-; accept your offer 1-—A, No, ‘

(3. 37. Stato the circumstances in regard to the bet?—A, I was on the traiu w ith
Sually a fow days before the election, and I told him his people were not going to
vote for him as he expected, and I thought that Blliott stood a better chiance than he
did; T told him T-would et a hundred dollurs if he wanted to rxsk it; he said-ib
w ouldi’t answer for him to bet, - ,

Q. 38, Did he state any reason 1—A., He {hd not, o

Q. 39, Was that before or atter the death of Bowen 1—A. After. L

© Q. 40, From your ebservation and experience amony the colored people; do you or

I you not regard it safo for a colured man to vote the Democratic ticket at a pre-
cinet where the Republicans are in the majority #—A, I do not.

i IQ ]41 (ive yonr reasoni for your opinion,-—A, I think they would mob biw, if not
all him,

Q. 42, Have you or lmvn you not ever voted the Democratic ticket 1—A. 1 have never
voted for a-Democrat in my life, :

Q. 43. Who controls the Bulow mines 1-A, W, 4, Bmdl(y '

Q). 44. -Where.does Lie reside 7--A. In Boston, Mass,

Q.45 What are his politics 7--A. I think he is o Republican, '

Qi 46, Do youemploy any white D(Slllm'hlfﬂ at your works I—A, We have notin iha
jwsb three years,

Q. 47. Did you or dnl you not have any reayon to think that the colored people in
your precinet wonld give Col, Elliott any support ?

(Objected to as leading.)

Answer, I did not think they would dare to,

Q. 48, ' Why 1A, On account of their churches,

Q. 49, ‘Do you or do you 1iob know of any pressure brought by the coloreil ministers
to bear on colored men to make thenevote: ‘the Republican ticket ?-—A. As u rule, thoy
are led by tho ministers and leaders in politics ag well as everything else.

Q. 50.-Do or do not the preachers lead by persuasion or threats, or in what mannor
do they lTead T—A. By persuasion, or threats to tnrn ont of the church; ~

Q- 5. Have you ever witnessed an election at the North 3--A, Scveral,

Q. 62, [ave you or have you not over seen the same-means adopted to keep vo(ma
within party lines as you have Keon .ulnp(ml by colored Republicans to keep colored
men within the Republican lines in this State?—A, 1 nevoer have,

The witness was an intelligent white man and a Northern lwpub!u HYTH
he was hulwrmtundunb of a large mine and worked from 300 to .)()()
colored Jaborers, Of this number only ten voted at election of 1886;
while nes wrly all voted in 1884, He says this falling off in the vote w‘zsi
due to the conviction of Smalls of bribery md to oppomtmngrowmg
out of manner of his nomination, ‘

W. I Thompson, o colored man, who has been a lcadmg R(‘pllbll( an
since the “reconstruction” period ; who was inspector of customs under
the Republican collector and turnod out, by his Democratic. suceessor ;
who was Republican county chairman of “Charleston County in 187‘)‘
member of the State executive committee from 1878 to 1880 Repubhu—’
ancounty chairman for Berkcley County from 1584 to 1886, a aud Repub-

H. Repo1-—38
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lican Congressional county chairman for the last campaign, testifies
(pages 630-635), among other things, as follows: v

Q. 12 Did yon support the Republican nomines for. Congresy during that cam-
paign?—A  Ddidnot, - s o R =

Q. 13, Will youstate thie reasons why you did not?==A. Because I holigved that the
so-called Republican nomines was improperly nominated. - Lo .

Q. 14. In what way was heimproperly vominated s and please state fully all the eon-
giderations which operated upon yon and induced you towithhold your support frons
“himt—A. Beeavse the delegates that were seatad in Congressional convention from

Berkeley Connty ware not entitled to their seats, - A majority of the Republicans of
tho distriet were opposed to Smalls whoen he eame home from Washington, - When he
cume home he said to me; “ T understand that yon aregoing to oppose me.” My an-
swer to him was that it will depend upon what yow will do-to cinse mo to core out
dotively inopposition to yon,  He then struck his right-hand poeket andsaid, “A fat
dog can always beat o lean one.”  Thig statement wagmnado inthe presencoof a dozen
or moro ef the precinet chairmen, who were then opposed to him. The fivst mavting
wo-had to cleet delegates to connty convention after thit déclaration was ab Ste An-
drew’s, at which plaes a precinet chairman was to hocleeted to fill w vacaney cansed
by tho death of the former onie, - I presided at the meeting for the election of deleputo
to the county Congressional convention at the suggestion of Gen’l Smalls, as Congres-
sional connty chairmat, he elaiming that Ostendorff had no jurisdiction, - Whon the
delegates wore elected (and they were dll elocted against hiw), then ho inforinted the
prople, and demavdedand told thom to deinand that Ostendortl go back on thestand
and order an cldetion for another precinet chairman.  Ostendorilrefused, stuting that.
be hid already declared one precinet-ehinivman elected, . Upon that Gow’l Snalls said,
“ By God, kill biim, and don’t let:-him deave this ground- until ho doos cudl this nieet-
“ing to order,” Ostendorfi said,  I'lind bettor go back to save myself from bhodily har,”
and:-upon that he did call’ the meeting to order, and the people that remained there
voted for anotlier precinet chairman, Coe ‘ ‘ : ,
Q. 15, Had many people left, 3—A, Fully one-half had left after thv first election
of delegitos, : ; . ; e ‘
34, Was or not Smalls the choice of his party !—A. 1To was not, ‘

Q. 34, Woresany charges made sgainat him during the campnign --A. There were.

Q. 95, Pleénse atate them.—A. Ho was charged with dercliction ot duaty and abgo-
Intely unfit-to represent his people=any longer in Congress. Also he was charged
with being o “eonvicted felon” and “ bribe-fuker” N

Q. 36, Was Smalls present when the last eharge which you bwve nimed was made
against him I—A. He was. - : . : e ‘

Q. 37. Did he deny the chargo 1—A. He did hot, ; '

Q. 38, -Did you ever have any talk with Smalis about the Frecdman’s Bank depos-
itors T—A, I did, ,

Q. 39. Ploase state the substance of that conversation, and whetherothers were
present. when it took place,—A, 1 had a talk with Gen'l Smalls in the presence of
a great many about the Freedman’s Bank and had written to him abdut ity and: he
told me that whon the States were “ealled” Mr. O'Hara, of North Carolina, intro-
duced a bill, and when South Carolina was ¢ culled ”? Mr, Dibblet introduced @ bill,
looking to the re-imbursemont of the depositors of the Frecdman’s Bank, hiut that o
did not believe that the Governmeont was responsible for theloss that the people sus:
tained by the failure of that bank. This was one reason that Topposed-him.

Q. A0, What offect had this statemeut of Smalls upon the coloved people ? <A,
Wherever et him I charged hing with his deelaration, and in no place did the peo-
ple fait to repudiate him, b - :

Q. 41. You say wherever yowmet him, What do you mewn by that 3—A0 T mean in
thoe canvass ;- on the stump, N ‘

Q. 42. Did you ever hear Sinalls bouast of Lis ability and willingness to huy votes ?

(Objected to) - ‘ SR . g : ‘

A, e said that had the money, and that his opponcat huwd no money, and that it
would take moncy to go through the campuign.  This slatement was made in the
presenco of the preeinet chairman, S : . :

Q.43 Did you ever hear Smalls say anything abouthis influence o usefuliess in
Jongress P==A. He stood in-sight of the enstont-housepand pointed to the custon-
houso and said, *“ Gentlemen, seo that stone building there 7 Fam just s nineligerye
ico to you all, while the Democratic party is in power, ag that Boilding is,” and.that
if-he kept silont there could homore good_done for the Republicans of South Cavoling
than .if‘}m was to undertake to speak for them, wd thig is another reason-why I be-
lioved he was unfit to o back to Congress, s R :

Q. 44, Weré these charges which ‘you linve menlioned - diseissed daring the cam-
paign before and atter Smalls received the nomination t=A. They weve,  'U'hey wore
disengsed at every ineeting. ‘ o
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Q. 45, Col Blliott says, dn-the 12th pavigraph of his- answer, that the faet that
Suradly nud been convicted of yeceiving w bretho was wade an igsue in the cangpaign 71—
A That is o, R T e i L
S 460 He also says thaf thin gave hilin the supportof adarge nomber of voters of
small’ political party.  What do yousay as to that 1—A, 1t certainly did-carry ¢
great-many Republicins to Colo Elliott,

Q. 47, Col. Elliott farther says, in thoe Ihtlparagraph of his answer; that the issues
duthis district was one betwoen individuals, What have yon tosay to that'1—A. As
Detween Colo Blott and Gew’l Smealls, it-was,-and:-not as hetweon the two-pirtios,

CQUaE Didivow everiear Smalls allude to Coll Kot in his public speeches during
thecampaign and, if 'so;, what was'the tenovand efteet of sueh allusion 7—A7 I have
on very miany oceasions heard him say that Colo Blliobt-was o perfect gentleman, i
thut he(Smalls) always cmploys Colo Elliott upon any dmportant case that he has:
in conrt, and that 11 he (Snialy) was to be succeeded by any ofhor than o stannceh:
Republican he woulib rather see Colo Ellioth his suceessor, —

Q.25 For whom did you voleat the Jast clection for Congressman 7—A. Did not
vote at the Tast election, : ‘ '

Q. 260 Then if you opposed the Republican nomineo in 1882, and wounld not: vote
for this Repnblican nomiuco in 18356, theiyon must bo whad is generally designated
i Mugwimnp A, Tam: no Mugwunipy bt a Ropyblican, and havo resolved not
to support any man who bays his nomination and covrapts the party. L

Q.4 State whether ov not any change has taken place in the sentimoent of the Ke-
publician party as-to Robert Smally sinee his eleetion to Congress.—A. Yes; theve
D been o great.chunge as to Gen'l Smalls gince hig election to the 49th Congress,

Q50 Is that chango favorable or wdverso o hint —A, Adverse to him, ,

Qo6 Gen’l Taft asked you yesterday whether there was any ill feeling growing
ant of vour management ol Smalls’s campaign botween Smalls and yoursel, and then
stoppediyou giving yourfull answer; willyou now completo your angwor 7=A. I wns
about tostate that there was no ill fecling batween Gen’l Smalls and myself, and that
Gen'l Bmallsy in this court room, medintely. after: his return homs, deelared in the
presence of -Democerats as well as Repubfieans, that Iwas one of the most conseien-
tionsmunagers that had ever condneted o campaign in his interest, B

Q. 10, -Do you know whether Smalls Tived men (o make speeches for him during.
Ahe Tnte campaign ¥ And if 8o, stato whether or not they did make specehes foi i -
Av Do know that lie hired speakers, - Prior to the nomination. they made-specelivs
for him through thissection of {he istriet; and subsequent to the nomination they
spolie at two places ando more, 1 heard Smidls miako contracts with them, Oneof
sodis? speakers offered. to hire Liimsolf to me for 10 peromonth, and i T wonld not,
pay hine e woundd hive {o Smalls; nmd was cmployed by Smalls,

C. B Smalls, a colored man, and one of the leaders of the Republican
party of the district, testifies on page 638 as follows: .

The canse of the people being so mueh against Gen’t Smalls at thul meoting was
that ameeting priov to- that one R ¢ Browne, who wis sipporting W, J, Bowen,
aldoaeandidate for.Congress; against Go’l Sinalls; eatled: him, Smalls, a bribe-taker
dand.conviet felon. : :

Qo= Was Smalls present when RC Browinie charged him with bheing a bribe-taker
and vonviet folon YA, e was. ' o

Q.90 What did he say 2—A, Smalls said] “By God, I have nothing:more 1o live:
fory bear what he says, - T witl Kill hi, and 06 1 dow't do it here, T will if ho goes’
down on that train to-night,” SRUPR : -

(.10 Did he deny the charge A, He did not.

J. G0 Mardenborough, a colored man, & graduaate of Howard Univer.
sity, o lawyer, who had heen postmaster at Port Royal during Hayes's
administration, and a most intelligent man, whose testimony will be
hereafter more fully referced to, testifies on page 605 as follows :

D the Tast canpaign there: was considerablo opposition to-Smalls in his own
party, caused partly hecause they belioved him undit for Congress, and that he had -
heenwmenber of Congress four orfive times, and they donot hear of o single spoeclt
lie haswade or a single thing he has done for the people of the Stato or this-district:
'li‘nl; thay-opposed him-principally beaanse of hisconvietion for aceepting a brilye.
The people are. becoming more entightened, consequently more sensible.. Wlile
many o the leaders of the Repablean piarty assisted hint in’canvassing the district;
gomeof them did not even mention his naine in aspecch, and did not-even say that
D was i canddate for office;  Somey while they aided Ting in-the cvnviass on élection
day, were entirely indifferent as {0 Smalle's olection, and did nothing forhim,

H, Rep. 3536—2
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This isonly a part of tlw v\ ul( nee bu mng upon this subject 5 a care-
ful and laborious examination of the. \\hnlo of it has satisfied wur Com-
mittee that the charge of contestee s fully made out, and that a very
large number of colored lw]mhhuwmwmwd to vote for contestanut; lw»

viuse he liad aceepted a bribe while state senator from Beaulort County,
and because of dissatisfaction with the manner oi'-'hi;s nomination,

BRICK CHUGH, BEAUFORT, LADIES ISL AND, ANL) CENTRAL 's(:uouL«
ERE R i Il()Ublu. : ‘

’l‘lw umnty and State canvassing hu.udk re wtml the p()ll at the lirst-
named of thesoe precinets, and. counted the \'otu: cast at the others,
Contestant insists that the rejected poll should have been counted, and
the contention of contesteo is tlmf (he réjection of Brick Churchs right,
and that DBeaufort, Ladies’ Island, and Central School-House should
bhe rejected .xlm hc( alse of thev m!mn ¢ andintimidation of contestant
and his Mxppmtom Asto Brick Chureh it appears that managers were
uwulallv appointed, but thai two of them did not serve, one hecause
lw was sicl, the other Decause he was afraid of being mobbed.  Only
one legally-appointed manager conducted the e!wtmn.; It further-ap-
pears blmt three times durm*r theday this manager was compelled to
close the polls for a time bu ause of the riotous and violent conduct
of contestant’s v iends; that the poll remained elosed in all about thirty
minutes. For these reasons both board of managers rejected this poll.
‘On_the question of intimidation at (his preeinet at !muufm t, at Ladics’

Istand, and Central School-House, the evidence is quite voluminous,
and your committee hag spent much time and labor in the considera-
“tion Lhmvot, A pm(um of this evidenee is hmv presented.

James G, Cole testifies, at page. H42, that he was born at Wolmru,
I\L%SH., graduated-at Harvard in 18625 m(wvd to South Garolinain 1863;

S (m\mumenn superinte mlcnt of abaundoned lands during the w u‘,
mnl has resided twenty-one years on Liadies’ Island, Be: wifort ¢ Juunty,
S. C. 5 that ordinarily. Im is the uuly white voter on the lsldml that
in 1886 the total vote was 206, of which 11 were cast by white mvn, and
that contestant got 129, and mntw-.tw TT5 that Ladies’ Island lies be-
tween Deaufort Tand SG Helenws Tsland and is-1 mile from  Beaufort
tlmt most of the colored voters are land-owners and tax- payers, ami
since 1886 have had a general tendeney to vote the Demoeratice ticket
in conscequence of xv(lm tion of taxation hy the Demoerts, improvement
of the public schools, and general see lllll\ ol their H"]lfh that after
the x‘m}xss»n‘xooti'ng at Bmut’mt in Octoboer, 1886, which the Ladies Island
Democeratic Club attended, and of - which auumm soare elsewhere given,
most determined efforts were nuude by the-[e ;mm ivan leaders to break
up this club; that a club of women was organized to heat all men vot-
ing the Demoeratic ticket, wind that many thre als were made against
Democratic men and women ;5 that ithad been announced that contestee
would speak on- the island the day before the cleetions but-in conse-
quence of many threats that he would not. he ulluwml to spvdk the
meeting was ;thmul(mul, although contestee was ready and anxious to
attend; that prior to the election the Democratic voters were in astate
of fei u*tm their personal s Li('L\ ) (md tlmtilww wuuld »\f)( cmll\ et mublv
on clection day,

That in consequence of llns dvpnnon (lM,nlmtud I)mnm'x(un' tlcke o
on the night before the u]v(fmn himself-—staid all night with many of
the voters at a house near the polls, so as to quict (heir fears, and (hat
all were instrueted to be carly at the polls; so as to vote as soon as the
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polls were open, and to: take Republican tickets from the runners for
that party, That during election day wany women were near the polls,
armed with sticks, making a good deal of noise and disturbances, threat-
ening talk, eursing, threats of what ought to be done and would bedone
with Democrats; that a Republican runner jerked from the hand of a

voter a Democratic ticket which deponent had given him; that early

in the campaign deponent had good reason to believe that Democrats

would-carry the poll,but that in consequence of this intimidation* num-

bers that intended voting the Demoeratie ticket did not vote at all, and.
others voted the Republican ticket.” That the Democrats were specially

fearful of trouble after the polls were closed, and many lett the pollson

that account, and for a month after the election many did not dare go

out at night, and some so continned up to the date of witness’s deposi-

tion; that in every contest between the parties for ten years past some

Democrat had been beaten; that it required a great deal of nerve and

courage, not only on Ladies’ Island, but at Beaunfort and Saint Ilelenws

(or Brick Chureh), for a colored man to admit that he was a Democrat,

and that he knew that many throughout Beaufort County were pre-

vented from voting the Democratice ticket. ~

J,Co MARDENBOROUGH, o witness of legal age, produced by contostee upon due
notice to contestant, being duly sworn, deposes as follows : :

Q. Give your name,.ape, and residence.~A. - J. C. Mardenhorongh;; 35 yearsof.age;
live at Port Royal, Beaafort. County. '

(). Wlhere were you horn¥—A. New York City. '

Q. Whers oducated ?—A, Graduated from Howard University, Washington.

(. “When-did you comoe to South Camolina —A, In'720r 273, e

Q. Have you any profession ?=A. Yes; law, I studiod law in Now York City, was
admitted to- practice in-the supreine court-in the city of N, Y., and afterwards-in the
State of So. Ca. , : A

Q. Ave-you u colored or a white man?—A, A colored man, .~~~
“ Q. How long have you resided i Beaufort County¥—A. Sinee 77, B

Q. Haye you held any oftice of any character in this county 7--A. I have been post-
miaster at Port Royal; T'was appointed daring Hayes’ administration and continued
in the oflice till 1875, when I resigned, : ‘ } ey Lo

Q. Daring your residence in Beanfort County, whon there have heen political con-
tests, wlmt.Lin:m been the course of the Republicans towards the Democerats, ov thoe col-
oredomen who were desirous of voting the Democratic ticket—A, During lato yoars
fhere havo a great niany colored men joined the Democratic elubs; and votedwith that
party, for the reason that they aro satistied with the Democratic adiministration, hoth
Stite andinationaly and dissatisfied with the Republican party in general, and as it is
nouraged in Beanfort County and in the Seventh Congressional district in particular;
The veason. for-colored men: joining the Democratic party is that taxes are-low; § less
than they weraduring Republican administration in this State; another reason is that
they got. good treatiment, in Beanfort Connty in particnlar, and the jurics are com-
posed cqually of white and colored men, and the lnws ave administered impartinHy.
The Repablican lenders; becoming alarmaed lest thoey should ho overthrown, immao-
dintely hogan to deviso plans to provent colored men from joining and voting for the
Demoeratic party 5 and, whenevor theroe is a party contest, wonld emnploy s system of in-
timidation; violence, thireats, and nndue influenes against colored Democrats or colored
men wishing to vote for a Democrat, by weans oft specches, public press, and genoral
talk in pubhie places. They even had anong them a saying that although women do
not vote in this conntry, they do oxert agrent deal of inflnence over voters. . Conse-
quiently their most common doviee is to gob as many women ag possible to attend their
political méetings, and thoro woerk npon their affoctions and prejudicey, and put them
forward hecanse of theirinflnenee ovor mon, and-being muchapore excitable, and he-
cause they consider that they will not be punished for violations of the law, and be-
sided ifodisgnisos the purpose of Smalls and his followers, I can give soveral instances
where the Republican leadors employed women to do the hidding of Smalls and his
followers.  Ono instance was at Port Royal, during last October, - When the Repuh-
Hiean leadors issued a notice that there wonld e a publie meeting, and invited evory-
hody to come, thoir words were, “Come one, come all.” The leaders - mado-gpecinl
efforts to get asg many women to-attend agpossible.  There were many wonien there;
half as many more-as men, - ‘The speakers wore Smalls, then Congressman and a can-
didate for rocelection s Joe Robinson, then representativeo 5 Anvon Middleton, the Ro-
publican Congressional chairman,  Smalls in his speeclhi spoke of the oxistenco of
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colored Demoerats in Port Royal; counld 10t 4o how one who had heen-a slave conld
vote for a Democrat ; spoke of the barharities-of slavery ; spokeofslaves being badly
whipped ; told them about workhouses and-stocks ; tried to pictiire to the young men
the horrors of slavery 5 told the women to see that their husbands did not yote for o
Domocrat,  He said in these words, ““‘If he does, keep him away from your bed;
don’t let him enjoy any of the privilege of the bed with yon,” meaning, Hnfer, soxunal
intercourse, - Ie then addressed himself to the unmarried women;  He told them, “If
the man ¢ourting you votes for a Democrat, do not' marry hiny; get rid of him right
off'y heis not fit to be o husband;” e told them if he was not clected they would
lose many of their rights ; told the women all depended upon them, and tosee that
thé men -voted for him.. -On St. Helena Island I heard him:speak. Thero were a
large number-of people prosent, a great many of: whom were womoti ; a feature. of
Republican meetings,: On that island - thero exists a Democratic club, consisting
mainly of colored young men, Thig-¢lub, in 18386, assumed cousiderablo propor-
tions, so'muech so that the Republican Teaders beeame alacmed, and held frequent
mestings there, when in previous years they did not have more than one as a rule,
At one of these meetings Smalls, addressing the old people, told them that thair sons
‘were being misled in: voting against him, and told them that the land they owued
‘was sold _to them by the ﬁepublimm party; that the Republiean party was their
friend and so was he; that their sens had joined the Democratic party who were not.
their-friends, as they know from years of exporience ; told theniof the time when they
had masters ;- told thetm of the persons who did own the lands upon which they:live,;
of Lad treatinent ;- of children being sold from their mothers, and of sears upon their
backs. - These things are caleulated” to stiv up ‘women, He told: themif their sons
-voted for a. Democrat to put them ol their lands; told women to-see that their
husbands and sons voted for him ;{0 be at the polls on election day and see that
they voled the Republican ticket. -Reynolds, the senator; Washington, a candi-
date for representative; Robinson, who was then representative; were there, and all
tatked intho same line;- The opposition to colored Democratic voters is deep-and:
wide ; it nmounts to aetual-ostracism ;. he is referred to atoall-times in the streots;
in the churchies, and all public places. It is made - race issue, - Theve igno very
great objeetion to white-Demoerats, but thie whole heft of objection and opposition”
i8 to colored Democratic voters. . Republican leaders have impressed the people—
Smalls being the foremost—have impressed the people with the idea that a colored
man.who votes for a Demoerat is hetraying his race; is endeavoring to put -them
hack into slavery.‘That the Democrats will not allow: the women to dreas, to travel
oti:the railroads and steani-hoats, to.give oxeursions, and will deprivesthenvof their
gehools and ehnrchoes, and-oven their lands. ~The Republican leiders have crentéd
sneh astate of things here that one doing & business andowishing snecessmuost endl
himself.a Republican-or have no politics at all. - If one shonld ask to be pointed o a
stord, they will invariably be: pointed to a store kept by wnan who calls himseli a
Republican, - There are nmuity merchants here who are-Danocrats—beeanse they have
their names registered in Daomoceratic elubs—who from foar of i loss ol husiness will
not; go to the polls on slection day, nor will they vote, hoeausa they will notl vote. the
Republican ticket; LR , : F o O

I attended a Democratiec mass moeting in Octobor last, The meesing was largely
attended ; mostly all colored moen attended, The speakerswepe Sonator Hampton,
Gov, Richinrdson, and Colo Elliott, - While Gov’e Richardson wagspeaking the Ladies’
Island Democratic ¢lubzeamo nup, with bamiers flying, beliind dram and-fife, On
their banner wag inseribed, “Ladied’ Island Colored Domocratie Clnb:? Thcir ecoming.
up proditeed considorablo excitoment wnong the: Ropulldicans, “The-elnly wis  wels
comed by Gove Richardson in glowing tevms: - While Senator Hampton was speak-
ing the mesting was repeatedly iitorrupted hy Smallsand other Repablican leadoers 5
alfer several ‘interrnptions by Smalls, Hampton brotught up his convietion for re-
coiving a hribie of §5,000 while State seéhator. Hampton tul«\ himethint e was tricd
by n jury consisting ot half colored Ropublicans and haltf white! Hampton asked
Sualls if that wis nottrae ! Smalls did not deny this, hut only elaiiwed that-he had
heen pardoned. - Col. Elliott spoke at: that mecting 5 he advocated there and else-
where in his specehos “increased facilitios for aducation—the Blair'bill, - Tle attacked
the colored selionl commissioner for failure to do his duties to thoe ¢olored people;
spoko of the attitudo of President Cloveland towards the colored people; -roferied
‘1o the appointient of Matthews, a colorad man, as recorder.of deods in the District
of Columbia; and spoke of the necessity of friendly relntions: hetween the races.
These. speeches wore: especially addregsed to the colordd peoplo; - and were altogether
concilintory. . Republicans tried to drive ‘through the erowd at-the njeeting, and
créated considerableé excitemont; one stoppecd the moeeting, and nearly broke it up;
the intention evidently wag to produce had -blood by making i row.. After fhie meat-
ing wis over'l was on Carteret street 3osawa crowd- throwing atonest, (he Ladies!
Islund eltub, . Many of the elub went into-a house on Cartercl. street; some ran down
the atrect, others, as thoy Iofl the honse, woerestoned and hooted and jeored ;ono at-
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tempt was made to stop.it.  Heard some of these p(éo;)'la say, “Run the Democrat
niggers ;7 women would ghout, “ Run tliem, run them ;7 others snid, *“ We will teach
niggers how to be Démocrats,” - There was so much fuss and commotion on the corner
at Finekew’s that I would not go past there, hut turned baek.  Thisopposition 1o col<
oreil Democrats extends eveninto churches and into the schools some of the people
will not send their children to school hecause the teacher happens to be a. Democrat
or liis relatives happen to be Democrats. - Tknow the fact that colored Deimocrats who
arg church members have not heen treated as cordially by his Republican church
brother since hie voted the Democratic ticket, I 'know colored. men who are church-
goers, and who are church members; who are Domocrats ;- I'havescen these Deniocrats
enter a chureh, go and take a seat, and persons sitting near them-wounld get up and
leave, ~And T heard them remark—these wero women—* I don’t seo how a nigger ean
bo n Demoerat and o chiurch momber too 3 I don’t want a Demoerat nigger tosit ¢losé
by me” - T know of i family who was opposed to & man marrying their hicce becanso
hoowas o Democerat,  During the Tast compaign there was considerable opposition to
Stalls in higcown party, eansed partly because they believed him unfit for Congress,
and vhat he had been a member of Congress four or five times, and they do not hear
of a single speech he has made or asingle thing he has done for the people of the
State or this district, - But they opposed him principally because of hig convietion
for accepting & bribe, The people are becoming more culightened, consequently
more sengible, . While many of the leadersof the Republican party assisted him in
“eanvassing the district, somo of them ‘did not even mention his name in a speech,
and did -not.even spy that he was u_candidato for office.  Sowme, while they aided
hiny in the canvass, on election day were entirely indifforent as to-Smallg’s eleetion,
and “did nothing for him. The Ropublican.leaders have inaugurated and- main-
tained sneh o systom. of undue. intluenee, - intimidation, social and religicus ostra-
cism against colored Domocratic voters that a colored maun desiring to vote for a
Democrat lias to be of nnusual courage and determination {o. prosent. himself at
the: polls o eleetion day.  Usually, and cspoecially in the last oleetion, the neigh-
horltood -of - the polls is sirrounded. hy-men .and . women in great nwnbers, with
sticks, clubs, harangoing, and making noises, threats; and often committing actual
wviolenee, Fhe eharaster of the men who excite these fears are-profossional poli-
ticgns and bunmmers, quarrelsome mon; and’ sueh women as they can-emplov: Tw
some parts of Beaufort County, especially on 8t. Helena Island tnd:in. Beaufort
and - Savannals Rivor, 8o bitter 18 tho opposition to colored- Democrats, that T helieve
i it were known that s coloréd man was going to tho polls to.vots a Doemosratic
ticket-he would not be able to vote ; the Republicin men and women would not lot’
Ainvvotes b believe an St Helena Island, Beaufort, and Paris Island; that a great
many eolored men were prevented from voting for Elliott for Congress hecanso they
woereafraid to present thomselves at the polls that day, - There.is not a free and fuir
election: inmany procinets. of Beaufort J)nunty, especially ‘in Beaufort, 8t Holena,
antdLadies” Islwid, - The most- of the troubles: in this county come. from Beanfort,
where mostoof the Repablican leaders regide and mako their headquarters,  On oloc-
tion day Teaders are sent to every poll in the eounby; and women-are there, usoed to
“distributo tiekebs and usé their in(lhmnuu. = The record of the Democratie party in
Beanfort, Connty iy good and aceeptable to a greatimany colored people.  They domnot,
interfers. with. Republican meetings; nor do they provent-a man fromevoting for o Re-
‘pablican if ho chooses,  Boanfort Connty is-under Republican control and has heen
sinee reconstruction, © The colored people have the best of feeling towards tho Demo-
cratic candidate for-Congress; Col Elliott, = He isa-native sonthoernanan, and slways
Hved in the neighhorhood of Beaufort. v parents were large slaveholders, and I
understand treated-their slaves kindly, -1 huve heard colored mon speak of tho times
he and they had intheir boyhood, - Col. Elliott has done-a groat. many favors for the
colored people and they think kindly of him for it; - Often hohas pleaded their enses
ineourt withent charging or receiving any feo - not: long since ho was concerned in a
case in whicla pices of property was in litigation on-8f. IHelona Island in.which
thieeolored  people were interested, - They wanted this piceo of pm{mrty to huild a
Jdibrary on; which-libravy wis furnishoed by northern subscribers and for the use of
the schools on St Helona, - The people of that island feel very gratéful townrds him,
Right-Tiero in thetown of Beaunfort he was concerned in gotting titlos for a'pieco of
property that was deeded for sehool purposes hy the Preshy terian Chureli North ;5 this
property has heen under the charge ol trustees ; thoese trustees woro all>Republican
leadors, On these oceasions his services were renderad free and without chargo.

CENTRAL SCHOOL-HOUSE,

oM Waaney, o witness of Tawful age, heing sworn, sinys
QUL State yonr name, occapation, age, amd place of yesidence.—A, E, Mitchel
- Whaley s favmer and trial justico; and reside at Edisto Island, 8, C. 5 and A6 years of
RYLGR
LG8
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Q 9, Do you know where John Jenkins and Charles Whitlock lived on 2nd Noven-
ber last? If so, state where,—A, 1 do; Charles Whitlock lived at Launrel Hill; John
Jonkins was working at a place ¢ alled Tom 8o abrook’s, and may have been sleepmg
at and had his goods at Ravenswood, ag his wite lived there,

Q. 3. Were you present at the Camp Ground or Central School-Honse 'p»(ﬂlm{z,r pre-
¢inet, where tho T'ederal box was held to receive the votes for (mngmssm.m from the
7th.district on the nd day of November last 3-~A. Yes:

Q. 4. How was polling place arranged?—A, The polls were held on the pmua or
opon porch of the Presbytoerian Churels, colored. . I was one of tho first that voted
that morning, there being presont at the time managoers and the supervisor, R, Jens
kins Mikell, I saw nobody that I recognized as marshal thero, T gaw no tickoets ex--
cept the Democratie ticket for Wm. Elliott, for. memsmmm whicli were on the hox
or near it, -

(Connsel for mntesmnt, J, H. Ostendorit, objects to so mueh of the foregoing answer
an i4 not r(‘s]mnmvv to the quoatu)n ?

Qi Wasthere any railing or inelosure of any kind around the polling place which
'uhmttml of the entrance and oxit of only one person at atime 2=A, None whatever.

Q. 6. Wero outsiders allowed to see and apeak to the voters while cwtmu theiv
votes T—A. They were not prevented, and they did so.

Q. 7. Do yoruknow whether or not: Rol’t Smalls had partics there for tlm purpose
of sesing that the colore® Republicans voted tor him 7—A, Taminformed that he had.

Q. 8 Did you seo any Republican leaders around the polls or in the neighborhood
thereof'; if so, do you know whether they were distributing Smalls tickets A, T
did; and I saw these men—Republican leade rﬂ~—dlsiﬂht:hng tickets and following
ithe men to whom they gave them until they deponited the tickets, or W h:msvm tlmy
gavo them, in the box,

Q. 9. What ofteck if any, would the fact that there was noﬂnng to preventoutsideis
from secing these colored Republicans when they voted have upon any of them who
may have wanted to vote ilio Demoeratic ticket t—A, Social ostracisim and fear of
corporal punishment wonld have proventod them from voting the Domocratie ticket,
L say this, for where the polly were inclosed at the State hoxes colored p«\nplu Came
in and brought in with {mm Republican tickats glw nothend by their leadirs, and
when they got inside voted the 3lt.u;,,ht Democratic ticket, slmwmg thereby what
their fear was removed hv being in.an mehmvd me- where thuy weore not wi welied,

()mfw-ckanunut ion
S ; Cow Cwe : Wl i » : s .

Q.04 How many- pﬂmons did you see come m \vmh (hv R("puhlir':m tl(*kut Mul ﬂu\n :
"()Yt' the Democratic tickot? ~;~~»A Soveral,

Q. 26, Canyon nmneany A, Ide clnm {0 name them, hoe: ansesome of then asked
ma-not-to say that they didit; heeanso it would Jiurt ilwm with their associates.

Qv 26, Will you namae g smg)u one who didnot make the request '—A, T do not
wish to do that, iu\u.mm) Woare gﬂttm" th(‘ﬂ(' pvnpln to \'ﬂtu nght, Jml Ldo nut wish
to i ve them away,

Q. 27, What.do you mmm by votnw right? ~~~A I mean by y niuw in.the mtuwsm
of* their employers, and with those who !mlp theniwhen thv are inneed, ,

Q28 Who are their employoers 1—A. Well, they are mostly ])(‘l‘ll()(l.li.‘» \%lnm and
f‘(l]()l‘()d . :

Q. 20, Will you name a colored Demoerat whn umplovstim persons ‘ﬂmnxmmhmwd 1
~A. Pat n proper police force on the island and I will name them,

Q. 30, Aro there any white Republicans on-the island who émploy those persons’ ?——‘
A Ldonot think wo havoe a white Republican on the island; they aro all Boie.

Q31 When you say ‘““vote the vight way,” do you mean to \ntn the Demoirt: mp or.
prubhmn tickot '—A. Vum the I)uummxtw, nf course.

Redirect

Q. 1. Were the parties who were giving tic kots to the mlnml R(\pul»lwmm well
known:to be Republie ang, and wera thuy eaders of tnat party t—A. They araleaders
of Umt party, mm 1 am m!oxmml wero in tlm pay. of the same, 5 L :

¥ i o S . IR T ) a

Q. 4. Aro you sure th Lt. voters wers spoken to hv persons nﬂwr than the ofticers of
nlm,hon whﬁn casting theiv ballots -—A. Yes, ,

Woro instanees of this kind numerous —A, anponing nﬂ‘ and on the whole
d:w \\*)mimvm' I'happened to by there.

Q. 6, Do you think that in voting with Hw mh‘rmth of their omph)wm the ('olmm\
voters of this island wonld bo voting in their own intervest f=-A, 1 ulnlnnhlmlly do.,

Q. 7. Why do you want a proper police force on the island bafore uaming colored
voters who vlmngnd their:Republican tickets for Democratic tickets before voting t—
A, 'To protect the colored. Democrats,

Q 8. Who from '—A. From the ¢olored Rupubhcmm.
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Attention is called also to tlm followmg extract from tbe testlmauy
of T. P, Mikell, on p. 827: S

QB W ore you at, the Cenfral Sehaol H otse” votmg pr(aunct on tho d ay of le elm»
tmn lust, viz, “the 2d day of November #—A L. was chmtmun of the h(mrd of nnm~
agersy for State boxes and was there, nEn - '

(.9, Was there an electmn forCDngr m}sn held at Ce;
‘dzu, 1—A. 4here was not,” :

Q. 10, Was there an eléction for megresamun beld on’ hdl‘stu Isl‘md on. tb*;t (Lw H
it 80, where was it held 1—A. There was, and held in the Preabyternm clmrch’a
porch-at the Canip Ground,

Q.11 7Are Cmmal Sehool-House and (,a.mp (}mund sepm‘ato zmd dx%m('t ])lau.“; 1
A They are; about H00 yards distance betwden the two places.

Q.12 Wore you at Camp Ground at any time during the day of the olection wlulu
he v oting was going on #—A. T was thero at least a half dozen times, I would leave
Awoananagers M the mm })owg and see. how tlun"a wem going. at the. Crmgresaxoxmi

“hox, 7
Q. 13, Please dvscnbe in a short mzd conuse manner lmw the votmg place at Camp
Gronnd was man: aged.—A. The box was placed at the edgo of tho church poreh;
Elliott’s tickets placed-on the box ; the elerk ‘writing on a barrel ; thére was no place
for'entry ov exit for the voiers; the box could have been e,mwdml at any time, © The
firsb timo I got there the U. 8. supervisor, Mr. I, Jenkins Mikell, was having  dis-
cussion with a -man- by the name of Bowers, whose ticket read. b Bowen,” whether
they should'let hint vote or not; the ydcmdml to.let him vote—I mean that the U 8.
sitpervisor was-having a dw,ussmn with the managers whetlier they should allow
Bowers to voto or not ;. the managers took a vote whether they should allow him to
votoor not; they demdvd that he should vote. The su;wrvmnr Mr. T, Jenkins MlI\e!!
protested ag,wrsr the same.. . I then went back to my box,

Q. 14. You said that Bowers’ ticket read “Bowen.,” What tmket do- you moan o

CA.Imean the registration ticket on which ho voted. }f w.fn pregenited to me at the
Stato box and I rofuséd foallow him to vote on it

Q. 156, Do you know whether or not the ballot-hox at the Federal poll was changed

~from one pl‘tm to-another at any time during. the day ¥—A; I 'went to vote myself
about $o'clock in' the atternoon s did not seo The box on the poreh of the chureh and
askedsomn-of the colored peop}o around there (I think-Titus Finley was the man T

:asked) svhere the box was, - He told me it was.moved to: thé enst gide of the churchy
I wentaronnd there and found the box perched upon a barrel. It could only he seen

“fronuone side of the road. T voted a8 tood on the barrel, There was only one
manager and tho elerk: there at the tim t onie-timo when T went there during the.

cdy tho U: S, supervisor, Major I. Jtmkmﬂ Mal\e}l WK su,tm;,; a8 oierk aml L nnlyv
Kw-one manager presont,.

Q 6. Was there any ratling or um,lnsnw nf :mv kmd 10 admxt 01 bh(s entmn(-o :md
exif of only ono voterat n time there 2— A, “There was not,  Tho barrel was on'the
ground and the manager: mttmg on L!m Htum ‘and the ¢lerk had to l)o call ed tn verify
my-regigtration (*i*l’tlhl'ﬂft. -

Q0170 What effeet, if any, wmuhl tlw

; alﬁ Sehool Honm) ou tlxat

mt, that ﬂwy could hu seen bv ontmdnra lnwu
“upon any eolored. R(»pnhluzm who may have wished to votesfor Col, Elliott 1—A, I do-
Jot-know - Tean only state what occnum ab the State boxes, where we had s, ulmg »
and where only one’ voter was: allowed to enter at u time, They wonld come fn-=it
ocetrred onee or twice that I know of—with Republiean tickets in their lingers, fixed
for (hem by theiv loaders; anil when they got into the room w mlld pnt them in t.hur
Joekits and vote the str ught—imt Pamoeratic ticket, -

Q. 1% Could the voters at the Congressional hox in Dhoth ponimnm in wlnch you h‘\w
it-boween and spoken to bv mnmtmm Othm‘ than the managers: and. oﬂwem of. oloc—
tion?- A, They eould,”

SQ: 19 Did you sde, my one: othie T than the ummgem and ofticors of eloction sposk
Htu or in any-way interfore with-any voter while voting or a!mut to vote, when you
Awere at the (,onvr‘o&mmm[ pullmg pim'e ?»—A,, dul non as I way nuIs tln-m n tew
mcmwnts wba tmm ) R BT S

: CWL T RIPP, 4 witness of 1@;;;;; ‘tga, ;:rmim'od h) mnw%bﬁﬂ ufmu dms mmm m eon?
tﬂsmnt hmng ﬂnlv Bworn, dopnmas as follows o o

Q. Give your name, age, and I“BSI(IOIN‘(%W*A h. ALA anp 2') ycarﬂ nf ugn b hiw
: Hvlmm Island, Beaufort Cmmty e T

Q. Wiliat, if any, ofticiyl pomtaon did vml th m rufomnm to Hm f“f‘btl()ll for (,mh
gressman, held in Briek Church prm'm('t, on: 8t. Helena Tsland, on the 2nd day of
Novemboer lant 1—A, T was_appointed one’ of the managers with John Brown and.
‘William Pritchard. "I went to hant up Joha Brown; he waa sick and wonld not
serve, I then saw, Pri tehard, sid e daid- ho would m)i sarve heeanse he was afraid
of'the people mobhiug him; that the people wore threatening all the white: Demo-
crats, and ho would not have anything to.do with it. I then went to Beaufort and
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got anthority to appoint some onein thmr »Lmn then T went to McDonald and éried
to et him; ho would not serve heeansge it }ntnrim-ml with his trade as a storekeeper ;
I then appmnmd Gabriel Edings, & Repultican and a good man; to serve with me,
We two condueted the poll; we appointed:Jackson W. Brown as clork ; he was also
Roepublican supervigor,

Q. Were there any mtorrupt,mm of the voting nt: ths Nl poll dmnng the day 1—A.
Yes, siry the fiest interruption that ocourred was their coming in, 6 or 8 at a time, to
vote, 1 then told them th b but one eonld vote at o time; and they must go outside
and come in one ab w time; T had a constable at the dom Wit they pressed aguinst
him so that he conld not liold the door clogeds Ttold him it ho could uot, erp them
back to lock the door, and he then locked tlw door ;- Lthen kept the door Joeked il
they quicted down, and then they ecame in very wnn one by one, - They came in a
crowd again after that, and we had to lock the door againg they pushed the constalle
away and we had to threaten to put. them out. The third time there was such o érowd
ontgide and were making such a noise until the clerk could not hear the names ealled
on tho registration ticket. I then locked the door and went aronnd the house to {he
piazza and told them that it wag nnponmhlo to ("n'rv on the.voting unless they
stopped the row,

Q. For what length of thue, dnruw t,h(m(' soveral interr upi iong you have deseribed,
was it necessary to keep the poll closed 1—A, Tho first timo for about Hminutes; thoe
second time about the same or longer; the third time I suppose about a quarter of un
hour or over.  When they saw I intended to clost* the poltor kv(\p it closed Gantt Look
them, the crowd, down tho road.

Q. Wasthero xmy threatening or abuse ot yourselt during the dz»} 1—A. One man
that came in to votoe and I asked him to show me his rm'mt umn certificate, ho re-
fused to do so, and said he would vote without showm«r it Lo me ; he said his hame
wasg on the hack all right ; hestarted toput his ticket into tho lm\, and I pushed his
hand away ; ho was wad, and looked provoked, and T told the constahlo to put, him:
ont; he kept porsisting in trying to voto and 1 would not let hime withont showing
hig rngmt ation certificato; after hosaw I wasd going to havo himpnt out he show ed
his registration certifie xm, his. certificats pmvwl to he. all right, and. e voted. - §
went out about. 2 o’e. and met this snvme man in acrow dof abont 1h-or 20, vight, by
the door, and lm then said to the othets, “CPhiscis the Demoerat that would not 1ot
me voto without showing my ticket: como 3(%& s nmh hine”- l Hwn passed on and .
took no further notice of him.

- Q. Waus Capt. Ward at the poll that (my ?—~ A. Ho came there Mmut 1t clock. :

Q. Did ho remaiu there all day Mh\r he came ?w/\ Nu, ]m mmw in .\ml onut every
)mw and then; hours between,

Q. What was the general fesling of the moteh: mtn on the wlmul i reforeneo to tlm
clection 3—A, They did not want to have anything to do with it at nll ,

Q7 Why was it that. L]wy (lul not want any thing to do w ith it.7—A Bcwumu it m-
jured their trado, :

Q. How or why would it injure ﬂmxr tr ade T—A, Beo ARG H ey were illraid thm,
would quit: 3myi1w from there and buy in- Boaufort; ﬂmv saich Capfs Ward wanld:
have to quit the ml wid, heeatise they ‘would not. buy Tom )um hoo.mw ho was a
])r'mm-rm; amd started a ])('mm*x.x,tu, clubat Coffin Toint. :

). 8ince the election have the lmpuhh(uum manifested their nmmlv townrls tha
Domoeratg t—A. Tho only man that ever ghowed any enmily tooneiwas ons the rowd
one day. Driving along T et twocarta; I gave part of thé voad, and the other diil
the same, when thes manin the other cart-behind said, “Whatdo you give that
imuooed Democerat the roud for? - You must notgive a Denmocrnt t!w mml Let him
got along the host way-hoe can’ , b : S

Q. Do s you own land on St. Helena l\l.md oA Yesy T acres, o

Q. Are you aowhite man or  eolored man 7 A, White man. '

Q. You spoke of Williamn Pritehand refusing to nct as a manager, I hn H l)onm(-mt
0}‘ W h(s]m!»hc“m ?«-A Ihs s l)mnoos'mt xmd aw hitdman; lw owny l uul on St lewm,
a 3‘). .

One 01 the ﬂm* vt hoquonth nmdv was that, tlms (ﬂw lwpubh an
negroes) would serve ]nu‘tws as Dr. White was served in the preceding
election,

In order to understand this, the ev ulun('n of Dr. T, (:. Wlntu which
is here inserted, must be read

CDr T T White (p:wn ()1)0), Miy one years uf‘ ago; mmm'v it I'\w irml )uﬂhm
resides at-Beanforts in 1884 he - was one of the managers of " the !‘wh‘m! poll: ‘Lt
Beaufort.: When about to Jeave the polling place with the other inanagers aftey
hawving canvassed the voto, was met by aninfuriated mob of colored. persons, who.
vmhsntly assanlted him .md threw hini to the ground by kicks and blows, _Hae got
awp and attempted torun up the stops of the building, pursued hy the moh, who were
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erying ont *“Kill the dam Demoerat;” finding e door locked, he ran down another
flight of steps and.appealed to Moses Frazier, constable, for protedtior Tazier took
Lim by the collar and got-hime intoa lowerroom, followed by the crowd, threatening

to kill him. ~ Frazier had to bar the.e
toprevent the mob from getting in

wraiice by locking the door and standing at'it
The c¢rowd then tried to get.in at the windows,
Witness’s son and othery finally eanie to his relief and he was taken honie terribly
Tirnised and Leatén s the end of the bone of his lett arve was broken; his fuce lacerated
‘and bleeding, Dlood stroeaming. from one side of his face down on~ joulder; and
with a’cut over hinleft eye,  His wotnds were dressed by a physician, and he carriod
Ligarm in a sling several week aftorwards, - The uassém{ting party - was composed of
‘men-and: women,: the women armed. with sticks of eliigar-cane; and some of tho men
with sticks: Eleven persons weras indicted, and one of the parties put-on trial, but
Ahere was nomissirial,the jury Boeing niostly Republicans, and the: Republican-leadors
exponsing the eanso of ‘the accused, “Amoug tha witnesses for the defense were the
contestant, Julius Washington, and T, J. Riddles, Republican State senator and rep-
resentative, o o0 oo T et e T Co e T T T

HANCE (REEN; a witness of Iogal-age, produced by contestec after due notico. to

contestant; lieing duly sworn, deposes us follows:

Q. Give your name, age, and residence.~~A. Chaiice Green ; am 47 yea
tive on-St, melexmilsland: Beaufort County, - & T
© Qs Arvecyoira colored or aawhite man T—A,. Colored,
A Were youl at
Yes, sirt o

sotion 1A,

the Federal poll on 8t. Helena Island at the iii_s

Waa the olection at that poll peaceable and orderly or not 3—A. ‘No,sir,.

, Tell us how. it was,~A, On the 2nd day of November, in the morning at 7o'c,, 1
“went to the poll to ssue tickets, and as qnick ns I'got-up 1o the poll there ‘wore 20
‘mensstanding, saying to me, ¢ Morning, Green ; are you going to issne tickots to
day 12 Luaid, “Yes.? “And what kind of tickets are you going to issun?” I gaid; 1
Rl going to issue Demovratic tickets tosday. ” Thay said, “ Give us your tickets, ho-
Ceanserwerhave @it to vote: thes ckots: quick and-get - home; we promised to voto
Ahe Demaeratie ticket;” and Lissned the tickets to theim, and the fiest nan that went
dipcto the poll wasJonas Howard, - Ho had a Democratic ticket, and he went up on
the plattormy and a great erowd of mans some up and tell him to come off the plat-
Jorme s S Hoyou don me oft there we will kill you; if any colored man go up o
“thie platform to voto-for the Demeodrats we will Kill him.”- SJonas Howard said; ¢ Let
e adone 3 1yvote for-who Lehioose,” and the same timo when he suid so; as quick as he
speak the word; they took hinrdown and tear up the tickets and tear his eoat, Ani
Laave him another ticket, and 1 told him o go and-poll it, and I followed him to soe
' 'y would touch him again, and after Lgot up there he took the ticket from me
went with himpand myself couldn’t go up, for the threats they made on me and
A told him (Jouas) to wait awhile; and Tleave hinein tho vosd standing up, - T
off a pices about o task in the road Lsaw six men-with clubs go up to him and:
Him-home from the polls they okl him togo home. from thepollif-he intends.
for the Democrats, as he said he said; “Yes; T made up mind to vote the
Demneratic tleketgand if « wvotetit Tawill go back - Tiome,” and he wenit home,

CNo NI T :

Qo Were thesdm with Jonus Howard Denioerats
Republienns: Rt I T T S
Why did those men to- whom-yon issited fickets say that t ey-would have to

cegickly andoget home or get away --A Beeanse they feaved. the Republican
swould-threaten:thein, to kill them and abuse wm, o They promised that they
Avonldido that, wmid wonld Atnme themd ont of the-ehureh. SAfter Howard went ofi’ i
sahd o the erowdiof Republican mien there, © Why don’f you loti man vote the. Wiy
Ahecdikes? -When Twasn Repablicnn Elet aoman voteto his ownmind, They hallooed
Aotme frony the erowd of thony, “You peod not say anything; you have heen loadding
ATy years, and yoare going to lead the Democratic: party now on the island, W
nstraeted by ouedeading mang now that any eolored mian that-vote Demoocratio,
i st hekitled on the island, or run Binvoft the island,” - My answor-was, ““You!
sean'tran nie of!, for L was raised on this islands” -~ Then L walked off from them, and.
alter that o great- number of men camo down the road, ahout 300 hoad of moen, and
e Republiean precinet ehaivman, and those mensaid, ““We don’t want your tickets.”
CFliis they said to the Republican precinet ehairman, - Wo want Green's tickets—that
dsCol IBHiovs tiekets 3 le isour Demoerat precinet ehairman,” and Tissued about
SHtieketse There wiin' noorowd thevedinfore, gl Ewonnted all-the tickets I issned

wha interferei or Republicany?—

f“!}lf‘.fhll_‘g_',, and had itoall put downcDiring that tiime” Mr; Crofut o npand he
Called me npsoon:as heccame apeand L owent to dibm and he asked mo what tiekets 1

st dssning, L told i Col Biliott Gekets” . Tle told nie Longhtota be nshanind
ot abont dssuing Bémoeratie tiekots on thedshands - Ftold hime* No, % al Bie
Witdked-oft and leave me, and Heowheel avonnd anidsaid tonie thit e lins all of the.
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“eolored- men on o blank that will never rab out, - In 89 the Ropublican party -expect
to got in position ngain, and they all, the Democratic men, will have to leave—*¢ go
avoer:in Georgia where the Democrats are. . By the colored men voting the-Denio-
“eratic tickes it isa shame upon the Republican men at the North who Trecd: thiom,”
And he called the men one by one to them, and, after they went to him, as fast they
wome back from him they had changed their opinion:; and one man came to me in
the morning about & hour afterI got there:and told mehe did nothave any breakfast;
that the cotton was up to the gin, and if I 'lend him a quarter-to.get something to eat
Tio would return the money as soon as lie was done voting and had ginned his cotton;
and-I'did not have but a dollar, so I refused to give him,  He hiad promised to vote o
Democratio ticket; had come preciscly to vote the Democratic ticket; 1f hoe did not
vote the Demnocratie ticket ho would not go to the poll, hie said.: And-after he went
to Mr. Crofut and eamo back, Mr. Crofut canie along with himycame with him across
the road and followed him up to the poll, up to the plutforin of the house, and he
went in and voted and came out, and then they both weut over to the other side of
theroad ngain, and he came hack to the tables the women were keeping out there tosell
grab, and told that woman to give lim some dinner, and she gave it to him,  She
asked hinywhat kind of dinner he wanted; what price.  He told her a fifteon-cent
plate, and she gave it to him,  Atter he done bis dinner he put his hand in his pocket
and gave hera dollar, and said “Giveane 85 cents chango; 1 got this money just now?”
Imade answerto-him, “How, you told me this morning you did not have any money.”
He said, ¢ My friend, T do not tell lies, - L'did not bave any money this morning. If
I had money 1 'would not borrow your money. - I jost now got this money from Mr.
Crofut, . T told hinu I was going to vote the Democratic ticket, and. he tohd mie that
he has no money to lend me, hat if I voté his ticket ho wonld lend me a dollar, and
then-he took the ticket-you gave me and tore it up and gave me-a Republican ticket,
and followed me to the poll and sec: that I did not get any more tickets from yow,
and aftor T threw the Republican ticket in then - yon could seo when I wenl ncross
the road to him again after T got dono voting.” T said-to him, “ Yes, I saw when yon
wentacross,”  He said, “ Mr, Crofut told mie thenthat I ean keep the dollur; I need
not turn it hack ; that I mast tell all the rest of the hoys to conme to him; ho wanted
to see them to talk with them, - Hesaid he would give moenore than one-dollar, bat
hedidnot think the island wasso mixed up with colored Demoerats: 1f he had known
T would have brought more monaey than he did foteh.” - What-made me:think that
M Crof ut did give him. themoney cortain becauss in-the morning before ho came
there wowers in the mjority of Democrats st the polls There wasn’t so mnch Re-
publicans there to make gevere threats; hut after-Mr: Crofut-got there about § hour
then they began getting thicker; they bogan to grow, thoy-commenced making threats
to the Democrats that was there. - Then My, Crofut, seeing that-he was getting a-crowd’
of Republicans, then hie went to the platform whers. the poll was and commenced.
making aspesch to the Republicans, . Hae was about 3-feet from the polly-and the
noise the mon made worried Mr, Flipp, the wanager, in tho house, and hg eame onf;
and-asked them please to go a little way oftfromthoe poll.  They hallooed ot to hine
“ (o to hiell; you damned rebel son ot biteh,  You are going to eatel holl hére to-
duy, you and all that vote for you” And he wentiin and had to close thedoorabout
hatf aw:hour, andafter the 4 Hour was up ho opencd-the poll agnin, Just after he
opened the poll again: Frank Jenkins pot. the Demogratic ticket fromme going up to
the polly and Cyvus Jenkins went to Wi and asked hine ©® Whab are you going to do
with-that ticket?”  Hesaid, ““I am going to vote it = Cyrus said, ‘““Not to-dayl; we
Republicans intention not to lot your Democrats vole here to-day,” and Sharper Riv-
ers, that man sitting over yonder, ho s one of the men said o5 and then Frank
Jenking wentooft and a great crowd-followed-him,-and when ho got ap on.the plats
form Cyrus Jenking: went up to hineand jorked the ticket out of his hand and tore it
up, and pulled bim down oftt tho platform and_said to him; “Frank Jenking, do you
think we ave funming 1 Wedo not intend to ot you vote” " And Sharper-Rivers said;
“No, dow't et hin vote,” and Rivers had a good stick in his hand, too, and -1 was
afraid of his stick ‘mysclf,  Then Frank Jenking came to me and gof another ticket
and wont to vote it, and then-he went home, beeause thoy told hincif ho stayed-there
they woild beat hinvon the road, e B T I

S Q.- Did you notice. Crofut’s pocket when he first caimo co the polla that wmorning 1—
A. Yes, when hecallod me he had a heavy-pockoton hing and when he was going
back to Beaufort in‘theevening I'noticed his pocket awvas light, “T'he -reason T noticed
his_pocket when hewas going back, oné'man went bo-the table and said Mr. Crofut
had it for a free table for the. Ropublican party that vote the Republican ticket, I
denied - them, and told them it was not-so, - They said, ““ It youdon’t believe us, youn
waloh,” The four went to the tableat one time toshow me that it was so. - And they
wintoand ate and walk off, and did not pay, and-that made me believe it is 80, and
they spid-to me, 4 You Domocrats can’t-do that,” Isaid, ““No, becanse we are poor 3
then Tdeft them, - "Mreo Pritchard was sitting down by an oak troe near the poll; I
went'to liim and asked him if he had dono vote; Lo said, “ Ves?” and a-man, Cyrus
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Jenking, came up there at that time andsaid, ¢ You damiied-rebel son of abiteh, you,
you are as poor a8 1 atn now ;- if vou vote a Doemocratic tickot you had bettor leave
this island.”  Mr, Pritchard is o Democrat, and ho said nothing to hiny, and 1 wont”
haek across the road to Mr, Crofut again, and Iéft them there, and Mr. Crofut told
e, 16 18 good that Teame over on the istand to-day:; if I'didn’t come oyer youi wonld -
huve had s mggority ontherisland? and I'said to him, ““Yes, T would; if T hal the
uieans that you lad, te get the election with,”  He said to me, * Why didn’t you go
i to-Benufort and get-it 17 Isaid, “1was thero yesterday ; T did not get any, even
to got dinnoer; the people T voting for, they don’t give mongey, they jnst want.a man
to-vote us they like,” I thon walked-oft from him aud went back to the poll, '
Q. Do you know ‘whother or uot the poll liad to be closed during the day. of eloc-
fion, at-the Federal poll that you have beey speaking of, in consequence of distirb-
ances around the poll = A, Yas; in the morning about 4 hour after'the. people com-
wenced voting, - Alfred Watkins weont to Hastings Gantt, thie Republican leader on
the islandyand told him that all the managors and constables are Deiocrats, in the
place:where they were voting, all oxcept oue, who was the Republican supervisor;
and then Huastings Gantt, who was representative in the legistature, started fron ine
with ahout 3001 40 more men following him ina erowd, and pushed the door open,
where thoy were voting at the sane time; and stopped the voting—the voting had-to
stop then—=and went to Mr, Fripp, the managor, and said-to him, * Woe must have a
Republicun constable,” Mr. Fripp said, “I have to do according to the law.” -Fhen
e walked out and they all followed lLiim, - All these men were Republican men, And
the voting comnmenced again after that, After a while George Rivers, a Demoerat,
wentin 1o vole, and Mr.. Gantt wentiu fo where lie was—1I do not Xnow whether to
vote ornot-—hut Geo, Rivers, the Denocratic man, went to vote, and Gantt said to
ARivers, L come to ses what ticket you vote; my friend ; Tand yon are-good friends,
Ithink well of you; Ihope yon are not going to vote that ticket you have in your
hand.” -~ Rivers said to by, “Yes, I'am going to vote it,” at the same time he layed
his ticket on tho table and felt - in hisg pocket for-lis register paper, and became dis-
puting with Gantt, and Rivers’ ticket was a Democrat ticket, and the fuss then caused
the poll torelose. - They were inthe house; Iwent and eall Rivorsout and talked with
hiny, and said- to-Mr. Gantt, * You ought to b ushained to dispute with s man for
the way he votes, and: you was a vepresentative 8o longa titme; to-day is w day wé™
oughtdo Keep quict at the polls et aman vote the way he choose; don’t thireaten n
mian and go ou i that way,”  He said to me, “ I did.not threaten any one, Grécn; I
Alon’t think thatany colored man has o right to veto o Diawmocratic ticket, aind I don’ts -
see ow can they-do it; they remomber the time wlien their owner had them dowu
and treat them worse than a man treat & good dog; it the eolored peoplonotice and
see-how they treated at the pemfentiavy, they awould: nof talk with a Democrat to
vote forthem for no money: in this world,” and L left him there, = 0 o ‘
< Qo During the last political canrpaigi and Dofore the slection; what was the behav-
iorofthe Republicanstowards the Democrats and towards the men who wanted to vote
the Democtatie ticket '— Ao Very bad. During the last campaign T used.to bo the Ro:
publican-precinct ehairman; but the threat of -the leading moen of the Republican
purty charged e that 1 aim a Democrat, while I was a Republican precinet ehair:
mar, - Then Ileft the Republican party and weitt over to the Dumocratic party, to.
let them see that Foould do as Lehoose, Teallod the 1st meeting for thie Ropublicin
party on- 8t Helepa Island, at Dr. Peters” shop. . The attondance at that moeting,
AMrcBamplield, - Mr. Wheclory and the fiest- nan thot opoened that meeting was W, 1,
Sheppard, and Lo said- to the esting @ “We are hers for one purpose; to toll you
the trouble the Democrats put this State to. They don’t allow the eolored ropro-
sentatives in the honsoto vote; the law thatthey aremaking is too hard for us to livo
hy. Fadvise you gentlemon tostick by the Republican party.  ‘That is tho party that
Treed yoroand:gave you brewd to dato Dinderstand the other day that the colorei men
b o Democraticelnb on the island;. Why; gentlemen; it i8 best for-a man o be dead
than to vote a Democratic ticket,” - Mr. Whesler got ap and he advised the poople
Sthatany man who voted the Damocratic tioket must bo run off the island. T don't
see where any solored man can vote for any Domoerat or white man, T advise you to
vota-for your-color.” - And then one mnan asked Mr - Wheeler this questions. ¢ How
shidl we got the Democeat off the island 17 Ha said: “The way to get thom off is
Lorun them ot At the Brick Churclithey held a mecting, and Gen'l Smally, a Re-
‘publican leader and Congressman, said i ¢ Old-man, 1 call you to toll you this, the
troublein the world about the Democrats in the State are trying to geb you to be o
stve, to-vote for them, ~If Mr, Klliott goes to Congress you will all he klaves, and
e Jand will wll take away from yon, = Ladies, let me tell“you, it your hushand vote
a Demvocratie ticket, T advise you 46 Jeave him,” because women areso good to. man |
fill they can control the man to go the right way to vote the Repiblican ticket,
SOl man, lot motell you something, if_your son vote the Democratic tickeb run
i o your Jand.” ~ One man in the crowd said: “ God’s trabh, man, I was going
to vole the Domocratic ticket, butthie way the general talk now I can’t vote it.” I
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-advise youally” said Gon’} Smalls, ¢ to turn them out of the chureh,”  Old Tadt How-
ard; he is & deacon in theehnreh ; e said to Gew’l Smalls+ T am a deacon ot Brick
Church, and any of my members: vote a Democratic ticket I will sure turn-hiim out,
for any man who vote the Dentocratic ticket his wife must not respect-hin any more
than a beast.” ThenJoo Robinson spoke, Sl S e R
Q. I he the man they call Red-lhot Joo or the ‘Ring-tuiled Roarer 2—A.-Yes. ~Ho
said, “ Gontlemen, I advise you all on this island not to vote a Democratic tickoet; any
mati who vote a. Denioerat ticket on this island, T advise you to drive him off this
islandy if you can’t get him off) get a gun and ron him - offy they are not itten to
stay on-thig island, and L advise the women to leave their husbands; that it is dis-
graceful,” “This is the. cause, by the advico of the Republican léaders, that all this
threaton and trouble is on the island. - Sammy Green used to be i State senator,
Republican Jeader. He said ““ho used to lire o flat to aman when the man was &
Rupublica, and when he fonnd dut in 1834 thist the man voted for Col,-Elliott—this
man ig i-colored. Democrat—when the man-came back to himeto hire the flat again
to carry wood to Beaufort, and when lie came to his gate and knocked;and he then
drove him from the gate, and the man would not-go from the gate, and:heeame ont
and the man asked hincwhat he hal done to him that heshould drive -him fron his
gato; hegaid ‘You done nothing t6 me, my friend; bhut Ipledged my mind that any
colored man that voted the Demoeratic tickot comes to my gate sick or going to die
eithery anything ‘I have to save ‘his 1ifo I would not give him; in any weather or
storm he should not come inmy yard.” LEven if he go-on tho road and meet auyond
sick and he is to'cull anyone to assist him to save his life, ho would” not do it = And
the man. got scared - then and canie back to him and promised hingin 1826 e will vote
the Republican ticket, - And that is tho way the people o 8t Helena: Istand must do
the same, for Democrats is miserablo creatures.”  And Mr. Whecler, schivol conmis-
sioner of Beautort County, said, *“Gentlomen, what Mr.oGreen says ig just so and
right 5 Ldon’t beliove any colored man has a right to vole for any Democrat, beeause,
gentlomoen, yow are freo on this island, and the way to do with Demoerats-is to put
thenr aside,”  And every time the people come into Beaufort and see Gen'l Smalls
and -Mr. Wheasler they go back houie and commence mnking threats and run the
mens what vote for the Democrats about on thoe island. . One day [ coane into- Beau-
fort, me and my wife, and -1 met Ned Magor on the way as 1 was coming, and he’
sail to mo, “Chance Green, you vote for Eiliott now and you belter leave this ishimd,
and you bhetter not coine back ;" and when he said that my wite was frightened and
scared, and 1 kept on down tothe ferry and puid the ferryman 5 els:; his fave, amdhe
refused to carry me, saying “You are a Democrat; I don’tearry anything across the
forry for o Democrit; except the man himself.” -Aud I thien took the bag of potatoes
ard flung them on the wharf; Iasked him what was the fare tor it, and he said
there was no-price at all for it; he was not going to carry it L did not say much to
him, becausge about -cleven Republican aen were there, and they were all making o
threat on me. - They told him to bring me across and ‘Lfmy woild:-drown me hefore |
got-over on tho othor side to Boanfort, because, they said, thove i nio lnw fordlrown.
any colored man; to drown a Deémocrat; because in’'84 the wowmen and ehildren hept:
D, White and Moses Fraser on the dayof election, and there was nothing dono to
theiny and-so they can do the same to me; and then I wonld not comoe: neross i that
boat; Twaited for the noxt -hoat, After we got in Beaufort: forrmaen mot near Rut-
Tedge’s barber shop andasked 'me where I stayed, L -did not say anything to: them.
They said i they-kiew whore I stayed they would shoot e, and I wont to Daniel
Juiiking, w colored Republican of Beanfort, aid asked hitn it ho knew who those nien
weres theirnamed.  Ho would not tell'ine, and T-turned baek, @oing to Mr. Talbird’s
oflice ;1T asked one_of those Republican inti what thoy wanted to killano for; he
said, “Lwant to kil you bocause yoit voted o Democriatic tieket) " then T lelt him
and went to look for a policoman; when I canite hack they were gone ; my wile stand-
ing right by, at Jenkin’s, a cotored Ropublican; and she heard threo men threaton
mio aid inquire who Iwas, and where Iwis; shehuanted wicup and was erying and
toldime of it Iididn’t see them, but told hiee to go homo as quick as we cang and
whilst wo wore going across the forry; noar the shore, w crowd of-dittle-colored hoys
were flinging in the hoat and said, “ Phere is- o Dumocrat man - in-that boid; Jot us
kill hiny”” - Women and-all whenover 1 come into Beaufort threnton and -curse me
beeause L am o Domocrat man, and say, “the day when Gov, Humpton haud a speech
in:Beaufort, aftor the speesly In the evening, that they all got bricks rendy:when the
Democrat elub from Ladies Island going home, they heat them and ehuuked at them
and made thom run overboard ; that- nothing was done to them, and the  colored
Reopublican women on St. Helena™ Island must, do the smne;” und‘ﬂm,y«lid; I wad
from home one evening; when I got back I et my wite crying. 1 asked ber what
she was erying for; she told mo she had to ery, becuise ib iy pretby cold, and she had
aoyoung baby in-her-hand ; beeause the honso that 1 live inhad to be pnlled down,
I said;, “ who saidso P2 At that time.my mother-in-Jaw ciune in 5 oshesaid, ©Chancee,
move your houso off thislaud by next week ; you vote for Elliott; got on Elliott's land ;
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don’t stay on ny land'y T been overto the speech the other day, and I licard from the
Repuoblican leading mon that we must drive you who vote for My, Elliott-off our land,
Fht it 34 their intention to turn us back to slaves” = I folt 8o worried 1 went to
wy father-in-kow g he said, ©“Yes, you must - go” “In. the morning I went over to
George Rivors' place. . When F'got back to- iny house, T met wmy mother-in-law abus-
gy eliifdeeny cursing them and driving them off the. plice; and saying. that 1
“osold the children to-thoe Democerats, hut the Deniocrals going to cut up their ——."
Thew Ieamo aver to Begufort on Saturday.,  When Lwas going-back Imet Mr. Tom
Reynolds, colored Republican leader and State senator, and hoe said to o that 1'had
miade auoaflidavit about the eolection ; this way after tho olectiony wud if T would
deny it Dwounldbe satisfiods That is, if I would deny’that thore was any viot or
tH«m. at- the poll, Lwould besatisflied forit, - I'told him, ““No, I ean’t tell alie like
(M Fthen left him, On tho next Sunday-Jolinson Atking ¢ime to my house, and
toldome i L heen out to chureh to-day. Litold him ¢ No”- Hoe.said, Thonmas Rey<
nolds was onfl toree you to-day, andhe tell mo to tell you to como vt to John Fripp’s
thisevening, hie wanted to see you particular; that he would pay you to deny, to
sy noy that no threats were at the polls, L did not go.  Twas inomy houso after
vlection, sitting down; and March Washington, a colored Democrat, was not at home,
snd hivowile ran, coming up to my house crying, -asked mio. to go to her house. 1
asked her what was-the matter, . Shesaid Frank Brown told licr that two mon were
Jaying avound her house, - Each had a gui, ‘and he asked them what thoeir names,
They would  not toll‘their names; just asked for March Washington. They just
stayed i tho woods, and would not come out in the old fickd; and she was fright-
encd kil she ranout aud loft all ber childrenin there, And I was afraid togo with
Liew, beeanse the threats on tlic island wereso groat that 1 wasafraid,  One day after
election my mother ran homo to my house, and told me that four men camoe up to her
howse and-asked forme, and when she saw themecoming up to the house sho heard them
say, “They. just want: to sco me; they will kill me,”  When they got up to the
Liouse then they asked her for me, and she asked them: what they wanted, and they
sadd, CThey just want to see e, Sho siid “She did not know where I was,”? and
they usked hier, © Could she tell what day would I come up to hoer house.” -~ She told
them, “ Yeu, they niist stay thero till she comesghack ; she is going to the store,” -And
they ‘did stay there awhile, but she did not know how long they staid,  She was
afraid T might be coming along the road at the samne time, and they might doas they
suy; nnd sho ran, anid walked sone, and.came home, and told mao about-those 4 men
Cccoming up-to Kill ey and told me hest not to come ontoof my honse at night. And
SLdoso up o now. 11 do come out of my Tonse st night T1L.bo sure-to-be Kkilled.
Aud then after they did not find -moe to my mother's hotse, they came to my houso
the next night; and I have o bad dog to my door, and when they got there the dog
barked after them, They did not come cloge up oo tho house; and tho oot was
shiningy and-Lwas going ouf of thedeor tosee who the dog was barking after, and
iy owilcctollme notto go oat to Tet her goout and see, on the pinzza, and shio. woent
ant and ealled the dog to Tier, and asked these men what thoy wanted.  They asked
Cshe it bwas at home, - She said, ““Noj ig there-anything particularyou wint to sce
Shimcfor=<2 Phey said, ** Yes,” but will’, wait till they see e, and one of thew asked
shesir Ll be home to-night. "She told him- 4 No,” she did-not:know i T will be
Chome tosnight,” and they went oft a piseo inthe wood, and lay out thers ol night
didn’t, go ot till beforoday in the morning. Before thu election the peopie on the
ishands anawde thredts, They never ade their throats so heavy till Gen’l Sinalls
Avent ovordlioreand made his speech, Aftér Sheppard was thrown out of the con-
Caention in Beanfort, the awhole, pretty near - the: whole- island of colored mon, was
© poing to voto for Col, Elliott; and nfter Gen’l'Smalls gone over there and talked to
Cthemy then the threals hecame heavy outhe island. - The poople on-the-islind 1ell
hirn, *CJustthe simeas how you throw out:Shoppard out of the convention, they
o oubd Hhrow hin out: too, and wonld.vote for Col.Elliott,” ~ And Small proinised to
S cpeopley il they wonkl vote: for-hiny, and he gets elected to go to Congross,*ho
owonld-pay Sheppard-the samo money whicli e would: goet-as Ropresentative; il not,
She wonldoappoint him to @i oflico in Washington. . The people: said o him, “ No, wo
vather Cols Hiott to go o Congress: this time.”  Then he and w-young man: named
Kt Cliplin: gob. to quarreling, while lie was “on-the stand,; hecause Kit Chaplin suid
Iewas roing 1o vote for Col Klhott R ' G
Qe Hadd-the Sheppard you speak of héen a candidate for iomination in the Repub-
Cieansconvention for member of the Jegisluture :-—A. Yes; siry he ran,and-had 416
Republicinmen to 8upport him, amd those same wmen turicd right around and were
going Lo supporl Col, Kliott, : ‘ = :
o Was Shieppard defeated in the éconvention for the nomination =—A. Yen, sir; ho
s defeated hy Gen’l Simalls, Republican Congressman. ; -
S Didcthad faet ereato st rong feeling agaiust Smalls on St Helena?—A. That
created all the evil against himgand people didn’t agree to support him any- moro.
. Thewy as 1 understand youy Smalls tiado that promise to pay Sheppard: the sal
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ary he would have got, or got huu a good, ‘sppomtmm:tz, in ox(lor to got tho people to
Vube for him 1—A. Yes, sir,

Q. You stated that :m!tm' Smalls hiad gmm over on the mmmi and auado specelies thoe
threatening becamo heavier; was that threatening common all over the island 7—A,
You, siry after -Smalls.came over on'the island the threats como heavier all over the
island, Betore the election both men and wmxmn, Republicans, they even Lhm:;tcncd
Capt, Ward, keeping a store over there,  Capt. Ward is s whife store-keeper.

Q. What Kind of threats did they make t—A. They made outrageous threats; that
if o voted for the Demoerats he must leavo the island y that they would not trade
with him, and-would not buy from him, and wouldn’t sell their cotton to i and
tell him it he tell on them what done on election day they wouldi’t trade with hint,
A man told him that day before yestorday, on Saturday. The threats on the island
are severe on the men what vote for the Demoerats ; ovenin tho chureh; they thrd 1
in the chureh, ** w man vote the Democrat ticket shall be turned out of the ¢hurel.”
They had i up to the chureh about it, and threatened me to the church; that il 1
votul a Democrat ticket Linust be turned out of the Ebenezer Ji.wpt»mt Church of St
‘Helena Island ;- and the reason they tell me of it is because I call for nmiy money that
I throw in to hup build+it. - "T'lie threat was 1ore severe overy time Gen’l Smalls
como over-there, "The threat was 8o severe on the ®people over there lest Col. Eliott
woild geb more votes, 'l‘lmy weore .umul of the threats and went back home, a good
part of theny

Q. Do you wean that th(, offects the: threats had ot the puople pmvmtml (m} Kl
liott from getting mmore votesT—A. Yes, sir; peoplo layed around the polls till tho
polls closed to see if the threats would cease, so they could yote for Col, Elliott.

Q. Did they vote 2—A., No, sir; and the intimidation and threatening at thoe poll
by Mr. Crofut made a great many people votu for Smalls that came to vote for 1 1-'
liott,

Q. On theday of eloutum were t]mm any women at the Federal poll on St. Helena 71—
A Yes,

Q. What were they doing there 1—A. hmxm werd thers making throats and raising
a crowd, saying that let us club theso men from here as they didk: Dr. White and
Moses Fraser in Beaufor t; the men that voted the Democratic ticket, 1T moean, 1
walked up by them, and tlmy surr mmdml me and took away five ])eluoumtlc tickets
fromme and tore them ap,

Q. Have these throats coutinued since tlm L]U(’t”)“?"‘*A Yes Sineo the election
the threats huve grown worse; every time they see i mau wmmg to Beaufort—when
Gen’l Smalls ig in Beaufor t.wwlmt knows Gen’l Smalls, he carvies threats back.on tho
island; tlm threats is very severe on the mhmd to Demoorat w}orul man and white
i,

Q. You w.y that condition of (hmgs. umtmnu«) now !--A, Yos; 1xglxt now.:
oy What effect hias that condition of things upon men-giving testmmnv in this con=
fest 1—A, A great deal of effect. 1t makes them afraid to come; afraid they may e
killed on their way back hnmo. Manv of: them wonkd cotme, hut they are amud t,n
come right now.

Q. Have the Republicans wade anv Ld]k on the island about the tostimony tlm wit-
nesses have given hore T—A. Yes, sir,  The way they tilk on the island makes myself
almost afraid to come this morning. That is the reason I ¢ane lute as Tdid,. They
persudde men now that was to the poll to vote tor Col. Elliott, and wero afraid of the
threéats frmn the Republican . party and went back home; tell them to Biky now that:
thoy wasi’t 1o the poll-to vote that day; smd BOIM whu did vote fnr (,nl I*‘Hmtﬁ to
sy that t,huy vote for Gen’l 8malls,

Q. Do you know Jenkins, who keepsu ruﬂmumm or cubnw-hmmu in tlm tmvn of
Beaufort; a colored man¥—A, Yos, sir, ‘

Q. W!mt; is be?—A, Republican, - S ‘ -

Q. Do you know Emanuel Haynos, T arquin- bmu.ll Wlllmm anmwmd Tom linn-
‘ner, Folix Bunnm,(xmrgo Rivors, and March W,mlnngtun?w/\. Yes. l‘hoyurv colored
mon. Onlast Friday I was going home from Beaufort; 1. J, Cohen, colored Republi-

an, met me in the street and mado a threat on me, that if 1 be’ hmu a dittle while he
will show mo that the Republicans will put e inthoe gusrd-houss, and he tried in:
themorning by My, Collins, tlm intendant, a Republican,” They will have me in il
that I (,an’t:gw«s any testimony; they will huve their eyes-on someone they will mlch
boforo morning ; and that oné 73 Mareh Washington, a colored Democrnt.” ~

Q. Is L. J. Cohen a relative of Gen'l Smalls?—A. sz, HiT; he sivys ho is Gien?’] .Sm.lll
cousin,  He calls Gen’l Smalls bubber.

Emanuel H.lyncs (pwg(, 547) te%lhm

Ho is a colored man, thirty-seven years of age, lms rosnlcd on Ladies Island sinco
1870, Hoattended tho mass meeting at Ba.mlm't aml dencribes what took place there,
For wix or-cight years witnoss-had boen exempt from work on public highways on ac-
coutit of phyawal disabilitios. Samucl Green, Republican loader on Ladies Island;
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!unnm]y State scnator, and now-one of tho xu.ul uﬂlwrs askod witness (lm‘mg the
unn]».ugn low ho was going to vote. - He answered that hi6 liad voted the Republican
ticket for fourteen yoars, but would now vote the Domocratic.  Green told witiness
that it he conld-vote with the Democrats he' could work on the road, aud since thu
vled t,xun Green has served witnuess with the following summnions ;

STATE un bnuru Cmmmm Baaufurt C'O\'('nf_/
o EMANUKL HAYNES

You are liereby required to ho and appoar ak bamt Holona rod brnlgu on Monday
at 7 o'clock, a,mu, Jannary 24, 1887, there to work as dn'c(,t,ed for three days.
Herein fail not.: . « R

s : bmm L GREEN,
; Loud. ()vcrsm'

Green: put. witness back to work on the wad fmm rovi "ng,o, beeauso wxlm 4
voted s -he pleaseds” Before election the coloved Demooraty on Ladioy’ Island were
trented - shantefully by the Republicans. They were abused in public; and were
threntened to be Killed out becauss they were Deniocr abs, - Witness was threatened
fo bo killed three or four titmes by Larry Green, cousin of Samucl Greon, who iived off-
s pistol four times - in witness’ presence, and othor times at his house repeatedly.
At the polls the Democrats were told not.to lot 6:0'clock cately them tlwm; and Larry.
Green fired oft his pistol and said; ““ Look out, Democrats.” ,

tome Democrats have had to 1owvo the ls!'md, and wxmem i constanbly c\poutmg
trouble, und belioves hoe will have to leave the island,

Witnoens gives the names of nine ren, all colored, who pmnuaod to vote for con-
testeo ;- hut would not-on account of threats, 1 the pvoplu hwd their free will con-
testeo ‘would have e arried the poll,

All but five or six Dmum,mts left tlio pollu as soon-as they. voted.

It appears from the record that Samuel Green was pmsont at the
giving of this testimony,

The  witness, lunumuel leynw, Was rec alied o'n the,next, dny .aiml_
testitied (page 562): e

On that morning ho had beou tlnemmwd with ahe mnw by David (xrocn and I* ruuk
Frazier hocause of tho testimony hehad givon. . Ax wmmaesa was aboub going - down
tho uvm to-his work: these men sursod and abused witness, and threatened: to -break
hiv neck, boecauso of his testimony. '{T'he language used by theso mon is too inde-
cent o be incorporated.in this roport. - In consequence of this and for-safoty of hiy
lite, witness turned bick, and came to Beaufort: tor pmtootmn. David-Greon told
it that Samuel Green had reported what witness had testitied to. O cross-oxam-
iationy inereply to thequestion as to whether wi itnoss wian then testifying simply to
help along the contest, withess answerod as follows: “I don’t care anything about
this tlmxg here my: lifo is what I am after, L am not safc on acwuutol Lhcm)
threats: coming. personally to me. - Lam not safe.”

Aaron Al.ston (page o.)l) volorod, age JJ

, Residid on Ladies Island,  Was asmomber of thv Lmlms lal.uld l)unmcmt)c ‘lnh,
and wad ab the massneeting wt Bosufort. . Desecibes pelting of the elub with brick-
hats. Daring tho cumpaign witness’s 1ifo was threatenod becuuso e wis a Demo-
eraty Hae had chargo of a Sabhath-schiool, and was told that *“ No Demoeratic nigger
shall teach our ehildren,” The sehool was broken up on this acconnt. They threat:
ened to kick the Democrats out of the church, "Thore was a elub.of women organized
to prevont Democrats from voting, - And Samnel Green and other leaders told the
women not to et the Democrats come in their-houses, — On-eleetion_day James
Green, brother of Samuel Green, tried toanakoe o fiss with a Democrat named Dever-

.ul\, lmd witness lind to drive Devereans oft in his buggy to prevent a row, - They

et l'ug_,u crowd of women o the road at Sanrmel Green’s house; armed with caies
and sticks, - Withess's -horse wak caught by the hridie, and jerked about, because be
was driving a Democrat,  Demoerats were: threatoned daring the day, - Many men
wlio pwmisvd to vote the Democratic ticket were afraid to. du so-on m‘umm «)l‘
threatss particidarly of Samuel Groen,

lobert Housmnk(pngﬁ 565 i), olm*ml, age Hm*ty five:

CLiveson Ludiey’ Island, - Deseribes tho disturbanes of the meoting at Beanfort.
Contestand and other Repabiican teaders said in theirspeeches that any man voting
for contestes would have toleave Ladies Isbund, Samnol Green told me Tshonld uof,
slay in the chireh, - On election day there worva great many women ot the voad with

§. BRep. ) —
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sticks, threatening fo mob the Demwocerats,  Contestant told themn in s speech to
turn witnhess out of the chureh it he voted tho Democratie tickoet.  Witness has heen
tireatencd with death, and had to stop digging phosphate rock beeanso i6 kept him
out at night. - Republicans threatened to hurn down the store of Tarquin Dilbert, a
colored Detocrat, - Contestant collected $17 from the Ladies’ Island chareh, ‘

William Lockwood (page 557), colored ; age fifty years: ‘

Lives on Ladies’ shad, Aftended o meeting hield hy Republicans on Ladies’ Island
day before the election ; many women were there, all with sticks,  They said they
had them to kill Democrat dogs,  Mr, Blliott was to speak on the-island that day,
and these women said he should not pass them.  Contestant spoke at the mecting,
Said that any woman married to a Democrat, she must-kick him out of the house.

Tom Bouner (page 558), colored ; age about forty-two:

Lives on Ladies’ Island. During the campaign there wore many threats by Repub-
licaus ot killing and whipping Democrats.  Jack Johnson, a prominent Ropublican
and delegate to tho convention, said the Republicans intended to carry the island or
Kill thoe last daimn man on it.. On election day the women behaved just like they
intended to fight a battle, according to the elubs they had. They said they intended
to kill out, whip out, and diive out the last man that voted the Democratic ticket.
The Democrats Ieft the polls carly for fear of trouble,

Felix Bonner (colored), testifies at page H62 :

He is forty-four years old, and has lived on Ladies’ Island for nine years; belongs
to the Ladies’ Island Democratic Club, and earried the elub flag to a Democratic mass
meeting October 22, 1886, - On the way back from the meoting the members of the
club were brickbated,  From that time on there wero continual threats made against
the Democrats ; but for these threats the Democrats would have carried the polls. On
eleetion day there were women at the polls with elubs, using such threats as  Wo will
kill you Democrat niggers to-night;” ¢ Never mind, wo will fix yon to-night.” They
hlockaded the roads to one of the polls, saying, ““Thore is no law for women on the
day of election.” :

Q. Was it not also said that Sanuny Green had put two women at the head of af-
fairs that day #—A. 1t was 80; he put two women to makoe them his captains,

Q. Now, have you been molested anywhere, in any way, by Republicans since the
election ¥—A. 1 was; on Saturday night I was sitting down holding w conversation
with another man; in walked another man ; he raised the argument with me about
being a Democrat ; my answer was to him, “Stop that nousense here.”  His angwer
wis to me, ¢ You tote that flag in Beaufort the other day.” ‘This was a day ot two
aftor the election.  Isaid, “ 1 am my own man.”  lHosaid, ¢ Wedon’t allow no Dem-
ovrat nigger here.” Lsaid, “ Goet away from hore as quick as yon can, or if you don’t
I will make you goet away ;7 and he left, but cameo back with a crowd of Hor 6. One
of the men he brought to knock or moh me; Iasked him, ¢ How.do you do P’ He said,
“1doas Iplease,” My answer was, ““ So do L” . No soonerthan the word was ont of
my mouth thau the blow followed from lLim ; at that Lime they all erowded me, The
only way I got ridd of them [ gotout of the door.  Now, in the mean timoe, if Thad
not flung up my hand one follow would have split my head with a paiv of steclyards;
1 got it ftat inmy hand. When I got out of the dvor my wife camo to e, Then she
carried mo home.  After 1went home these men got o crowd of twenty amd got right
in-front of my house, and mads great threats if they conld get hold of o, 1 did not
go out, but my wife propped the door with tho ax, as she was more frightened thau
I was.

Q. Was anything said by them why they made this attack on you?—A, After I
did not get out they didn’t get hold of me; they used these words, “Wo intend to
kill every Domocrat niggoer that fools around hore; if they do vots o Democrat ticket,
they shan’t own it around here.”

Q). Did they say anything about your carrying the club fing 3—A. Yen; thoy did.
“Felix Bouner, we want to get you anyhow because you toto that flag to the mass
meeting in Beaufort,”

Q. What did you do after that; did you remain there after that night A, After
that night I thought it best to got away from there as quick as  conld ; I left on Sun-
day; went back to Ladies’ Island ; T could not go back, and have not been back sinee ;
1 had to hire two of my friends.to bring wmy faily from theis,

Q. Why couldn’t you go back; were you provented by anything, or wore you afraid
to go back 2—A. My roason for not going back is hecause I had a doubt j T was afraid
of heing mobbed by the Republican party.

Q. Now, where did all this take place 1A, It 1ook place in Beaufort County, at
Salt Water Bridge, on the same island that the town of Beaufort is on, and is 4 miles
from the town. ‘ '
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Q. How did you happen to 'he over there 7—A. T went over there on account of my
father, who lives there; the old man is old, and I was over thiers to take care of him.
Q. Is it or not a-tict that the nearer you get to the town-of Beuufort the more
threatening and violent the Republicans are 1=—A. That is a fuct ; it seems Jike the
nearer the town of Beaufort the hotter the Republicans is. ‘ : .
Q. You used to he a Republican, were you not 7—A. I used to bo a Republican and
a leading ones : : ‘ .
‘). Was it-not the practice of the Republicans to send instructions from the town
ol Beaufortout fo the country precinets, and don’t the coantry peoplo_act from in-
stractions received - from the leaders inthe town of Beaufort 1--A. There is 1o in-
strietious givin to the coloredtpeople except from the leaders in Beaufort.
Q. Dovs not Robert- Smalls, and the principal leaders of the Republican party of
Jeanfort Connty, Hve inthe towmof Beaufort ¥—A, That is so, e

I, D. J. Lawrence, colored (page 567), forty-one years of age:

Lesides at Beaufort; attorney at law; trial justico for Beaufort County ; learned
torend andwrite as o slave; was first sergeant Company I, Thirty-fourth United
Rtates Colored Troops;  engaged in several battles; was wounded twice at the bat-
tleof Honey Hill ; promoted quartermaster sergeant ; honorably discharged froni that
yegiment and enlisted in Porticth United States Regnlars; after leaving tho Army
tanght sehool and studicd law, and was admitted to the bar in South Carolina; have
been a Demoerat sinee 1876 attended several Republican meetings in Beaufort duriug
ast campaign s was enrsed and ordered toleave, as no negro Democrat was allowed
therey heard Thomas Reyuelds, Republican Stato senator, tell tho }ueopl(s Lo go to the
polls armed, and to go kuee-deep-in blood, if necessary, to carry the election heard
Joseph Robinson, ex-representative, at another meeting, say “that the law allowed
him (o earry arms, and that -ho would go as far as any man to carry the esunfy against
the Deroeratsy ”? heavd Robert Smalls, contostunt, say in several public spéeches in
Beaufort “f that any colored woman having o Denioeratic husband should put him out
of the house,” and that they could have his assistaTice in doing 8o.” '

We quote as follows:

There is nosuch thing in Beaufort County as a free election and a fair count smong
the Republicans,  [have been a Democrat in Charleston Counuty for a number of
yeiars and voled ummolested but Taan told bere in Beaufort County that thisisa
Repuhlican connty, and no nigger can vote here for the Demoerats. I have a
danghifer, a young lady, who attends public school in the town of Beaufort, who has
been abused more than once on aceount of her father being o Democerat. I had to
atop ber from the schiool nntil I saw the principal in reference to this matter, I com-
plained fo him by letfer and have his reply 3 not only her; hut my family, my wife,
aid yself havo beon ostracised in the churel and socially, and felt the estrangement’
keenly, on account of my political views. ; :

Q. What nicthods are usually resorted to by Republicans to keep colored men from
voling the Demovratic ticket2—A. They usaally adopt a bulldozing system among
the leaders, teaching then to abuse and mako remarks aud threats generally, . -

Q. Do they carry this systew into the churches T-—A, Yes, into the churches and
into the socinl cireles, T am a member of the Baptist Church; wmy wife is & member
of the Methodist Ghurel, I have béen abused from thoe Methodist pulpit by one Rev.
Blakely on account of miy polities, and in consequence of this eonduct I prevented my
family from attending that chnrvelr,  From observation ameng the colored peopie
from 776 down to the present Tthink they had their fear about voting tho Democratic
ticket nuntil after the election of Gor’l Hampton, hut from tho general henefit they
received by the reducton of taxes under Democratic sdministration tho hebler class
of colored people are all Democraty, and wounld voto the Democratie ticket a5 i whole
exeepl for the ostracisin and (hreats from the Republican leaders,  Thave talked with
themedn regard to the exoduos sehemes, when Hampton was first elected, about - going
fo Afriea, saying to them it was all aschieme to make money by Republican leaders,
Adavge number of them since that time are convinced, and tolild me that it was'a big-
gerswindle than the Freedman’s: Bank, and are sorry that they sold theiv property
and pnt theivr money in the “Azor.”  They say at the next Presidential election thoy
will all vote the Deuoeratic ticket for President ; that they see no differenco, except
that the Republican leaders taxed them; whiteunder Democratic administration they
have been free from taxation for calipaign purposes, '

He further testifies that colored people can not vote the Democratic
ticket in Beaufort County unless they do it secretly. At the time of
the mass meeting in Beaufort heard a erowd of Republicans say, re-
fering to the Ladies’ Istand Club, “there goes the Democratic negroes,

i1, Rep, 3580—3
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we will fix them before they get out of town.” After this heard Re-
publican speakers boasting hiow this ¢lub had been run out of town.  Col-
ored people, as a rale, take great interest in school matters, This was
one of the chief issues of the campaign, and many ot the colored people
wished to vote for contestee because of what he had done for thew in
school matters. On his cross-examination (page 571) he says:

© Q. Who made those speecties 1-—A . Republican leaders. 1 hoard Mr. Robert Smalls;
W. 1. Whipper, esq., Mr, Joseph Robinson, ex-member of the legislatiure, commonly
called Red-hot Joe, Senator Thomas Reyuolds, aud FoJ. Wushington, maemberof the
legislatove,  Allof theirspecches, with the excoptionof W. I, Whipper's, were political
barangues, inciting the people to riot or hloudshed, saying that they niust go to the
polls armed and carry the election by dny-aeans, Mr. Robert Small advising the
woumen to leave theiv hushands who had voted tho Democratic tickoet, and-Rohiuson
advising them that this is the only connty in the Statoin the control of the Repub:
licangy and he, forone, will go as for as uny mau in éarrying the county for the Re<
publicans, : o I el

W. 1I. Bartless (page 616), forty-four years old:

Lives in tho town of Beaufort, at Green’s Fervy; is o lumber manufactorer, On
the 22d of October, 1586, after the Democratic mass-meeting in Beauford, was at the
saw-mill, near the forry; heard a great noise in the street leading to the ferry ;3 yell-
ing and whooping, so miuch 80 that witness left his work and went to see what tho
matter was ; saw some- colored men running from & crowd of half-grown hoys und
women who were throwing brickbats ab them. Ooe man was bleeding from o wound
in the bead. The dair wasfull of bricks. Some fell in tho mill-yard 3 somostruck the
kitchen across tho street ; found that the men who were being brickbatted wero
members of the Ladies Island Colored Democratic Club,  Witness teleplioned for the
town marshal, who made one or two arrests but did vot connit any one.  Thé men
went down to the ferry, and scemed to bo very much intimidated ; saw o _hack go
down there with one or two men in it} think it was Doc Day’s hack, Fearing fur-
ther violoues, witness went to the ferry ; did not see any further violencs, hut heard
o good deal of Toud talking; earlior in-the day heard & good many threats on the
streets of Beauford aguinst colored Democrata, They said, ¢ Wait- until night and
wo will fix them;” thinks that Doc Day was ono of theso parties.  Peler Ureen,
brothef of Samuel Greon, rung Green's Ferry. A fow days before the election wit-
ness was down at the landing ;-a boat had just pushed oft ; Samunel Green was'in if,
and said to an old colored mwan ihat. came up, “That no Demoerat could go in that
boat,” meaning colored Domocrat.  From what witness saw and heard at virions
times in the town of Beaufort, ho would say it required the highest ovder of conrago
in o colored man to vole the Democratic ticket.

Parris Sherman (page 619), colored ; seventy years of age:
Resides on Saint Helena Island 5 did not voteat the last clection ; went to the Con-
gressional poll for the purpose of voting for Mr. Elliott for -Congress; did not vote

becanse thore was such an uproir there, got. hingso frightened he did novstay ; heard
heap of threatening, and being old thought he had better get out of the way. :

A. B. Colonel (page 619), colored ; forty-two years old:

Lives on Saint Helena Istand 1 seryved in the Lsto war in Thirty-fonrth Regiment
Colored Troops, United States Army 5 during the last campaign Republivans of Saint
Helena Island made o groat many thireats against colored Demoerats; that Republi-
canyg should club togoether and kill every one that voted Democratic ficket s Cyrnn
Jenking, Ropublican, threatened him ; took up wstick at ¢hurel andstruck him fwo
lieks, beeanso he advocated Colonel Elliott ; the-doacons threatened to turn Demo-
orats out of the chinreh ; in consequience of these throats a gront many were kept from

voting Doemocratic ticket; thinks that the Democerats would have gotfen about 300
votes at Briock Church. s S CaL :

~The record contains much more evidence of this character, and it
also contains much evidence submitted by contestant in rebuttal, - Your
committee find that at the precinet now under cengideration alimost
all the voters were colored persons ; that a large murber of these voters
were bitterly opposed to contestant, and had determined to vote for
Colonel Elliott s that the leading supporters ol contestant were very
mueh incensed at this, and yesovted to all meaus in their power to
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overawe and intimidate such voters and force them to vote for cou-
testant.  Colored men inclined to vote or expressing an intention to
vote for contestee were rudely assailed and violently assaulted ; they
were threatened with expulsion from their churches ; they were threat.
ened with expulsion from the island, where many of them owned land ;.
they were threatened with a denial of sexual intercourse with their
wives; they were threateged with beating; they were cursed and
abused ; and this conduct on the part of the followers of contestant.
began early in the campaign and continued uaninterruptedly down to
the closing of the polls on the day of the eleetion. Smalls himself was
a party to these acts; indeed he incited his followers to their perpe:
tration. Many of the witnesses so aflirm.

Wm. Lockwood (page 558) says: o o
Q. What did Swmalls say in his speech should be done to the Domoerats T—A. He.
did not say anything should be done to the Democrats, only call dog name ; he said:
that any woman that married to a Democratic man the woman must kick him out of
the house; and if any man’s daughter marvied to a Demoeratic dog they must kick:
them ont, too; and he said that on clection day we must he as peaceablo as we ean,
‘canse if we don’t both parties will Tose their voto if we have any row, and after the
poll was closed then thoy could do as they clioose.

S. D. J. Lawrence, on page 568, an ex-Iederal soldier, says: E
I heard Mr. Robert Smalls; the contestant; say on more than one oceasion in a pub-
lic speech in Boaufort, among-other things hoe said, that any eolored woman that had.
a Democratic }msb:md, sho should put him ont of the house, and not allow him to.

come in thers by any means, and could havo hig assistance, and in consequence of
this speech T know of several cases where husband and wife have been separated,

Loland White (page 612), also an ex-Federal soldier, says:

Q. During the last political campaign did you liear Robt, Smalls make a specch at
Brick Church?—A. Yes.

Q. What did he toll the people to do with Democrats '—A. 1o told the people this,
““Whao that votes a Democratic ticket the women must put him out and have ne use
for him, and who votes a Democratic ticket votes against his own right.  The wo-
men must do away with their hushands if thoy vote a Democratic ticket.,” My wife
she left my houss for over two weeks and went to her mother’s house. ‘

Jack Freeman says (page 625)-

A. Smalls met me on Bay street, in the town of Beaufort, in tho presence-of other
people, and said to one of the persons standing - there, ¢ Do you know any Democrat
nigger by tho name of Jack Freeman?” 1 said, ' You; here’'s Jack Freeman himgolf,
now.”  Smallg then said, “ You hoys onght to tie him-and liek him” ¥ told him I
considered myself a negro and not a nigger.  He said, “ Yes, you arve a nigger, and a
low-down nigger.” I said, “You are neither a negro nor a white man; you arc a
muongrel.” S ~ :

“George Rivers says (page 376):

Q. Did you hear Robert Smalls make any speeches on St Helona before the eloc-
tion?—A. Yes, I do. :

Q. What did he say the people onght to do with the men who wanted to vote the
Democratio tickoti?—A. Yes, sir; any one who vote the Demoeratic ticket for Col.
Win, Elliott, ho was ashamed of them. - I'he other day when-he wasstanding in Bean-
fort, on Bay street, “seen 40 mans of Ladies’ Island—1Lwas ashamed of myself-~coming
inder a Democratic hbanner.  What nse Deémocrat have for a colored man ¥ The Demo-
erat carvied them and feed them in Fineken horse stablo; the lowest place youn can
hiagine; that night half had to take the crock to Sammy Green’s forry by the women
and boys brickbat thom till a constable had to go down and protect themn ; and these
few Democrats on St. Helena ought to dono the samoe way to those fow Democrats
which are on the island.”

B. C. Chisholm says ( page 590) :

A little while afterwards. Gen’l Smalls arrived, I met lhim before he wont up to
make his apeech,  He then made these remarks in hisspeech 1 Tie was showing us how
Shoppard was thrown out of the convention in Beaunfort, and I asked him this qnes-
tion ; “ Gen’l, didn’t you know these things; that Sheppard was going to be thrown
out ! Didn't your specch you made in the convontion cause him to be thrownout ¥
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He said, ¢ No.” Y replied to him, © Yes, it is your specel that had him thrown ont!
You hadihese things fixed botore the convention” Hesays, 1 didn’t kuow any’
thing about it.” 1aaid, “ Yes, you do know, 'cause you replied in your apeceliin the
convention, ‘the convention must look for the three hest mén to send thig session,”
Feays to i, - We -are not going {o vote for you-<not. this time” - Then heasked,
CWhy are you going to vote against me thistime?” I suys to him, ** Beeanse you
have promised us here on this istand that whoever we send as a choice man you will
supporthinrintheconvention.  Afteryon have thrown 8heppardout of the convention
we will vote for Mr. Elliott and keep you in. Beaufort.” - 'Then-he replied, © It yon
will voto forme-as you have done in the past nine years I will-appoint Sheppard e )
position. - If I don’t appoint him to a position I'will pay bim outofmy own pocket,”
After that I went off g : PP ,

Smalls, when on the stand as a wituess, did not deny the intimida-
tiony or that he urged his followers on to deeds of violenee and wrong.
Your committee venture the opinion that, in the whole history of elee-
tion ‘contests in this country, no case can be found where one of the
candidates for election so openty and publicly advised and connseled
his followers to perpetrate wrong and outrage upon those who sap-
ported his opponent.  Without doubt many colored persons who de-
sired to vote for Elliott were deterred from doing so through intimi-
dation and fear of violence; how many it is hard to say.  Men do not
like to admit that they are controlled by such influences, and yet we
‘know they are.  Beauforl. County, the home of the contestant, was the
theater of most of the violenee and intisnidation. The methods and
practices resorted to in thiy county at the election in 1886 were of the
same kind, only worse in character, as those resorted to by this same
contestant in the same county at the clection in 1876 (see- Tilhnan vs.
Smalls, Forty fifth Congress, second session, Report No. 916).  Because
of such violence, threats, and intimidation of voters by the contestant,
himself and his leading followers, your committec do not believe the
vote returned at Brick Church, at Beaufort precinet, and at Ladies
Island, in Beaufort County, should be counted.  Your committee are
reluctant to recommend the exclusion of a poll or polls, but in this case
the ends of truth and justice, as well as the protection of the voter and
the purity of the ballot-box, imperatively demand it.

- According to the return as canvassed and declaréd by the State
board, the vote was: Williamn Elliott, 6,495 ; Robert Smalls, 5,061,

We give to Smalls and Elliott each the votes cast for them at Fort
Mott, Adams Run, Cedar Creck, and Greer’s precinet, and we dedunet
from Smalls his majority at Beaufort precinet, and at Ladies Island
preeinet, and the count stands as follows:

Returned vote for Elliott . ... .. .. 6,493 | Rotirned for Robert Smalls. ..., h, 961
Vote at Adams Run. ... ... 27 Vote at Fort Mottt ..o o0 e 236
Vote at, Fort Mott ... .. S 068 | Vote at Adanis Run. ..o oo oot 177
Voto.at Cedar Creek..o.oo oo o 0] Vote at Cedar Creoelo.aoo oo 15
Vote at Greers procinel . .ooooooo0 4 1 Vote at Greers.. oo oo iooon, i

Total vote for BElliott . ...... 6,592 Total vote for Suml'lﬂ ....... 6,457
Deduct from- Smalls: o

Majority at - Beaufort ..o ooooiiiii il L e 136

Majority at Ladies Island .

T 185
6,209

Total vote for Elliott........... F R R ST SR S S SIS 6,502
Total vote for Smalls. ... ... ...

. : N . t9NY i1
P amEe sese sHN L BR e mee b iudnas ves AB A s e ‘),wb.,

Majority for EHIobt. .ot s snvevavicarinuss ansencissnsnsnnnes. 303
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~ Your committee find that the sitf ing-member was duly‘e]e‘etéd, and
recommend the adoption of the following resolutions:

Resolved, That Robért Smalls was not eleoted a Representative to the Fiftieth Con-
greas from the Seventh district of South Carolina, . ‘,

Itesolved, 'That, Willinan  Elliott was duly elected  a Representative to. the Fiftieth
Congress from the Seventl district of South Cavoling, and is entitled to his seat,

Exuinrr A,
Larws governing elections in South Carolina.

All sleetors of the State shall e rogistered, and no person shall be allowed. to
voto.at any eleetion hereafter to he held unless registered ; and no clector removing
frowm onu vegidence, precinet, pavish, ward, or county to another shall be allowed to
vote withont a transfer of rogistration ; and the supérvisor of registration shall fur-
utsh the managers of eolection with one of the registration books for each precinet,
for the care and enstody of which the managers receiving the samo shall bo responsi-
ble and-which thoy shall return to tho supervisor of registration within three days
after the close of election, and no elector shall be allowed to vote whoso name is not
registered as provided by law, ; ; o

That for the purpose of carrying on such election it shall be the duty of the gov-
eritor, at Jeast thirty days prior to any such election, to appoint in and for each connty
three commissioners of eleetion for governor, lioutenant-governor, State officors, cir-
enit golicitors, members of the general assembly, and county officers, or any of siid
officers, and threo other commisgioners of election for the clection of Presidential
electors and members of Congress, or either of said oflicers; who shall continue in
oflice until their successors aro appointed and qualified,

The-commissioners of election for said Stato oflicors are hereby authorized and om-
powered to appoint threo managersof clection for State officors ;. and the connuission-
ers of election for the above members of Congress and Presidential olectors, or either
of said officers, are hereby antherized and empowaered to appoint three other man-
agargof eleetion for said officers for eacli polling place at cach election procinct of the
conuty for which they shall respectively he appointed. The said commissioners of
election and said managers of clection shall take and subscribe, beforo any officer an-
thorized to administer oaths, the oath of offico prescribed by section 30 of Article 1T
of the congtitution, and the oath with respoct to duoling, and- the smno shall be im-
wediately filed in the office of the clerk of tho court of common pleas of the county in
whiich gaid comiissionors and managers shall bo appoeinted ) and if thers be no such
clerk, duly qualified by law, then in the office of secrotary of State,

The managers are hereby authorized to appoint a clerk to agsist them in whatevoer
duties may bo required of them, who shall take the oath of office prescribed by seéc-
tion 30 of Article 11 of the constitution, and the oath with regard to dueling, before
the chairman of the board of managers, - T'he commissioners aforesaid, and tho man-
agers-aforesaid, at their fivat moeoting, respectivoly, shall procecd to organize them:-
selves as a board, by appointing one of their number chairman of the board; and
such ehairman, in each instance, shall he empowered to administer oaths,

The word “precinet” shall be constried to embraco an area suflicient to provide
for holding elections for members of Congress and Presidential olectors at difterent
stations from those stations where elections are hold for State and county officors.

The pollashall be opened at seven o’clock in the forenoon and close at six o’clock

Cincthe afternoon of the day of election, and shall be kept open during these hours
‘withont. intermission or adjonrnmont, and  the managers shall administer to each
Jperson offering to vote an oath that he is qualified to vote at this election, according
to {lie constitution of this State, and that he has not voted during this election,

The Stato constables and other peace officers: of each county are required to be
present during the whole time that the polls are kept open and until the eleection is
completed, and they shall prevent all interference with the managers and see that
there is no interruption of good order. If there should be more {than one polling-
place in any county, the State constable is empowered and directed to make such as-
signment of his deputies and other peace offieers to such polling-places as may, in lis
jndgment, Lest subserve the purposes of quiet and order. . :

The voting shall be by ballot, which hallot shall be of plain white paper, of two-
and-a-half inches wide by five inches long, ¢lear and éven cut, withont ornament,
designation, mutilation; symbol, or mark of any kind whatsoever, except tho name
or names of the person or persons voted for, and the office to which such person or
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persons are intended to e choseny which name or names and office or offices shall ha
written or printed; or partly written and partly printed, thereon, in black ink ; and
such ballot shall be so folded uq to conceal the name or names thereon, and so folded
shiall be deposited in a box to be constracted, kept, and disposed of as herealtér pro-
vided ; and no ballot of any other: description found in any election Lox shall be
counted. - N - L -

The coinmissioners of election shall provide for each clection precinet a sufficient
nnmber of boxes to meot tlie requircments of the foregoing section,  An opening shall
he made in the lid of each box not larger than sufficient for a single ballot to be in-
serted therein at ono time, through which each ballot receivod proper-to be placed in
such hox shall ho inserted by the person voting, and by no other.  Each box shall be
provided with asufficient lock, and each box shall be publiely opened and inspected
to show that it is empty and secure, and locked just hefore the oponing of the poll
amdl the keys returned to the managoers, and sball not be opened during tho election,
Each box shall be labeled in plain and distinet Roman letters, with the office oy offi-
eers voted for, and the managers, on the demand of the voter, shall be required to
read to him the names on. the boxes, and no.vote for any office other than that for
which sneh box shall be designated and labeled shall be counted, ; ,

At cach precinet a space or inclosure, such a8 the managers of clection shall deom
fit and snfticiont; shall bo railed off, or othorwise provided, with an opening at one
el or side for the entrance of the voter, and an opening at the othoer for his oxit, ag
a polling-placo in which to hold the election for the State, circuit, and connty offices,
A similar, but separato and distinet, space or inclosure shall be rvailed off, or other-
wise provided, as polling-place for the eloction of Congressmen and Presidential
electors, at such distance from the ‘pnlling*plzmo for Stato officers as the commissinn-
ers of election for each county shall determine and appoint for cach clection precinet.
Butone votershall be allowed to enter any polling-place at a time, and noone eXcept
;;lm managers shall be allowed to gpeak to the voter while in the polling-place casting
‘his vote, ; o S : SR
- Kach clerk of the'poll shall keep a poll-list, which shall contain onecolumn headed,

‘Namesof Voters,” and the name of eaech olector voting shall be entered by the clerk
in each column, ’

At the close of the election the managers andclerks shall immediately proceed pub-
licly to open the ballot-box and connt the ballots therein, and continue such count,
without adjournment or interraption, until the same is completed, and make such
statement of the result thereof, and sign the same, as the nature of the election shall
require. If, in connting, twoor more liko ballots shall be found folded together com-
pactly, only oneshall be connted and the othors destroyed ; but if they bear differont
names, the same shall be destroyed and not eounted.  If more ballota shall be found,
on opening the box, than there are names on the poll-list, all the ballots shall be re-
tirned to the box and thoronghly mixed togethor, and one of the managers or the
clerks shall, without secing the ballots, draw therefrom and immediately destroy as.
many ballots as there are in oxeess of the number of names on the poll-list.  Within
threo days thereaftor, the chairman of. the hoard of managers, or one of them, to he
designated in writing by the board, shall deliver te tho commissioners of election the
poll-list, the boxes containing the ballots, and a written statement of the rvesult of
the olection in his precinet. o :

The commissioners of election for governor, lientenant-governor, State officors; cir-
entit solicitors, inembers of the general assombly, and county officers, oreithoer of said
officers, shall meet in some convenient place at the connty seat on the Tuesday next
following the election, hefore one o’clock in the afternoon.of that day, and shall pro-
ceed to organizoe as, and shall be, the connty board of canvassers,  They may appoint
somoe competent person as secretary.  Tho chairman shall then proceed to administer
the constitntional oath to each member of thoe board, a8 canvassers, and ahall ad-
minister the constitutional oath to the secretary, and the secretary shall administer
to the chairman the sane oath that hoe shall have administered to the other members
of tho board, The commissioners of election for members of Congress and Presi-
dentinl electors, or either of said officers, shall likewiso meet ab the same tine at tho
connty seat, and shall in like manner proceed to organize as, and shall be, the connty
hoard of canvassers for the clection of the Federal officors aforesaid, - 'They shall then
proceed to canvass the votes of the connty, and shall make such statements thereof
a8 the nature of the election shall raquire, within ten days of the time of thoir first
moeting ag a hoard of connty canvassers, and shall transmit to the board of State can-
vassers any protest and all papers relating to the election.

, Duplicate statements shall be nuule and: filed'in the office of the clork of the county,

and if thera be no sach clerk daly qualified according to law, then in tho office of

the secretary of stato, [
‘They shall. make separate statements of the wlole namber of votes given insnch

county for Representatives in Congress, and separato statements of all other votes
given for other officers, - Such statement shall contain the names-of the persons for
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whoni such voteés were given, and the number of votes given for each, which shall ba
written ont in words at fulllength. = o o R R e e

Thore shall be prepared by the commissioniers three separate lists of each statement;
hesides the lists to be filed 1n tho offico of the county clerk or -secretary of state, and
cuech list ahall be certified to as correct by the signatures of the commissioners sib-
seribed to gich certiticate, - S T : L R

After the final adjournment of the board of county canvassers, and within the tinie
preseribed in thischapter, the chairman of said board shall forward, addresscd to the
governor and secrotary of state, by messengor, the returns, poll-1ist, and all papers
appertaining to theolection. - The said - messenger shall be entitled to five dollars;
and also mileage at the rato of five cents for every mile traveled ou the most dircet:
route going and returning, upon a cortificats to he furnished him by the secretary of
state. - Said certiicato shall be paid out of the funds provided for the payment of
comnnssioners and managors of election, e :

“Inevery case whers the townships or parts of townships of any connty may notall”
by in the same Congressional distriet, it shall be the duty of the proper bonrd of
county canvassers of sunch county in canvassing tho votes of adid county to report-sep-.
arately the results of the vote of such township or parts of townships for the Con-
gressional distriet to which they may respectively belong. -

In any case in which a voting precinct may form part of more than one Congres-
stonal distriet, if no other provision be made by law, the commissioners of election
for the eounty in which such procinet is gitunted shall providoe for sucli precinet sepa-
rate boxes for avery Congressional district within which tho said precinct may be,
and each voter at such precinet shall deposit liis ballot for member of Congress.in the:
hox provided for the Congressional district within the limits of which said voter may-
reside, : St . : : o

OF THE ELEOTION OF ELECTORS OF PRESIDENT AND VICE-PRESIDENT.

I any officer ornessenger, on whom any duty is enjoined in this ehapter, shall be-
euiliy of nny willful neglect of sueh daty, or of any corrupt conduet i the execntion
of the samie, and be thereof convicted, hio shall be desmed guilty of a misdemeanor,’
punishable by a fine not excecding $500, or imprisonment not excoeding one yoar.

L Exmsrees. » ‘
Indictment and evidence upon which Smalls was convicted,

Tur Srare 0F SouTH CAROLINA, County of Richland : . . S
At court of general sesgions, begnu and holden inand for the county of Richland,
in the State of South Caroling, at Columbia, in the county and State aforesaid, on
“Monday; the twenty-second day of October; in the year of our Lord oue thousand
cight hundred and seventy-seven, the jurors of and for the county of Richland afore-
suid, in the State of South Caroling aforesaid; that is to say: n
Hpon their oaths present: That Robert Smalls; wlegislutive officorof the said State,
o wit, a member ot the senate of the said State, from the county of Beaufort, in the
siid State, did, with foree and arms, at Columbia, in the connty of Richland and State
“aforesaid, on the cighteenth day of December,in the yoar of onr Lord ono thousand
eight hundred and seventy-two, eorruptly accept from Josephus Woodroff a gift.and
gratuity and a promise to make a giftand do an act beneficial to-him, the said Robert
“Smally, a legislative officer of the said State, to wit, a moembor of The senate of the
siid State from the connty of Beaufort, in the said State, under an agreement and
with an understanding that the vote, opinion, and judgment of him, the said Robert
Smitlls, ay said legislative officer of said State, to wit, a8 mamber of tho senate of the
sid State from the county of Beaufort, should be given in the aflirmative and in favor
of agreeing to the passage of a certain joint resolution, entitled “Joint resolution te
make appropriation for expenses of printing ordered by the genoral assembly during
the regular sessions of 187071 and 1871-72,” on the question of the said senate agroe-
ing to the passage of the said joint resolntion, aquestion which was and might be by
law brought before the said Robert Smalls in his said official capacity as a legislative
officer of wuid State, to wit, as member of the kenate of the said State from the county
of Beanfort, contrary to the form of the act.of the general assembly of the said State
1 such case madeo aud provided, and against thoe peace and dignity of the State.
L And the jurors aforesaid, upon their onths aforesaid, do further prosent: That
Rohert Smalls, s legislative officor of the said State, to wit, a member of the senato of
‘the said State from the county of Beanfort, in the said State, did with force and arms,
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at Columhia,“in the county of Richland and State aforosaid, on the cighiteenth day of
December, in the yoar of our Lord nne thousand eight handred and seventy-two, cor-
ruptly aceept from Josephus Woodruff a premisoe to maks a gift and todo an act bene-
ficial to him, the.said Robert Smalls, to wit, a proinise to give him the said Robert
Smalls a large sum of money, to wit, tim sum of five thousand dolars, under an agree-
ment that the voteof him, the gaid Robert Smalls, assaid legislative afficer of thosaid
Htate,; to wit, a8 a member of the senatoe of the said $tate from thie county of Beaufort,
should be given in the said senate in favor of tho passags of u joint resolution which
wag and might be by luw brought before him, the said Robart 8Bmalls, in his oflicial
capacity as said - legislative officer of said State, to wit, as member of tho senate of
said State from the county of Beaufort, to wit, a joint resolution entitlad ‘¢ Joint res-
olution to mako. appropriation for expenses of printing ordered by the general as-
sembly during the regular sessions of 1870-’71 and 1£71-72,” contrary to the fornrof
the act of the gencral-assembly of the said Statoinsuch é¢ase made and provided, and
againgt the peace and dignity of the Stute. e : .

. And the jurors aforesaid, upon their oaths aforesald, do further present: That
Robert Smalls, alegislative officer.of the said Btate, to wit, & member of the senate
of the said State from the county of Beanfort, in tho said 8tate, did with foree and
arnis, at Colmnbia, inthe connty of Richland and State aforesaid, on tho sighleenth
day of December, inthe year of onr Lord one thousand eight bundred aud soventy-
two, corruptly accept from-Josephug Woodrufl a promiso to make a gift and to do an-
act beneficial to him, the said Robert Smalls, to wit, a promise to give him, the said
Robert Smalls, & large sum of money, to wit, thie sum of five thousand dollars, with
an understanding that the vote of him, the said Robert Smalls, a4 said legislative
officer of the aai({’Stam, to wit, as a - member of the genate of thesaid State from the
counity of Boaufort, should bo given in the said senate in favor of the passage of a
joint resolution; which was and might bo by law brought boefore him, tho said Robert,
Smalls, in his.official capacity assaid legislative officer of said Ssate, to wit, as mem-
ber of tho senate of tho said State from the county of Beaufort, to wit, a joint reso-
lution entitled ‘“Joint resolution to make appropriation forexpoenses of printing
ordered by the general assembly during theregular sessions of 1870-'71 and 1871-72,”
contrary to the form of theact of tho general asdsembly of the said State in such case
made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State, '

And the jurors aforesaid, upon theiroaths aforesaid; do further present: That Robert
Smalls, on the eighteenth day of December, in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight; bundred and seventy-two, at Columbia, in the county of Richland and State
aforesuid, then and there being alegislative officer of the said State, to wit, a member
of the senato of the said State, having heen duly elected genator for the county of

Beaufort, and having taken his seat in the senate of the said State, corruptly did
accept a prowise from Josephus Woodruft to make a gift of five thonsand dollars to
Wiy, the said Robert Smalls, with an understanding with the said Josephus Woodraft
that the vote of him, the sald Robert Smalls; member of the said senate as aforesaid,
should be given in favor of a joint resolution to make appropriation for expenses of
printing ordered hy the general assembly during the regular sessions of 1870-'71 and
187172, which said joint resolution was then introduced and pending in the gencral
assemhly of the said Btate, and was to he hrought hefore hin, the said Robert Smalls,
in hig official capacity as & member of thesaid senate as aforesaid, to the evil example
of allothera in like cases, offending against the form of the act of the general assembly
of the said State in such cage made and provided, and against the peace and dignity
of the State. : , )

And the jurors aforesaid, upon their oaths aforesaid, do further present: That Rob-
ert Smalls, senator of and from the connty of Beaufort, in the said State, in the sen-
ato of the said Stato, on the eightecuth day of Jannary, in the year of our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and seventy-three, at Columbia, in the connty and State afore-
said, with_tforce and arms, voluntarily and corruptly did aecopt a gift of five thon-
sand dollars from Joseph Woodraft in corrupt payment for his vote as said senator,
in the senate of the said State, in favor of the passage of a joint resolution to make
appropriation for expenses of printing ordered by the general assembly during the
regular sesgions.of 1870271, and 1871772, contrary to the peace and dignity of the
State. : ; R

Jonn R. AnNry,
. co Solicitor Fifth Cireuit,
The STATE 0oF S80UTH CAROLINA, Richland Cownty. .

On behalf of tho State, Attorney-General Conner offered in evidence journal of the
Sewate, 1872-'73, -and proceeded to read from page 130, T '

Mr. Molton. objected to the remding of the statements dontained in the printed
Journal ag evidenco against tho defondant, either of the progress of-thoe bill in ques-
tion or of the participation of defendant therein, on the ground that it was bat sec-
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ondary evidenee of what, under any eircamistances, would itself be secondary evi-
denee,

After hoaring argument the court.ruled that the ovidence was competent. -

The defendant excepted, S ; - : ~

Attorney-Goneral Conner then road, as follows, fromn page 130 ) ;

“Joint resolution (I No. 3) to make appropriation for expenses of printing ordered
by the genoral assembly during the rogular sessions of 187071 and 1871272, o

“The resolution received its first-reading, was ordered for a sccond reading anid
cansideration to-morrow, and ordered to ho printed.” :

He then read from pago 144 of the journal, as follows: ST

‘“Joint resolution (house) to make appropriation for the expenses of printing by
the general assembly during the regnlar sessions of 187071 and 187172, :

HThe joint resolntion received its second reading, was considered as in committeo
of the whole and by seetions. ' ‘ LT , o

“There heing no further amendmants,

CCOrdered, That it ho engrossed fora thivd reading.” ,

The altorney-general then read from pages 1458 and 149, as followa: »

Mr. Cardozo, from the committes of angrossed bitls, reported as doly and eorreetly
engrossed and ready for a third vreading, s

* . * ¥ “ » »

Coint resolution to make appropriation for expenses of printing ordered by gen:
eral assembly during tho regalar sessions of 1870271 and 1871772,
“On motion of Mr, Smalls the rulo was suspended and tho above bills and joint:
resolutions tuken up for a third reading. ] ) e
'S o ‘ » . S . 'S »

“Joint resolution to make appropriation for expense of printing ordered by gon-
eral assembly durving the regnlar sésstons of 187071 and 1871-772, L
“The joint resolution received its third reading, _
““On the question of agreeing to the passago of the joint resolution Mr, Donaldson
vitled for the yeas and nays,

“The yeas and nays wero taken, and resulted as follows: N :

CYeas~Moesars, Cain, Corwin, Dickson, Ford, Gaillard, Hayne, Hollingsliead, Jami-
son, Jervey, Johnston, Jones, Lee, Maxwell, Nash, Owens, Smalls, ¢, Smith, Swails,
White, Whittemore—20, : :

‘CNays-—~Mossrs, Cardozo, Donaldson, Dunean, Dunn, Duval, Hope, Joter—7,

“So the joint resolntion passed, -

Ordered, That it-be envolled forratifieation,” ‘

The attornoy-gencral then read from page 158, showing the ratification of the said
joint resolution, -

Jaserius WoonRurr was then sworn for the State,

Hectestitied that e had been elerk of the senate of the State of South. Carolina
from 1865 to this time 5 that he was aomember of the Repnblican Printing Jompany;.
and that company did the publie printing; that with his partier, A. O, Jones, Lo
was deeply interestod in the passipre of the joint vesolution fo make appropriation
for-expouse of printing ordared by the general assembly during the regular sessions
of 1R7U-"71 and IR71-'722,

Jones-aud witness made an agreoment that Jones shonld cousult the members of
the house and ask them to support the measnre, while witness should eonsult the
senptors,

The following check was then handed to witness :

‘544, No, 17 o ‘ CoLuMBIA, 8, C., Jan. 19, 1873,
fSouth Curoling Bank and Trust Company, of Columbia, pay to cash or boarer, five

thausand dollars,
SEL 000, -

v

J. Woonrurr,”

Witness said ho gave this check to the defendant, who was then chairman of the
committes on printing, and it was given in accordance with the promise which wit:
ness had made to the defondant that if the joint resolntion passed he would give the
defendant five thousand dollars. )

The promise was made in witnews's office in tho stato-house. The check was paid
at the hank.  Witness obtained it from the bank aftor its paymont. . The check was
returned to the witness as the drawer of it at the end of the mounth, together with'all
the cheeks drawn during the month, as was then the custom of the bank, Witness
gave this eheck to Smalls after the passage of the joint resolntion, . Can not remenis-
ber the exact date without reference to his memorandum book, o ‘
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Witness was then instructed by fnmmov ganeral to Iﬂf(‘ﬁbh his memory by refor-
ence Lo the waid memorandam book.

Mr. Melton objected to thio introduction of the mmnomndum book, on the ground
that the said hook was alleged to bé written in a peeuliar kind of phm;owmphy aif-
farent from any of the prmcipul systems, and which could only bo read by hmmelf
and conld not he verilied in court.

“The court overruled the objection, and the defondant, excepted,

Witness produced the memorandum book; writton in phonographic (,lmractcra, and
aftor reference thereto, testified that he. g gwu the check to the defendant on the 16th
day of January, 1573, The chieck was dated a day or two ahead, Witness drew the
check the m\!,vomh i itin dated the nineteenth, “I'he nineteenth was Sunday. It is
enteredin the diary flmt witness gave defendant a check ou that day for five thon-
nand dallars, Gave severalother checks the samoe day. Ope te h*ummr, for §H00 ;
one_to Holeombe, for $200 ;- one to Hollingshead, for $100 5 one to-Johnston, for $5 (K).

Witness paid the check: to Smalls for his aid in socmmgthc desired joint resolntion.
The defendant voted forit.  His services were genoral through the whole passago of
the joint resolution.  Smalls was the chairman of the committee on printing. Wit-
ness expected a favorable report.  Tlie joint resolution wont through the senate wnth-
ouh a report, thongh it was reported on-in the house.

The defendant’s servicos lasted until the close of the session. The payment was
made in January, 1873, subsequent to the pessage of the resolution, J:mm‘ugy 10th
wits Sunday ;- the (Iahng‘ of the check that day was a clerical error on witness’s part,
Witness did not have funds’in the bank on the 10th, but he knew ho would sa.we
themn on the 10th ; witness therefore dated the check ahead threo days, .uul the l‘Jth
fell on Sunday.

Witneks has been clork of the senate Trom 1868 to the present bime,  He identified
the printed journal of the seuate for the regular session of 1872773 a8 being w copy of
the oflicial journal of the said senate. Drinted copies of” entries of the journal are
cach day placed upon the desks of the members; are corrected in open senate, and
are printed.  There is no permancent journal except the printed journal.

itness wan also public pxmtvr while elerk of the senate. Tho dofendant voted
for the joint resolution,

~The defendant waived cross- mammthn of the wntneas.

‘L. N. ZBALY was then sworn and examined in hehalf of the State.

Ho tostified that ho was assistant hook-keeper for the Sonth Carolina Bank and Truost
Company in 1873, ‘ ‘

Shown books which he identified as hooks of the South Carelina Bank and Trast
Company. ; '

The attorney-general handed witness the cheek above deseribed, and asked witness
to trace its course through the books of the said eompany,. .

- Mr. Melton, in hehalf of the defendant, ohjected that theso books of the hank could
nnt, im]]mt in ag evidence againgt the defendant.  After .u"gmn('nt, the conrt over-
ruled the objections, and the defendant exeopted.
~T'he hooks were kept hy witness, as book-keeper of hank, and the ('h'xrg,fs of %’3 000
to Woodruff was made by lim in the regidar conrse of husiness.

Tho witness, on reforring to the hook, Ctostified that the cheek was char wed to Jo-
sephus. Woodrnft on the 1%6h day of Hm:my, 1873 5 amonnt 5,000,  The same dmg
$0,000 is placed to the eredit of Tlon. Robert humlls. No other check on that day i
charged to Woodrnff and no other eredited to Sualls, '

On the check is:a miemorandiom showing the page—* gt

Page 684 i8 the page on tho ledgor wliich contains Josephng Womhuﬂ"ﬂ necount
with the bank. These figures wore pl.lood.mn the cheek by witness,  Witness tnrned-
to page 684 of ledger. Bosides the «,luwk of §5,000, there were fwo other checks paid
on same day, one for $300 and one for $50

Mr. Melton ohjec tocl on the gmun(l that this testimony had nothing to do with the
case,

Mr. Conner gaid he introdneod the teﬂtnnm)y to verify the entry, and produced the
(,hm'ka for 300 and $H0.

- Mr. Melton ohjected, the ¢ourt overruled the objection, and Mr, Melton excepted.

- Witness identified the cheeks, and said that bhoy hul on their hacks the pages o(‘
the ledger in which they wora.entered,

Witnoess said it was the habitof the bank to require a deposit-slip from cnstomers
whon a deposit was made, Witneas produced a deposit-stip which he stated had been
i){mcur(sd by him from the hank papers, which are now kept in a bhox at the State-

ouse, :

The deposit-slip is in the h,mdwrmnguf F. 8. J‘wobq, who was cashier of theSonth
Carolina Bank and Trust (;mnp wy at that time.  Jacobs hay been ont, of Hm %tute
since 1873,

The attorney-gencral desirod witness to read thodeposit-slip.. Mr, Mnlton ubjoch (1
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to its being read or received in evidence.  After argument the court overruled the
ohjection, and the defendaut excepted.
The said deposit-slip was then read, as follows, and shown to the jury:

“8. C. Bank & Trusr Compaxy. Columbia, S. C., Jan. 18,1873,
Deposited by Hon, Robert Snialls, ‘

Gold....... 0. e s e nian B St R ST $.o.....
[HTF 3 UE) 1 T R Ca e e aiie RO S B C $......
Cheek, W.oo.oo ool e e e ees eese e e 5,000

S Total ...l R R ceveeeaas

The “W.” after the word check is in poncil, and in handwriting: of Jacobs, and
was put there to indicato the person to whom it was charged, .

Witness said tho chieek is dated the T9th, and the deposit is entered the “18th of
January, and from that ticket witivess madoe the entey in the books.  The 15th way
Saturday, The 8th of February tho defendant chiceked out the $5,000 fronr the bank.
Could not bave been drawn by auy one else.  The hank wonld not have honored the
cheek of any other person,  There was no other check of $5,000 deposited that duy
by any one. , ,

The defondant waived cross examining the wituess.

The State then closed.

The defendant did not introduce testimony, .

After hearing argument by Mr, R. B, Carpenter for the defendani, Mr, L. I Yon-
wans and Attorney-General James Connor for the State, and Mre. 8.W, Melton tor
the defendant, in reply: .

The judge elmrgm{ the jury, and Sunday, the 11th duy of Novewher, 1877, the jury
returned the following verdict: ¢ Guilty,  W. ¢!, MeGregor, foreman,”

.;Smlulls moved for a new trial and in arrest of judgwiont, which motion being over-
ruled,

sentonce was pronounced upon the defendant as follows: :

The sentence of the court iy, that the defendant, Robert Smalls, e confined, at hard
lubor, in the State penitentiary for three yeuars.

C. P. TOWNSEND,
. Nov,, 1887 Presiding Judge.

~ Smalls sued out a writ of error to the supreme court of South Carolina, and peud-
ing his caso therein he was pardoned by the governor,

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA.

By his excellency W. 1, Sinipson, governor and. commander-in-chief in and over the
State aforesaid, to all and singular judges; justices, sherifiy; constables, and other
officers of justice in the suid Slate, grecting:

Whereas, at a conrt of general sessions and comon pleas hegan and holden in
Riehland™Couuty at Noveniber tepn, 1877, before Judge C. P, Townsend, aud-a jury
then and thers lawfully empancled, one Robert Smalls was tried and convicted of
“currup’f;ly roceiving a gift or gratuity under an agreemoent to cast his vote as a
senator

Now know yo that, for divers good causes and considerations we hercunto moving,
Fhave thought fit to paidon, and by these presonts do grant a full and free pardon, to
tha said Robert Smalls,

Given under my hand and the seal of the State, in Columbia, this 23rd day of April,
in the year of our Lord one thousand eight, hundreed aud seveutysnine, and in. the
13ed yoear of the Independonce of the Utited States of America.

[8BAL] W. D. SiMpson,

Governor,

By the Governor.,

R. M. Sims,
Secretary of State.
. CHARLESTON, 8, C,, April Ath, 1887,
0 'l «;;artif‘y the foregoing Lo be a true copy of the original pardon exlubited to me
S« a;y. .

JNO. L OSTENDORKE,  [L.8.]
Nolary 'ublice, 8. C.

The within certificd copy offered in evidence and is a part of the evidence of page
203, at Charleston, S. (!, Marceli 20(h to Ap'l 5, 1857, , :
JNO. U OsteNpOREE, | L8/
Not. Pub., 8. ¢,



VIEWS OF THE MINORITY.

The nndersigned minority of the Committes on Klections, wholly un-
able to agree with the conclusions ot the majority either in law or fact,
beg to dessent therefrom for the following reasons: o :

Eiliott was declared elected by a majority of 532 (Ree., p. 167). ;

To accomplish this result recourse was had (o a series of frands and
a system of partisan ralings and decisions that are not paratleled in any
ase of contest in American annals, ‘ ‘ .

To demonstrate this assertion examination of the record only is neces:
Sary, : ‘ ‘

ELECTION OFFICKRS ALL DEMOCRATS.

Let it be known at the outset that, with some exeeptions in George-
town County, every State officer of election was o Democrat. 'The ofti-
wers of registration, the boards of State and county canvassers, the
managers of election were, with the exception referred to, all Democrats,
The Republicans were denied representation at the polls and in the
count, as well as in the canvassing of the returny,  The officers of regis-
tration too, without exception, were Democerats,

‘ 'l‘lIE’C()N‘S‘I‘RU(}'[‘!()N OF THE DISTRICT.

The seventh district of South Carolina is composed of ~parts of nine
counties. The map of that district, as presented (o the conmittee, is a
curiosity. The district was created, according to high Democeratic au-
thority, for the express purpose of consolidating the bulk of the colored
vote of the State in one district, A leading Democratic newspaper on
this point deelarves (Rec.; p. 194): o

{The Greenville Daily News, Greenville, 5. G, November 20, 388‘3.}
OUR VICTORY IN THIE SEVENTIL,
We hoped -South Carolina was to have political peace, and that the advertising sho -

will have in the futare would be Favorable and for her good; but the hope is de-
stroyed by the nunecessary victory won for us in tho seventh or “ black ” district.
We doubt if there has ever been amore nnwise or absurd proceceding than the fight
agiinst Smalls and the methods used in making it. The Democratic party of the
country has gained ono moember of the House of Representatives to assist at tho organ-
ization. - He is part of asmall majority,; Dot his vote is not needed to make a majority,
and con not ke a two thirds vote,  He is a gentleman of good sense and unstained
character, hut nobody claims for him that e has sucli remarkable ability that his
presence on the floor of the House will add more than his own unnecessary vote to the
strengtli of his party. -The Stato did not need a Democratic Representative from the
‘black distriet.  Sixoof her soven Reprosentatives and both her Senators are Demo-
erats, : : :
Against thig lack of useful results in the defeat of Sinalls thoro is an endless train
of bad results, The Republican nowspapers and politicians are given a strong case, -
and thiey will make the most of it They will charge that wo carved the State into
_diatricts onocarious Hies, and by dividing conunties to throw the colored vote into one
district, and, not contented with that, have gone into that district and stolen the one

4
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Representative.. They will not only c¢harge it, but they will prove it. - Our side may,
and doubtless willy prove that the county boards acted within the law in throwing
out many boxes and hundreds of votes for irregularities. -But the fact will stund out
bald and, unguestioned that Smalls has been defeated by the oflicial negligence of
Democratic oficials, appointed by Democratic authority. The inferencs that the
negligonce was a prearranged plot to deprive the majority of its weight will be too
plain and elear for resistance.  The State will be put before the country as being
party toa plain, deliberate; and wanton fraud. : S

We do not helieve the Democratic party of the country will aceept the responsibility
for this election, und we know it ought not to doit. The facts and tigures will be
hrought out and put before the world; aud if the Democrats in Congress give Colonel
Eliott the seat they will be held before the world as aiding and abetting o erime and
receiving itg results.  From what has heen printed in-Democratle newspapoers regard-
g the election fiv the Seventh district the Democrats conld not atiord to sustain the
result as declared if Colonel Elliots vote wnade their. majority in the House. - The
chanees are nine to one-that Sonth Carelina will'niot only be abused and denounced
by the Republieans, but that this pices of work will-be repudiated. by our party in
the conntry, and we will have the stigma fived on us by the combined voice of foes
and friends. R s SUEN

The harm is not only in the future. . This clection destroys the work of years,- Wo
have claimed persistently that all the doubtful mothods we have used iu clections
wore justifinble as-being necessary for self-preservation, to defond our familios and
property from bharbarvist-and corruption.  That claim is just and true, and on it we
huve wan toleration and sympathy. Now our enemics—and we have plenty of themn—
will point to this clection as evidence that we have been lying, and will cite its
wantonness to prove that we have heen inspired only by greed for power and the de-
tenmination to deprive the negro of political rights. T

The eflect on the material prospoerity of the State inrepelling immigrants and capi-
tal must bo bad.  The effect on the people of the State must be had. It is useless to
preach honesty and intogrity while the leading and most trusted inen of the State
publicly nse and sanction such methods as have heen usod to count out Smalls, :

S an tll bhird that fouls its own nest.,”  Our nest has heen fouled without reason
or excuse,  We wish to avoid our share of the fouling as (ar ay {)(msimu by proclaim-
ing as publicly as we ean that wo condemn the proceedings in the bluck district, and
Lold no sympathy with them or those conuected with them.. They are too much like
Repiblican methods 1o be agrecable to us, :

There is no more complete raseal thau Robert Smalls, - There are fow better geritle.
men than Col. Willianu lHiott,  But the use of flagrant unfairness to defeat the choico
of the colored Republicans in the one Congressional district allotted to them is con-
travy to the honorable traditions and principles of our people and party, a miserable
pulitical blunder, and a moral wrong. ‘

To form the district, the legislature of South Carolina executed the

most complete and curious piceo of ¢ gervymandering” kuown to polit-
ical history, and with eccentrie lines and anomalous angles sueceeded
in throwing into the Seventh Congressional district of that State a pop-
alation of about 150,000, of which 150,000 are colored and 30,000-are
white, and in which are 32,000 colored voters and 7,000 white.
I willnot - be denied that the object of this gerrymander was to con-
cedeto the colored Republicans one Congressional distriet, and to so
concentrate their vote that their influence would not be felt outside of
the black distriet, and that South Carolina would return six Democratic
and one Republican Representative to Congress,

MIFTIIODS OF CARRYING THE DISTRICT.
~But it was determined to captare the ¢ black distriet,” and in order
fo do so three lines of fraudulent action were determined upon, and sue-
cesstully earpied into execution.

PREVENTING REGISTRATION.
Iivst—There was o systematic and studied effort to deny to colored
voters the right to register and to change theirregistration certificates,

The law of South Carolina requires that every voter who shall change
his residence shall take out o new registration certificate, A fair and
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equitable statute would seem to require a new registration certificate
only when the voter had changed from one voting precionet to another in
the same county, or from one county to another. But the more rigid
law was adopted, requiring a change of certificate every time a voter
removed from one house to anotherin the same precinet and evern upon
the same plantation. Not only this, but the record is replete with testi-
mony showing that every possible hindrance was thrown in the way of
colored .oters to prevent them from securing their registration certifi-
cates by the Democratic oflicers in charge of the registration of voters.

For example, we cite from therecord a {ew instauces.

Testimony of Richard Thompson (Rec., p. 387):

Q. State your name, age, residence, and ocenpation.—A, Richard Thompson ; 35;
Sumter, and a blacksmith hy oecupation.

Q. What polling precinet did you attend at the Tast olection 7-—A, Sumter precincet,

Q. For whont did you intend to vote for Congress 7-—A. I'or Smulls,

Q. Did yon vote?—A, I'did not,.

Q. Why not?—A. 1 had no certificate,

Q. Did -you offer to vote?!—A. T did.

(3. Who objeeted to your voting?—A, Mr, Leo and Col. Gralan,

Q. Did you ever apply to the supervisor of registration for w certificato ?—A. I did,
after misplacing mine,

Q. When and where *—A. At the court-house,

Q. What year?—A. In 1836.

Q. Why did he uot issue one to you —A., He stated that I was well enough known,
that I could vote anyhow ; and if I could not find mine I could vote anyhow.

Cross -examination :

Q. You say that you were regularly registered in 1882 and received your cortiticate
of registration T—A. T did,

Q. Between that time and the last general eloction you say you lost your certifi-.
cate T—A, 1 did.

Q. On last clection day were yon admitted into the polling precinet *—A, 1T was
admitted in. ' ‘

Q. And you testified that Col, Graliam and Mr, Lee refused to allow you to vote
beeause you had no certificatot—A, 'That's it. ‘

Q. Do you remember who the managers of election were?—A. A couple of young
boys, whom [ do not now remember,

Q. Do you remember that Mr. Julius Solomons, Mr. Keets, and Jennings were tho
managers 1—A. I do not remember.

Q. When did you apply to the supervisor to procure a renewal certificate?—A. 1
donw’t remember whether it was July or August, last year.
~Q. Pil you not know that under the act of tho legislature amending the general
registration laws tho supervisor could only issne rencwals under certain conditions
specified in the act ?—A. I do not know anything about that.

Q. InJuly or August last year, when you applied for u renewal, did you mako an
atidavit as to the circumstances of the loss of the original certificate T--A. 1 did not.

R. TuoMrsos,

Again, the testimony of I1. Branson (Rec., p. 379) :

(. Sticte your name, age, residence, and oceupation.—A. IL Branson; 47 years old;
Concord precinet, and o farmer,

Q. What polling precinet did yon attend at the last clection 7—A. At Concord pre-
cinet,

Q. Yor whom did you intend to vote '—A. Gen’l Smalls was my choice.

Q. Did yon havo your registration cortificate with you?—A. T 'did uot.

Q. Why did you not have it with you!—A, Because I could not get any,

Q. Did you ever apply to the supervisor of registration for a certificate ; where and
when?—A. I did at the registration at Concord, and at the conrt-house in Sumter.

Q. In what year t—A. Last year; in May, I think.

Q. Did you ever apply before that year T—A. I did.

Q. How many days did you apply at Concord, and how many at Sumter --A, Lap-
plied at Concord 3 days and at Sumter 2 days.

Q. How near to the supervisor did you get —A. Near enough to rest my elbow at
his desk. )

Q. Did you call his attention to that fact 7—A. 1 did,

Q. Did you cal] out your name ¥ ~A, 1did,
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Q. Will you swear that you made every cffort to obtain a certificate ?

(Objected to as leading.) . , :

A. I will. I mado every effort to get one.

~ Cross-examination: :

Q. You say you wero rejected by the managers at the lastelection hecause you had
no registration certificate ; is that right?—A. 1t isright, Do

Q. Did thoy ask you if you had a certificate $—A. They did.

Q. Did you tell them you had none1—A, I did.

Q. Did you have any further conversation with the managers of election 1—A., I
did not; I passed right on. ; ‘

Q. You wero present when Tiser Nelson testified; do you agres with him as to the
nuber of days the supervisor had the office open at Concord and at Sumter; and as
to the crowd at both of theso places—A, My recollection is ditferent from his; I
agree as to theo number of days, but not the number of the crowds,

Q. How many days were you at Sumter?—A. I wasg at Sumter 2 days. :

Q. Did Mr. Gaillard, the supervisor, state to you at Concord or at Sumter that he
-tefused to register you —A. He did not say to me that he refused to register me at
Concord, buton the last day while at Sumter I cameo in that morniug after the office
being opened and I asked, “Can I get any registration papers to-day # and tho re-
ply was, ‘“How old are you?” [ stated 40 or more years old, to which remarks was
replicd that I could get none, as the registration was only open for the young men
that had become of age. . , ~ ‘

Q. When was that 7—A. May, 1886, I think.

Q. That was not as far hack as § years ago #-—A, It was not.

: H. BRANSON,

It is useless to cumber this report with téstimony incorroboration of
the above. The record is full of it (see testimony of Seymore, p.367;
Woods, 376; Nelson, 378; Perry, 379; I, Seymore, 380; McCoy, 384 ;
Canty, 385 ; Sims, 385; Thompson, 387; Peterson, 339 ; Cuthbert, 390;
Drittain, 393; Laws, 395; Singleton, 396; Leaf, 396; Crosky, 398;
[farvin, 400; Mcllwain, 401; Singleton, 401 ; Bliss, 402, and many
others). All these witnesses disclose the fact of earnest and repeated
endeavor to obtain their registration certificates, and the denial of the
right to them by the officials in charge. Inoneinstance a voter walked
34 miles and endeavored through several days to obtain his certificate,
hut in vain, It is also true thateach and every one of these voters
intended to vote for contestant. There are 22 of them in all. They
attempted to register and were refused, although qualified. Then they
attempted to vote and were denied by the managers because they were
not registercd.  Here are at least 22 votes that should be counted for
contestant, unless organized and shameless fraud is to receive condone-
ment and aflirmation by the IHouse of Representatives.

REJECTION OF REGISTERED VOTERS.

Second.—The next phase of this system of fraud which we will briefly
notice is the open, shameless, and causeless rejection of voters who held
registration certificates. From the record is cited a few instances of
this character, with reference to others. =

Testimony of Richard Singleton (pp. 368-9):

Q. State your name, age, residence, and occupation.—A. My name is Richard Sin-
gleton ; about 23 years old ; Sumter precinet, and a farmor by ocenpation,

Q. What polling precinet did you attend on the day of the gencral clection7—A.
Sumter precinct, ‘ o ~ :

(}. Were you registered at that precinet?—=A. I was [produces the registration cer-
tificate]. ! o

[ Registration. certificate No. 4167, Samter County, Sumter Township or Purish—
, Election precinet, Sumter No, 1.7 ' , :

_The bearer, Richard Singleton, in a qualified voter in the above precinet, and ro-
sides at estato of Jno. Moore’s lund in Suinter Township or Parish, and ig 24
years of ‘age, and is entitled to vote at'said precinét. :

Registered on the 21st day of June, A, D, 1582, PP, GALLLARD,

" H. Rep. 1—3 Supervisor of Registration.
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Q. Did yon have your certificate with you on the day of election +—A. I did.

Q. For whom did you intend to vote for Congtess '—A. For Robert Smalls.

Q. Did you vote ¥—A. I did not, ; ~

Q). Why not?—A. Because I was objected to—John Schwion and Keels, the managers
of election. ‘ '

Q. For what reason 1—A. They said the certificate was not right.

Q. Did they say i what respect it was not right 7—A. They asked me at what place
I was living at; to which I replied on Singleton Moore’s place, swhich hus been the
pluce of John Moore, who is dead, : . ‘ -

). When you obtained your certificate of registration was John Mooreliving 7—A,
He was.dead, but Singleton Moore had charge of' it,

Q. Wasg it not generally known as John Moore’s place 2—A, It is generally known
as John Moore’s place, o

Q. When did you vote last 7—A. The election hefore this.

Q. On what certificate did you vote $-——A. On the same cortificate. '

Q. Did any one at that timo make any objections to your voting $—A. No one did,

Q. Were you living at the same place when you offered to vote at the last elee-
tion —A., At the samo place, ‘ : ‘ o ;

Q. Did or did not the managers stato that the reasons for rejecting you was that
you had changed residences 1—A. They did not, "

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge of any person or persons, who lived near
you, or in the same house with you, that were allowed to vote #—A. My father, who
was allowed to vote, lived in the same street. ; , , :

Testimony of Anthony Bracy (p. 386) :
Q. Stato your name, age, residence, and occupation.—A. Anthony Bracy; about
45 Sumter, and o hackman by occupation, , o
Q. What polling precinet did_you attend on the day of the general election $--A.
Sumter precinet, (Witness produces his certificate of registration.)
[*Registration certificate No, 4644, Sumter County, Sumter Towuship or' Parish,
; election precinct, Sumter No, 1.7 : :
“The hearer, Anthony Bracy, is a qualified voter in theabove precinet, and resides
at L. I’. Loring’s, in Sumter Township or Parish, and is 39 yearsof age, and is entitled
to vote at sald precinet. ;
“ Registered on the 30th day of June, A, D, 1382, o
. “P. P. GAILLARD,
“ Supervisor of Registration.”]

Q. For whom did you intend to vote for Congress 7—A. For Smalls.

Q. Did you have yovr certificate with you?—A. T had.

Q. Did you vote 7—A. Idid vote, but not at the Congressional box,

Q. Who ohjected to your voting ?—A. Manager Keets did, the—~—

Q. Did he state his reasons for objecting to your voting ¥—A. He did; because I
changed my residence, , : ;
; Q" Where were youliving when you changed that certificate 7—A. At L. P. Lor-
mgs. - :

L(}),. \"j"’hcm were you living when you ofteréd to vote for Congress 7~A. At Mr. Rich-
Arusons,

Q. Youwstated that you did vote at the Iast election. At what boxes did you vole
at1—A. At thoe Stute hoxes, '

Q. Ou what certificate did you vote ?—A. On thesame one you hold in your hands.

Q. For the candidates of whut political party did you vote ?—A, The Democratio
party. - . ) .
The testimony of these two witnesses is amply corroborated. The first
witness was rejected without cause. There is no pretense of cause.
The secoud witness was rejected because he had moved {rom one house
to another within the same voting precinet.  But it should be remarked
that he was allowed to vote upen the same certificate for the Democratic
State and county officers, and refused the privilegeof voting for Smalls (con-
testant), although a qualified and registered voter of and for the precinct
in which he attempted to vote, ‘ ~ o =

Similar testimony is borne by Carter, p. 343; J. Carter, 346; Davis,
34G-7; Montgomery, 348; Willston, 349; Washington, 350; Campbell
3515 Gary, 352; Glover, 353; Plonden, 3605 M. Nelson, 36035 Hampton,
362; Richardsou, 363; Harrison, 364; Austin, 564; Davis, 370; Brad-
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ley,389; ‘Anderson, 391-.,, Green,sg Wr:ght ‘39? Smith,398; L()Wry
4033 and Turney, pp. 370-1, A careful analysxs of the tesbnnmly cited
mll show (,onclmn ely the rejection by the managers of election, all of
whom were Democrats, of 277 legally registered and qualified voters,

without the shadow of cause, excuse, or Justification. This occurred at -
Sumter precinet, in “‘yumtex County. 1t is also shown beyond a doubt
that each of these 277 voters were the party friends of, and intended to
vote for, Smalls, th(, contestant. Having been re_}ec.ted without legal

cause or justification, they should now be counted, unless the House of
Representatives shall deude to become party to che cr;me of their re-

jection, which this minority refuse to bchevc. , ;

The count would then stand— :

Voters illegally denied u‘mstmtmn eveesiaea B - iensl ...‘... camees 22
Votors rejected wnhout [HATETLIRN P S P A evannes wevw e T
Or to be ﬂdded to Swalls’ vote in Sumter Couuby ilssessneennanunnssravans 299

REJ ECTION OF POLLS,

Thzr -—-The third te'mture of the orgd,nu:ed fraud uuder Whloh D]hott
(contestee) holds his seat is the illegal rejection by the boards of can-
\ assers of certain polls in several counties of the distriet for causes

liat did not exist and upon pretexts too trivial for serious consideration.
\1 ost prominent among these rejected polls is Brick Church poll, in Beau-
fort County, 13y agreement (Iu,c., p. 88) wxs admitted that the vote al:
this poll was as follows:

For Robert Smalls (contestanf}........,.....'_........'-.‘...........—.-...‘..‘.... 503
For William }ullmtt(contvstw)...., ...... colsawm st amnn e e PP 113
Ma)(mfy for .Sm.xlh.........-....-....‘........"...'.'; .......... e eeeeen 458

'Phis poll was rejected, both by the State and county bo&rds of can-
vassers, for riot and intimidation that necessitated the closing of the
polls,

The mmomy undertake to say “that the cause assigned for rqeotmg

the Brick Church vote was utterly false and unfounded. ,

Phere was no riot. There was no occasion for closing the ponb. ; The
polls were in fact not closed, though the manager interrupted the voting
‘three times, on account of noise on the outside, but said interruptions did
not in all last more than twenty to twenty-five minutes, and there is no
allegation or proof that any voter was deprived of tho privilege of vot-
ing on account of said interruption.

We deem it necessary to cite the testimony quite fullv in relation to
this box, but shall content ourselves with quoting the testimony only of
the officers of the election and of colored and wh;te Democrats, t;he ac-:
tive supporters of Elliott, the contestee.

The manager, Mr. Pr:pp, a white Dcmovmt te%lﬁes as ful]ows (Re(,.,
pp. (;20—7-—8) » :
“ Q). Give your name, age, and residence. --A E. W. i< npp, 29 ycm's of a;ge' St.
Hnlmm Island, chxfurb County.
" Q. What, if any, official position did you hold in rofprenw to the election for Con-
gressman, held in Brick Church precinet, on $t. Holena Island, on the 24 day of No-
vember last 1—A. I was appointed one of the managers, with Joln Brown and Will-.
jam Pritchard.. I went to hunt np John Brown; he was sick, and would net serve.-
I'then saw Pritchard, and he'said he woulil not ‘serve bécause ho was afraid of the:
people mobbing him ; that the people were threatening all the white Democmts, and

i would not have anything to do with it. 1 then went to Beaufort and goc anthor-
ity to. appoint some one in “their place; then I went to McDonald and tri ied to get

H. Rep. 3536——4
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him; he would not serve because it interfored with his trade asa stove-keeper; I then
appointed Gabricl Eddings, a Republican and a good man, to serve with me. We
two conducted the poll; we appointed Jackson W, Brown as clerk ; hé was also Re-
publican supervisor. ;

Q. Were there any interruptions of the voting at the poll during the day ¥—A. Yes,
sir; the first interruption that occurred was their coming in, six or eight at a time,
to vote, I then told them that but one could vote at a time, and they must go out-
side and come in one at a time ; I had a constable at the door, but they pressed against
him so that he could not hold the door closed ; I told him if he could not keep them
back to lock the door, and he then locked the door; I then kept the door locked till
they quieted down, and thon they came in very well one by one.. They came ina
crowd again after that, and we had to lock the door again ; they pushed the constable
away aud we had to threaten to put them out. The third time there wassuch &
crowd outside and were making such a noise until the clerk could not hear the names
called on the registration ticket. I then locked the door and went around the house
to the piazza, and told them that it was impossilile to carry on the voting unless they
stopped the row, ‘ :

Q. For what length of time, during those several interruptions you have described,
was it necessary to keep the poll closed 7—A. The first time about five minutes; the
second time about the same or longer; tho third time I suppose about a quarfer of an
hour or over. When they saw I intonded to close the poll or keep it closed Gantt
took them, the crowd; down the road, ;

Q. Was there any threatening or abuse of yourself during the day ¥—A. One man
that came in to vote and I asked him to show me his registration certificate; he re-
fused to do so, and said he would vote without showing it to me; he said his namo
was on the back all right; he sturted to put his ticket into the box and I pushed his
hand away; he was mad and looked provoked, and I told the constable to put him
out; he kept persisting in trying to vote and I would not let him without showing
his registration certificate; after he saw I was going to have him put out he showed
hisregistration certificate; his certificate provedtobeall right, and he voted. I went
out.about 2 o’clock and met the same man in a crowd of about fifteen or twenty, right
by the door, and he then said to the others, *This is the Democrat that wonld not let
me-vote without showing my ticket; come, lot us mob him;”'I then passed on and
took no further notice of him,

Q. How long have you lived on St. Helenn Island ?—A. Since 1882, and live tlere
still, ; ‘

Q. About how many white voters have you on St. Helena Island ?—A. About 17
or 18, :

Q. About what is the colored vote of that island 3—A. Nine hundred or over.

Q. The white men on that island are principally merchants, are they not --A. Yes.

Q. Do you know of a single one that has ever left that island or quit his mercantile
business on -account of politics 1—A, I do not. ’ :

Q. Is it not a fact that most if not all of those white merchants are Dewmocrats¥-—
A. Ithink they are, ‘ ' ' ; '

~Q. Capt. Ward is a prosperous merchant there, a strong Democrat, heen thero
for many years, and still does business there ; is that true or not ¥—A. I believe it to
be true.

Q. Will you give me the name of this man who insisted upon voting without show-
ing his registration certificate ¥—A. I don’t know his name.

). Will you give me the name of any pergon or persons that you know of, who were
provented from voting, by threats or violence, at the last election, at the poll at whick
vou were one of the managers¥—A. I can not. ;
© Q. Do you know that there is one that was so prevented —A. No,

- Redirect:

Q. You were occupied with your duties as manager inside of the polling place dur-
ing the day, were you not*—A. Yes.

Q. If voters had beon intimidated on the outside, and wore preven ted from voting
by such intimidations, you could not have known it, could you $—A. No.

Next is the testimony of the other manager, Gabriel Bddings, a Re-
publican, and who, according to the testimony of Fripp, Democratic
manpager, is “a good man” (Rec., p. 627).

Eddings testifies at page 443, Rec., as follows :

 Question, Giver1ne your name, age, and residence, and state where you were on the
2d day of November last.—A. Gabriel Eddings; about 31 years old; resides at Club
Bridge; on the 2d of November last I was at the poll. ‘

Q. What did you do that day 1—A. I was acting as supervisor.

Q. By whom were you appointed 1—A. By the manager, Mr. Fripp.
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Q. Did you see Mr, Gantt on that day t—A. I did.

@. Please state what his conduct was as far as you saw ; stato whether he came
inside of thoe polling place, and if ho did, stato how he entered aud in what manuer
ho acted.—A. He did ¢ome in, but it is impossible for me,to say that he was making
any noise, for it was not so to my knowledge, norvdid he create any excitement.

Q. Was there any interruption of the polling of votes; and if so, stute what it was,
and the alleged cause I—A. The poll was not closed on account of any interraption;
the poll was not closed to my knowledgo during the day. -

(3. Was there any unusual noise at the poll that day #—A, There was not more than
what wo are subject to on election day, :

(). State'if there was a great anxiety on the part of the people to get through vot-

Jinge—A. It did not seemn so moro than usual at any other election.

Cross-examination @
Q. Were you at the poll all day ?—A. Yes, I was. : o ;
© Q. Were not the polls elosed at any time during the day and voting stopped in con-
sequence of disturbance at the poll §—A, Tho poll did not close. L

Q. Did not a good many women come into and pags through the polling-place dur-
ing the voting +—A, They did not.

Q. Wasg tho poll closed for any reason duaring the day #—A. No. -

Q. For what parpose did Gantt go into the poll on the day of election A, To my

“knowledge I could not state at this time.

Q. How long did bie remain in there #—A, Not more than a minute or so, as well as-
I can remember, ;

(. Did he have anything tosay while in there; and if so, what did ho say?—A. He
did not have anything to say, only there was trying to get in ab the samo timo two
men, and Mr. Fripp objected, saying that they must voteono by one, and Gantt tried
to correct the boys, telling them that they must come in one by one, ,

Q. Ave you a Deniocrat or Republican ?—A. I am a Republican.

(. Were you not ono of the managers of election {—A, I was, o '

Q. Are you & white man or colored man?—A, I am colored.

The next witness, Jackson W. Brown, clerk and supervisor, testifies
), " ’ )
at page 290 and again at pages 439, 440, and 441: :

Q. Give your name, age, and residence. State where you were on the 2d day of
Novewbher last; what offieial position or positions yen held in conneetion with the
election, — A, .Jackson W, Brown; age, 32 years ; resides on S8t. Helenn: Island. On
the 2d of November lagt I was at the Cougressional poll as supervisor, and as there
was no one to act as.clerk, the manager begged that Irwould act. ;

Q. What time did you arrive at the poll” and what time did you leave?—A, Tuar-
!ri\'\:-(ll 1})y daylight and never left till all the votes were counted and everybody dis-
mndad,

Q. Was there any disturbance at the poll 7—A. No. ’

\YQ. Was there or not any quarrel inside the polling precinet during that day?—A.
None, : . . o T : ’

Q. ‘Did or did not George Rivers and Hasting Gantt have words inside the room
where the poll was-held which eaused the poll to close 1—A. They did not, inside the
room nor outside, to my knowledge. : :

Q. It the poll had been closed on that account would yon not have kuown it ?7—=A,
Ieertainly wonld, L ~

Q. Chance Green has testified that George Riversand Hastings Gantt'went into the
polting place together, and Rivers went in to- vote and that Rivers and Gantt be-
gan to quarrel about Rivers voting the Demoeratic ticket and that the poll was closed
on that account. I that true or not #—A. There was nothing of the kind.

Q. Was the poll, or the room where the poll was held, broken into by any one dar-:
ing that day I—A. No. - S ‘ o ,

Q. Did or did not any crowd rush to the roormi where the poll was held threatening
to take ont the Democratic constable, and demanding that a Republican constable bo
appointed !—A. Shame on any that say such; it is not so. . ;

Q. Did or did not Hasting Gantt, Alfred Watking, and others rush into the room
where the poll was being held and demand- the appointment of a Republican con-
stable 2—A, They did not. :

Q. Was the poll closed on that day t and, if so, state how often. If more than
onee, stato how long it was closed at each time, and upon whose authority it was
cloged, and what was the alleged reasons for its having been cloged 1—A. The poll was

cclosed twice during the day, and about five minutes each time—first on acconnt of
tho voters haviog 8o much noise on tho stoop: second, on account of more than one
wishing to come in at the same time. After the constable was appointed to let them
I by turns the noise all ceased and went all peaceable,
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¢ 3{ You speak of noise. What was the character of that noise?—A, Laughing and
alking. , :

" Q. You say that you acted as clerk.  Were you at any time disturbed by the noise
on the outside 1—A., Never was disturbed.

Q. Was there or not many persons who desired te vote but could not: vote because
of the alleged loss of their registration certificates ¥—A. A preat many of them.

Q. Were there any persons that you know of at the poll that day who did not vote
or could not vote on acconnt of the noise and disturbance made by Republicans I—A,
No, there was not one, .

Q. Were there any women at or about thé poll that day #—A. There was none ex-
cept those way oft keeping tables to sell. ‘ : .

Cross-examination : :

Q. Are you a Republican $—A. I am. : o ; , S

Q. You ray there was no quarreling insido the poll. "Were you on the inside the
whole day 3—A. I was on the inside the whole day, As1 Dbefore stated, heard of
none and knew of none, . ' :

Q. How many windows in the poll were open that day I—A. Two.

Q. How do these windows face —A. South and cast. : ;

Q. How do you know, then, that there were no women at the poll if you were in
the poll all day —A. Had there been any woman at the poll that I did not see, it
they had raised any disturbance I cevtainly would hear them if I could not see them,

Q. Well, then, you mean to say you did not se¢ or did not hear them, but not that
they were not there t—A., A few women were around the poll who had tables,

Q. Where did the women have the tables; to the south and east or north and
west 7—A, Fronting to the south from the poll. , ‘

Q.?Wiil you swear that there were no other women to the north and west of the
poll —A. No,

! Q. Did you tuke the length of time that the poll was closed by o wateh or clock -
A, T did by my wateh'; the poll was opened by my time and closed by my time,

Q. Did you take the length of time during the hours of voting when the poll was
closed on account of noise, and becanse more than one voter wanted to come in at
one time ¥—A, 1 did.

Q. Will you swear that it was only 5 minutes each time #—A, I can. ,

Q. What made you take the time?—A. Because I said then to the manager so long
:l;.s thero is talking and not fighting I deem it unconstitutional that the poll should

e closed.

Q). Was the door-locked when the poll was closed $—A. The door to admit voters
was locked, the other was not. :

Q. Was the other door shut?—A. No,

Q. Were the people other than voters passing through the room ¥—A., I think not;
to the best of my memory ono of Dr, Peter’s paticnts passed through.

Q. What did the managers say when you said that the closing of the poll was un-
constitutional 2—A. IHe said that he would not receive one vote as long as they kept
talking so loud, ;

Q. Did ho not go out and try to stop the noise?—A. He did nothing of the kind.

Q. Did he stay in the poll the whole day '—A. Yes; he went out twice on his spe-
cifie oceasions, ‘

- Q. At-what hour was the poll shut on account of noise t—A. Firat at 5 minutes to
10 o’clock, second, quarter to 11 o’clock, ‘

Re-direct examination: :
Q. Did Mr. Fripp, at the time of the closing of the poll, when you made an ohjee-
tion to its closing, have anything clse to say except what you have stated t——A, To

liad not; only took his book that contained the laws and government of managers;
after reading he went no further.

We now cite the testinony of the Democratic supervisor of elections,
a white man, an organizer of Democratic clubs, This witness is Cap-
tain Ransom Ward. 1lis testimony will be found at p. 296, Rec.:

Q. State your name, age, residence, occupation, and where you were on the 2d day
of November last.—A. R. Ward; 59 ycars; 8t, Helena; merchant and painter, I
was at the Congressional polls on St. Helena Island.

Q. Weré you one of the election officers ; and. if so, in'what capacity did you act?—
A, Supervisor. : : N

Q. How long did you remain at the polls?—A. Through the day. T didn't get
here till late, and I remained here after I got here, about when the mail loft, a little
after 11, till night; sickness in my family detained me.
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Q. During your stay atthe polls was there any riotous conduct-or disturhance dur-
ing tho day T—A. Noune that I saw,
Q. Did you hear any #—A. I heard more or less noise outside, but none in here.

Cross-oxamination by Mr. VERDIER:

Q. Your testimony refers entirely to the roont in which the poll was held, does it
not I—A, Yes, sir, ‘

Such is the testimony of the four officers who held the election—
two of them white Democrats, supporters of LElliott (contestee), and two
of them colored Republicans, supporters of Smalls (contestant). They
agree in all the main essentials, and concur that there was no riot, no
fighting, no intimidation ; that the voting was interrupted three times,
and that the aggregate of all the interruption was not over twenty-five
minutes. Nowhere is it alleged or intimated that these interruptions
deprived any citizen of his right to vote.

Now, to this testimony we add that of the supporters, white and col-
ored, of the contestee, all of whom were his partisans, and some of them
engaged in distributing his tickets.

Iirst, we cite John Major, a colored Democrat and partisan of con-
testee (Rec., p. 296) :

- Q. State your age, name, residence, and oceupation, and whero you were on Novem-
her last.—A. Jolin Major; 32; Tripp’s Point, St. Helena; am a farmer, I was
herey voting at the Congressional poll, '

Q. Was there or not any disturbance, riot, or riotous conduct, or any intimidation
of voters, as far as you saw, that day t—A. No, sir.

Q. How long did you remain at the polls 7—A, Till about half past 5, sir.

Q. What were you doing most of the day 7—A. Iissue out tickets, sir.

Q. Whose tickets?—A. Colonel Elliott’s, ‘

Q). Were or were you not a member of the Democratic elub, and wers or were you
not an officer of said club 2—A. Iivas the president of the clab. -

Cross-examined by Mr, VERDIER :

Q. Wasn’t there a good deal of threatening against Democrats by Republicans be-
fore tho day of election on St Helena Island —A. No, sir; not in my presence,

Q. Do you know Emanuel Washington #—A, Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know Thomas H. Wheeler?—A. Yes, sir.

(). IsThomas . Wheeler school commissioner —A., Yes, sir.

Q. Did you hear Emanuel Washington apply to Mr, Wheeler for a teachet’s place -
A, Ho told wme so; I wasn’t there when he asked for it.

Q. Do you know what Wheeler said to himm ?—A. No, sir,

). Did yon hear Janunary Rivers and Morris Heyward teil Wheeler that they wanted
teachers’ places ¥— A, 1 wasn’t present with them, sir.

Q. Do you know Adam Heyward 7—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you hear Adam Heyward say openly at church that Wheeler gaid he would
give no Democrat a teacher’s cortificate ¥—A. I wasn’t present; that is what Manual
Washington told me.

Next Jeffrey Iolmes, a colored partisan of contestee (Rec., p. 295)

Q. State your name, age, residence, occupation, and state whero you were on the
20 day of November last T—A. Jeffrey Holimey; 36 years old ; Coflin Point; am s far-
mer; I was here, at the Congressional poll, at Dr. Peters’ shop, all day,

Q. Was there or not any riot, riotous or disorderly conduet, or any intimidation of
voters, so far ag you saw, that day *—A. Noj Tonly saw atone time the manager, Mr,
Tripp, come out and say they couldn’t vote because there was so much rackot out-
side, They stopped about five minutes., Cyrus Jenking was ont there making a lit-
tle fun for the boys, and after he came out and made that expression then everything
was quict the balance of that day. i

Q. What were you doing at the polls -—A. T was issuing out Mr, Elliott’s tickets.

Cross-examined by Mr, VERDIER:
Q.- Do you know Chance Green 3--A, Yes, gir; I know him,
\ Q. Didn’t you ask him that day if it was right to haveso much fuss at the polls?—
A T did not.
Q. Wasn’t there a fight near the polls on that day ?—A. Not to my knowledgo.
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Q. Wasn't there a good deal of threatening against Democrats by Republicans on
the island ¥—A. None did’t made against me, because I just come, only five days of
the election, from Cliarleston ; none was made during that time, before or after.

Next is March Aiken, a colored Democrat and a peace officer, who
~ voted for contestee (Ree., p. 294): :

Q. Givo your name, age, occupation, and state where you were on the second day
of November last.—A. March Aiken; 46 years; am a tarmer, I was at the poll here.
oun that day. ‘

Q. What poll t—A. This same poll, Congressional poll, ; :
(],)i What were -you doing . at this Congressional poll §--A, I was constable at the
poll, -

Q. How long did you remain at the poll?—A. I was there when it opened and re-
mained till it closed. _ ,

.le. Did you not remain there the entire day?-~A. I was therethe entire day, till
it close, . : o :

. Q. Was there any riot, rictous conduct, disturbance, or any intimidation of voters
~ during that day —A. I was in the house all the day. All the racket was to this
door and that loor. When they called out the names I could bave heard it, and they
told me to closo the door and go out and stop the racket, There was nothing fight-
ing, only joking and running raid on one another.

Q. What time was that¥—A. About between 12 and 11 o’clock, .

1 Q. Did it cease when you told thewm to stop ¥—A. Yes, sir; they went ont from the
00F, ) .

Q. Tu the morning did - you or not, as constable, form the people into a line ¥—A.
Yes, sir; by rushing and pushing the door I went out and formed them in a line.

Q. Did you voto on that day?—A. Yes, sir. ‘

Q. For whom did you vote 1—A, I voted for Elliott. : :

Q.. Was there, or not, any intimidation, as far as you saw or heard, or any viclence
or threats made against any person who desired to vote for Wm, Elliott for Congress .
on that day ¥—A. T don’t know. The wen who distributed the tickets can answer,
I was here inside the door. . i

Q. Then you did not hear any *—A. No, sir; Ididn’t ; nomore than only the racket
out tho doors, 1 wasin the house all the time.

Q. Was the racket the joking you spoke of hefore ?—A. Yes, sir, ;

 Nextis Dr, W, C. Peters, white, Democrat, in whose office the election
was held: o ' -

Q. What is your name, where do yon live, and what is your occupation ¥—A, Wm.
C. Peters; Ilive on St. Helena Island, and am a practicing physician,

Q. Where were you on the second day of Novémber Jast ¥—A. I was at my office
during the hours of 9 to§; I was away part of that time making professional visits.

Q. Can you remember what portion of the time you were away ¥—A. Asnearasl
can recollect it was between the hours of 11 and 2 o’clock. .

Q. During your stay, what was the character of the election as fur as it relates to
the conduct of the people at the polls1—A. The people here on this island have leld
 their ¢léetion here several times, and I saw no difference in them of what it was here-

- tofore. :

Q. Was there any riotous behavior or violence ¥—A. None that I have scen.
Q. Was it or not a peaceful election —A. It was a peaceful election, ) C
Q. Did you or not hear any of the managers on that day speak of the character of
the clection 1A, T can’t say that I did.
Q. Did you hear of any violenco or disorderly conduct or intimidation of voters on
that day ¥—A, No. ; : ‘
Q. Where was the Congressional poll of the Brick Church precinet of Beanfort
%‘(inmtiy held on the second day of November last1—A, At my office, on 8t. Helena
sland. , ~
Q. Did you use & portion of the same bailding for your own purposes during the
day ?—A, I did. '

Above is the testimony of eight men—five of whom were ¢lection offi-
cers and gix of whom were the partisan friends of contestee—three of
whom were white and five colored men. We ask careful reading of
their testimony, and assert, without fear of successful contradiction,
that it is established conclusively—

,ﬁirst, That there was no riot, intimidation, or fighting at or near the
polis, ' ‘
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Second. That the voters tried to come in too rapidly, which caused
the managers twice to suspend the votmg each time for about five min-
utes, w hvu it was resumed.

Third. That the good-natured langhing, joking, and loud talking too

‘near the polls eaused Mr. Fripp, the Democratic manager, to interrupt

the voting and to go out and request order, and that his request was at
once complied with, and that this occasioned a third mtermptxou last-
ing, perhaps, fiftecn minutes.

Fourth. That thus the whole of the three interruptions did not con-
sume over twenty-five minutes, and that no one was thereby deprived
of his right to vote. ;

And this testimony, mainly given by whitd and colored Democrats, is
corroborated by that of at least fifty witnesses. We refer to a few of
them. (Vide testimony of Watsou, p. 434 ; Middleton, p. 435; Ned
Majer, p. 436 3 Jenkins, p 437 ; Singleton, p. 441 A, Small, p.443; Nab
Nm]l, . 141 Gantt, p. 201 M(,Doual(l P.293; Jackeon, p. 2065 \Vuslb
ington, p. f)(, L. F. bhaphn, p. 297 J. B. bolonel p- 207 Watkms,
De 2% . Watson, p: 298; J. Young, pp. 298, 209, M(u,k, P J)‘) Hasel,
p. 2995 C. Jenkins, pp. 29() 300 T. B. Rwers p. 300 ; Tony \thlmls,
pp. .30() 301; I. Chisbolm, p. &01, M. Riley, p. 301, and many others.)

Sueh bung the facts, let us recur to the law.

The statute of South Carolina requires the polls to be kept open from
7 a,m. to 6 p. m., ¢ without interruption and adjournment.” It does nct
void an election because of temporary adjournment. The purpose of
the law is that all shall be given an opportunity to vote and that the
eleven hours set apart for the exercise of that right shall not be cur-

tailed. It is nowhere alleged or shown that the twenty-five minutes in-
terruption deprived any man of the opportunity to vote or had the
slightest eftect upon the result of the election the one way or the other.

The law is clearly laid down in Me¢Crary (page 104, paragraph 142):

1. If the statute fixing the hours during which the polls shall remain open ex-

pressly declares that a failure in this respcct shall render the election void, it must he
strictly enforced.

2. But in the absence of such a provision in the statute it will be regarded ag 80
Jar directory only as that unless the deviation i’lum the legal hour has dﬁevtul the
nwm}t, it will be disregarded. ‘

3, If the d&viation from the legal hours he great, or oven mnsxderablo thc presump-.
tion will be that it has affected the result, and the burden .to uvmthr(m this pre-
sumption will be on him who upholds the election, DBut if the deviation be dlight,
the presumption will be that the result was not affected, and the onus will be shifted
to him who attacks the election to show that the deviation did a.ﬂ‘ect; the resnlt, ’

Such is undoubtedly the law.

In thy case at bar the whole interruption was slight,

Tt is not pretended that the result was afiected thereby.

The statutes of South Carolina do not vmd an election because of
deviation from the hours fixed.

The evidence shows that the election was fair and peaceable,

Under this condition of law and fact, upon what principle the l)mrd
of canvassers threw out the Brick Church bhox we are unable to see,
That box must be counted, unless the House of Representatives shall
make itself party to open, hhdnwkss, inexcusable; and unpalliated fraud
and crime,  If the frand and erime ended merely with depriving con-
testant of his seat and in temporarily disfranchiging some 500 American
citizens, it were bad enough.  But our system of Government, founded
upon the right of the people to rule and the sanctity of the b‘»llor can
not long withstand assaults like this, if they be tolerated and condoned
by the representative body of the people. The vote of Brick Church
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should Le counted, and to Smalls’s (contestant) vote must be added 503
votes and to Elliott’s (contestee) vote must be added 43 votes.

In argument before the committee contestee’s counsel claimed that
there was not a quorum of managers at Brick Church box.

This question was not raised by the contestee in his replication. But
if it were, we need only cite the law, which provides for three managers ;
that Tripp was one, and that he obtained authority to appoint others,
and that nnder that authority he ‘“appointed Gabriel Eddings, a Re-
publican, and a good man.” (See Tripp’s testimony, Rec., 627.) Ed-
dings served “under color of authority” at least, and was a de facto
officer, and with Tripp constituted a quorum of managers present.

Uptothe Forty first Congress the authorities conflicted, but the weight
of authority was as laid down in Jackson ». Wayne, to wit: that, when
the law required three magistrates to preside at the election, a return
by three persons, two of whom were not magistrates, was defective. In
three other cases it had been held that a failure on the part of electior
officers to take the required oath voided the election. (McTFarland v,
Culpepper; Kaston ». Scott; Draper v. Johnson.) In another case a
precinct was thrown out because only two inspectors were present, the
law requiring three.” (Howard v. Cooper, 1 Bartlett, 375.)

But, on the other hand, it had been decided in Mullikin ». Fuller,
Clark ». Hall, Flanders ». IIahn, and Blair ». Barrett, 1 Bartlett,
176, 215, 443, and 318, that in the absence of fraud the acts of a defacto
officer of election are valid as to third persons and the public.

But in the Forty-first Congress arose the case of Barnes »v. Adams,
The question of officers of election de fucto and de jure was elaborately
discussed and all the cases both in the courts and Congress were elabo-
rately reviewed, and it was tinally held that de facto officers, having color
of authority, may hold an election, and thatin the absence of fraud their
acts, in so far as they affect third parties and the public, are perfectly
valid. (2 Bartlett, 760; ib., 897; Gooding v, Wilson, Forty-second
Congress; People v. Cook, 4 Selden; Taylor ». Taylor, 10 Minun., 107;
10 Mo., 121; 10 Cal,, 352; 14 Barbour, 259, and many other cases.) Mec-
Crary cites the Congressional and court cases, and dwells at great
length on the case of Barnes v. Adams, and then declares that ¢“the re-
- port in that case was adopted by the House after a full discussion nem.
con., and the doctrine then asserted may now be reqarded as the settled law
of the House.” (McCrary’s Law of Elections, § 78.)

Eddings was therefore a de facto officer, acting under color of authority ;
there is no allegation or proof of fraud, and his acts, in so far as they
affect the parties to this case and the public, are binding and valid.

BRICK EPISCOPAL CHURCH.

The next “rejected box” is that of “Brick Episcopal Chureh,” in

Berkeley County. DBy agreement (p. 88, Rec.) it is admitted that the
vote there cast was—

Votes

For Robert Smalls. ... i it iaeter ttemes tvioee cwmacnsetonaveanasanes 267
For William Elliott......... S SRR S NS 3
Smalls’ majority......ooie i it icieieaciaienecacanans 2064

This vote, contestee claims, should not be counted upon three grounds
(see his answer, clause 3, page 643, Record):
- First. Intimidation of voters.
?eecond. That the voters at that box did not hold registration certifi-
cates. '
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Third. That no list of registered voters for said precinct was pre-
pared, because of the failure of the voters to register. ’

As to the first ground, there is not a line or syllable of testimony in
the record attempting to show intimidation of voters at Brick Epis-
copal Church. The general charge of intimidation we will notice fur-
ther on, but nowhere does it apply to the conduct of the election at this
precinet, and we therefore dismiss it.

-As to the other charges, that the voters were not registered, and that
no registration list was prepared for said precinct, they are absolutely
and unqualifiedly untrue. ,

The woters were registered, produccd their certificates, and voted.

There was a prepared list of registered voters for the precinct.

In order to arrive at a correct understanding of the election at this
box it is necessary to state that ¢ Brick Episcopal Chureh” and the
town of Mount- Pleasant are both in Berkeley County, but 6 miles
apart., The former isin the Seventh Congressional district; the-lat-
ter is in the First. They are both in the same registration precinct.
But voters in the town of Mount Pleasant voted there both for State
aund county officers, as well as for Congressman for the First Dis-
trict.  But voters outside of the town had to vote for State and
county officers at Mount Pleasant, and then go 6 miles to Brick Epis-
copal Church where the polling place for Congressman from the Seventh
distriet was held. The laws of South Carolina require separate boxes
for State and county officers, and for Congressmen and Presidential
clectors. Sometimes these boxes are placed conveniently near each
other. Inother cases, as in the one under review, the boxes were placed
miles apart. Mount Pleasant and Brick Episcopal Ohurch are in the
same voting precinet, but the polling place for State officers for voters
residing outside of Mount Pleasant is in Mount Pleasant, while they
must travel 6 miles to vote for Congressinan or President. The voter
residing in Mount Pleasant is entitled to vote for State and county
as well as Congressman at Mount Pleasant. But different registration
certificates are not required. No voter is obliged under the law to have
one registration certiticate for Congressmen and ancther for State offi-
cers. He votes for all upon one certificate, though at separate boxes,
often placed miles from each other. We find on page 184, Record, in.
the instructions to managers and commissioners, the following :

The word “precinct” shall be construed to embrace an area sufficient to provide

for holding elections for members of Congress and Presidential olectors at different
stations from those stations where clections are held for State and county officers,

On page 187, same documeut, we find the following :

In any case in which a voting precinct may form part of more than one Congres-
sional district; if no other provision bé made by law, the commissioners of election for
the county in which such precinet issituated shall provide for such precinct separate
boxes for every Congressional district within which the said precinet may be, and
each voter at such precinct shall deposit his ballot for member of Congress in the box
provided for the Congressional district within the limits of which said voter may
regide. N

The form of a registration certificate is as follows, taken from record,
page 392:

[ Registration certificate No. 159, Sumter County, Middleton Township or Parish;
election precinct, Middleton,]

The bearor, Amos Green, is a qualifisd voter in the above precinet, and. resides at
Wedgetficld plantation, in Middleton Township or Parish, and is 56 years of age, and
entitled to vote at said precincet.

Registered on 3rd day of May, 1882,

P. P, GAILLARD,
8. of Reg,



58 SMALLS V8. ELLIOTT.

.Now the law ot South Carolina does not require the voter to have two
registration certificates.  He is registered for a voting precinct and if
that precinet be embraced in two Congressional districts, he must vote
in that district in which he resides. Mount Pleasant is a voting precioet.
Brick Episcopal Church is in that voting precinct, but the precinet is,
divided between two Congressional districts, the town of Mount Pleasant
being in the First and Brick Episcopal Church in the Seventh district,
a voter therefore registered for Mount Pleasant preciuct, it he reside
in the town of Mount Pleasant must vote for Congressman in the First
distriet at the polling precinet in the towa. But if he be registered for
the precinet and reside out of thelimits of the town hie must vote for Con-
gressman in the Seventh district, at Brick Episcopal Church, where
the polling-place for Congressman of the Seventh district is found. - But
he does not require a special registration- certificate to do this,” His
general registration certificate for Mount Pleasant precinet is enough.
This must be so, because on page 183 of the record we find the follow-
ing in the “instructions to managers, ete.,” preseribing when the polls
shall be opened in Berkeley County.. - - .o . o0
~Tn'the county of Borkeloy, at Christ Chureh Parish, Mount Pleasant, and Wappetaw
Chureh s in the Parish of 8t. Thomas and 8t Dennis, Muster Houss and Ben Potter’s;
at Halfway Creek, in ‘the Parish of St. Jaines Santee, Thirty-two Mile House. and
Heénderson’s 8tore; in the Parish of 8t. Stephen, 8t -Stepheu. Depot and Bluckyille;
in"the parish of ‘St John'’s Berkeley, Calamus Pond, Bluck Ouk, Strawberry Ferry,
Pivopolis and Biggin Church i in 8t Androw’s Parish, Brick Chureh; on John'’s
Istand, Haunt Gap and Burgess's Cross Roads; on Wadmalaw Island, Enterprise Land-
ing’; in the parish of 8. John's Colleton; Central School House ; on. Edisto Island, in
the: parish.of-8t. James Goose Creek, Hickory Bend, Cross Roads, Cooper’s Store,
Twenty-two Mile House on the State road; Ten Mile Hill, and Monut Olivet Chnrelu
There shall be an additional voting precinet in Christ Church Parish, county of Berkeley,
included in tle Seventh Congressional district, for the clection of Presidential electors and
Congressmen, at the Brick Episcopal Church, on the Georgetown road, within a few miles
‘of the town of  Mount Plessant, and no voler not resident of the town of Mount Pleasant
‘shaltvote for member of Congress al the toting precinet in. the town of Mowunt Pleasant. -
 The italies are ours. Now, if Brick Episcopal Church were a regis-
tration precinet of itself, why should it be designated as simply a polling
‘place for holding the Federal elections? Why was no provision made
for holding State elections¥. The testimony shows that voters voted at
Mount Pleasant for State officers and then went 6 miles to Brick
Episcopal Church and voted for Congressman on one and the same cer-

tificate (Rec., p. 97). At page 95 Kirk swears as follows: =

= Q. Was.or-not any registration books received by your board for Christ Church
‘Parish from’ supervisor of registration 1A, Yes, sir; two books; one for Mount
Pleasant and ono for Wappetaw Church, - - 7 7 oo 0
~ Q. Do-you state positively that no book was received by your board in-which wera
Yegistéred the names of the voters of ‘Brick Episcopal Chureh precinet 1—A. The book
Jor. Mount Pleasant, in. which the voters for member of Congress from the 1st Cong,
wlist,, that is, voters within the corporate limits of Mount Pleasant, I believe, con-
tained also the names of voters who should vole for member of Congress at Brick Episcopal
‘Chiwrchy-in the 7th Cong. dist. - No book was furnisked me by the supervisor of registra-
tion-for Brigk Episcopal Clrurch, - .~ . oo s ‘

~~It is folly to eontend that thie mere establishment of a separate poll
for the Federal election within the same precinet necessitated a change
“of registration certificate. The officer of registration should have made
duplicate books containing tho names of the registered voters of Mount
Pleasant precinct, and one book should have been sent to Mount Pleas-
ant for the State poll and one to Brick Episcopal Church for the Federal
poll. Hedid notdo so, He failed in his duty,and he was the partisan of
‘contestee. He made one book, but it was retained at Mount Pleasant,
‘where only 60 votes were cast, and denied it to Brick Episcopal Church,
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where 270 votes were cast. This was done by Mr. Kirk, the Democratic
chairman of Iederal elections (Rec., pp. 94, 95).

But the question for the House of Representatives to determine is
whether the people shall be disfranchised for the fraud or neglect of
ofticials. Thetestimony (pp. 96 to 99, Rec.)shews that the managers were
all Democrats; that they compelled every voter to show his cerificate
of registration; that no one was permitted to vote who did not pro-
duce his certificate, and that the election was fair and peaceable, We
sce no reason why the vote should not be counted. The certificate and
not the book is the requisite. Mr, Kirk says they rejected the box “on
the ground that the voters voting at that precinct were not registered for
that precinet” (Rece., p. 95), and in the very ncxth breath almost admits
“ that the books for Mount Pleasant contained the names of those who
should vote for member of Congress at Brick Episcopal Church in the
Seventh Congressional district;” and he could bavetaken that listin the
book and compared it with the poll list from Brick Episcopal Church and
verified and counted the vote as was his duty to do. Why he failed to
do so we can only infer.

The vote should be counted, and to Smalls’s vote should be added 267
votes, and to Illiott 3 votes. .

REJECTED BOXES IN GEORGETOWN COUNTY.

The next rejected boxes are in Georgetown County. Four boxes in
said county, to wit, Sandy Island precinct, Cedar Creek precinct, Griers
precinct, and Santee precinct, casting in the aggregate 328 votes for
Smalls (contestant) and 8 votes for Elliott (contestee), were rejected upon
the same ground, to wit, that the full number of managers were not
present.  All managers appointed except one were Democrats. No
reason is assigned for their failure to serve. Let us look at these boxes
in detail. At Sandy Island precinct three managers were appointed;
two refused to serve, one did serve and with a clerk and supervisor con-
ducted theelection. The election was fair, legal, peaceful ; contestee does
not introduce a syllable of testimony to impeach the fairness of the elec-
tion. The testimony of Lance, Rec., p. 77, 78; of Johnston, p. 79; and
of McColtree, p. 68, attests the perfect regularity and fairness of the
clection.

Now we turn to Cedar Creek precinet. The testimony of Dobbins 69,
Wilson 70, and Lambert 76--77, show the election perfectly fair and regu-
lar in all respects; no testimony contradicts them or impeaches the
clection.

Three managers were present; one of them it seems failed to take the
oath. The testimony of Pinkney Wilson, Democratic manager (page
70), is. uncontradicted and shows three managers present, the number
required by law ; that one did not take the oath is immaterial. (Mec-
Crary, sec. ed., p. 186, Cooley’s Const. Lim., 618-619.)

Yet the board rejected this box.

But at Indiantown precinet, in Williamsburgh County, where only
two managers served, the box was counted, the reason probably being
that Elliott, contestee, had a majority ot votes in the box.

The next rejected box is Griers precinct. The voting was fair, election
regular; no complaint of it from any source, There were three mana-.
gers, two regularly appointed and Alston, a third manager, sworn in
and served in place of one who would not qualify. See testimony of
all the managers—Jenkins, p. 70-71; Grier, 666-8; Alston, 734 ; Johu-
gon, 72-3.
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 Upon what pretext the box was rejected we are unable to imagine.
’I‘he reason assigned is that one manager did not qualify. We grant it,
Still there were two regularly appointed managers, and they swore in a
third, who at least was a de fucto officer, with color of authority. There
is no 'Lllegatlon or proof of fraud, and the vote should, by every rule of
law and equity, be counted.

We next come to Santee pr ecinet.  Two Democrats and one Rapub
lican manager were appointed. The two Democrats, Durant and Tay-
lor, would not qualify because of their business at home, yet these two
Jmen (Durant, p. 676-78, and Taylor, p. 670-71) both swear that they
visited the polls and remained there several hours during the day. The
clection was held b) Eady, regularly appmuted wanager, a clerk, and
Johnson, a sapervisor. « Not asyllable of testimony impeaches the fair-
ness and regularity of the election in all of its conduct.  The box, prop-
erly sealed, was delivered to the proper officers, and they refused to
count the vote because the two Democratic managers failed to qu&ht;
The vote at these four rejected polls was as tollows ~

Smalls. | Elliott, -

S.mdy Island .. . 33 L
Cedar Creek........ camasetana o 18 liunan e,
Griers precinet ... oeus PR . PR .85 4
Santee precinet....... Vesssiemiunnieenions A N R N SN PO -1 15 P 4

. . : FRCTRAR, _.-T,

It is presumed that no one will be found to ()bJect to counting the
votes cast at Cedar Creek and Grier’s precinct, inasmuch as at these
polls there was a quorum of legally appointed managers, and in addi-
tion at each box a third manager, who was a de facto officer and acted
under color of authority.

Counting these two boxes must add to contestant’s vote 83 vutes aud
to contestee’s 4 votes.

But we contend that all of these votes should be eounted Let'lt be
remembered that there is not an iota of testimony going to impeach the
fairness and regular conduct of the election at these polls, the legal
count, and proper return of the boxes. They stand rejected because of
the fallure of the full number of managers to qualify.: In every instance
tlie managers f.culmg to qualify were the partisan friends of contestee.
Now, the question is whether the voters at these boxes and the contest-
aut shall be deprived of the result of the election beeause of the neglect
or failure of some of the officers to do their duty. The law of South
Carolina provides for three managers at each box. But it does not void
the election because of the failure of three managers to serve. Hence
itis only’ d;rectory inso f&r as it provides for three managers. MceCrary
SAYH

lrrcgnmrmes are gener‘mv to be dnrcgarded unless the statute expressly declares
that they shall be fatal to an-election, or unless they are such in thvmscl\es as . to
change or render doubtful the result. (Mchry, 2d ‘ed., p. 186, )

The laws in relation to boxes, locks, the number of nmmgerq, clerks,
etc., and the ordinary facilities of an election are mainly directory, unless
the statute makes them otherwise, and an infraction of these directory
provxsxons, in the absence of fraud, will not vitiate the election.

Nor is the voter to be deprived of his right, or the citizens to lose the
result of an election fairly held, because of some unimportant omission
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of formn, or the neglect of duty, carelessness, or ignorance of some elec-
tion officer, or the failure to carry out some unimportant direction of
the law. » ;

Cooley, Constitutional Limitations, thus lays down the law:

Election statutes are to be tested like other statutes, but with a leaning to liber
ality, in view of the greutﬂub]ic purposes which they accomplish ; and except whore
they specifically provide that & thing shall be done in the manner indicated, and not
otherwise, their provisions designed merely for the information and guidance of the
oflicers, must bo regarded as directory only, and the election will not-bo defeated by
a failure to comply with them, providing the irregularity has not hindered any who
were entitled from exercising the right of suffrage, or rendered doubtful the-evi-
dences from-which the result was to be declared. ~ In a leading case the following
irregularities were held not to vitiate the clection: The accidental substitution of -
another book for the Holy Evangelists in the administration of an oath, both parties
being ignorant of the error at the time; the holding of tho election by persons who
were not officers de jure, but who had colorable authority, and acted de facto in good
{aith; the failure of the board of inspectors to appoint clerks of the election; the
closing of the outer door of the room where the election was held at sundown, and
then permitting tho persons within the room to vote; it not appearing that legal
voters were excluded by closing the door, or illegal allowed to vote; and the failure
of the inspectors or clerks to take the prescribed oath of office, And it wase said, in
the same case, that any irregularity in conducting an election which doos not deprive
a legal voter of his vote, or admit a disqualified voter to vote, or cast uncertainty on
the result, and has not been occasioned by the agency of a party seeking to derive
a benefit from it, should be overlooked in a proceeding to try the right to an office
depending on such -election. This rule is an eminently proper one, and it furnishes a
very satisfactory test as to what is essential and what not in election laws.  And
whero a party contests an election on the ground of these or any similar irregularities,
ho ought to aver and be able toshiow the result was affected by them. (Cooley’s Const.
Lim., 618.) S

In the casoe of contest of Arnold vs, Lea, from Tennessee, decided in
the Twenty-first Congress, in 1830, the law of Tennessee requiring a
ballot-box with a lock, etc., and at the election a gourd with a hole cut
in it was used, it was held, in the absence of proof of fraud, to be a good
clection and the vote was counted. In the case of the State vs. Huggins
(Harper’s 8. C. Reports), it was set up that all the managers had not
qualified, and Coleock, J., one of the ablest jurists South Carolina ever
produced, as the organ of’ a nnanimous court, held the election good.
Judge Coleock, in discussing the absence of some of the managers and
their duty, said: “It is a duty which might as well be performed by
one man as forty, and with as much security to the public welfare.”
(See, also, 1 McMillan, 496; 4 Selden, 67; 10 Minn., 107 ; 14 Barbour,
2595 2 Bartlett, 764 ; 1 Bart., 313; Cox vs. Strait, decided in the Forty-
fourth Congress, and authorities cited by Cooley, pp. 618, 619.)

If South Carolina had intended that an election held by less than
three managers should on that account be void, she would have said so
in her statute. She did not say so0; hence the law fixing the number of
managers is simply directory. The State board of canvassers of South
Carolina so beld, because the record in this very case shows that both
State and county boards canvassed and counted boxes at which there
were not three managers. At Indiantown precinet, Williamsburgh
county, there were two boxes (one for the sixth and one for the seventh
distriet) and but two managers, or one manager for each box, yet the
box was counted by both the State and county boards.

At Kingston, in the same county, there were also two boxes (one for
the sixth, Dargan’s district, ani one for the seventh) and only three
managers to the two boxes. Still it was counted by both State and
county boards. At Cades precinet, the same county, was a similar
state of affairs, and yet the box was counted. So much for construc-
tion by the State and county boards,
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‘There is no proof of fraud at the four boxes under discussion—not
even an allegation—nor is there a whisper of complaint that the result
was affected by the fact that less than the prescrlbed number of man-

gu's were present. :
~Another fact is, that the managers who failed to serve were the par-
tisan friends of the contestee. He now seeks to take advantage of the
neglect of duty of his own friends, and that, too, without a smgle alle-
gation or word of proof against the perfect mtegrxty of the election at
thése boxes.  He relies upon a bare technicality, occasioned by the
willful neglect of duty by his own friends, and asks that hundreds of
voters be disfranchised and deprived of the results of an election tmgambt,,
the integrity of which he utters not a syllable of complaint.

Judge Cool 05 lays down the rule, quoted before, which he cmphar
sizes, avmg ; ;

This ruleis au mmnonﬂy pr()por one, and it furnishes a very smtnsfaetorv tost.as to
whiat i essential and what nm essentinl in election laws, ~And when a party con-

tests an clection on the ground of theso or any similar xrm«ru}mitws, he ought to be
-able to show that the result was atfected by them,

Now, what is the rule so commended by this gre% lawyer ¢

Any irregularity in conducting an election which does not deprive a_ legal voter
of his vote vr admit adisqualified voter to vote, or cast uncertainty on thorosult and
has not bheen occasioned by thre ageucy of the party seeking to derive benefit from it,
should be overlooked ina proceodmg to try the right to an office depending upou tho
election. (Cooley Const. Lim., pp. 618,619.)

Now, test the question of counting tliese four rejected boxes by this
vule. The irregularity upon which contestee asks their exclusion did
not deprive a single legal voter of his right to vote; did not admit a
disqualified person to Vote ; did not cast doubt or unoertmnty upon the
result; and was caused by the failure and neglectof the partisan friends
of him’ who seeks to profit by it. ,

By every rule of law and of justice the votes of the%e fom‘ bO‘(bb should
be counted, and to the vote of Smalls should be added 328 votes, aud to
Elliott’s, 8 votes.

We deem it proper here to notice how this plan of defeating the eleo-
tion by the failure of Democratic managers to act was carried out at
other places.

At Bigging’ Church precinet, Richland County, 400 voters ‘Lssemhled ‘
nearly all of them wishing and intending to vote for contestant, bub]
there were no boxes, no managers, Managers had been dppomted, all
Democrats, but none would serve,  The sworn duty of the commission-
ers of Federal elections (all Democrats), was to provide boxes, yet none
were provided. The sworn duty of the supervisor of registratioun,
alsoa Democrat, was to provide a book for the poll containing the list of

registered VOtLI‘S, and yet none was provided. (Ree., 98, 112, 113, 114.)

GADSDEN PRECINOT.

~In the same county, at Gadsden precinct, the same shameless plan was
pursued. Three managers, all Democrats, were appointed.  They would
not serve, . Then, after 10 o’clock, the Federal supervisor, seeing that
the managers would not serve, swore in three-managers and they held
the election; and 451 votes were polled for contestant and none for
contestee. :

~ The testimony of the three nmnagerb who held the electlou (Shriver,
p. 90; Jackson, p. 91, and Richardson and Reynolds, 89, 90) show that
the election was fair; that none but registered voters wcre allowed to
vote, and no roglstemd elector refused the right to vote ; that the count
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was correctly made, and the return sent up in accordance with law,
This testimmony is not contradicted. De facto ofticers, acting under color
of authority, held the election. , ;

- Attention is called to the excuses of the original managers fer not
serving.  All three of them were sworn in this contest.  'We will not
cumber the report with their testimony, but call attention to it.  (See tes-
ot Clarkson, 791; Adams, 792, and Scott, 793.) ,

An analysis of the testimony of these men shows they were timid
men-—afraid of prosecution if they acted as managers. They knew that
no matter how fairly and legally they acted they would be prosceuted.
Therefore they would not aet. This is sworn to by all of these men.
In the same breath they swear that they have acted in past clections
—one of them since 1877 nearly every year, and the others in 1882 and
1884, It either of these men were ever prosecuted they fail to testify
to the fact,  They are both Democrats. They acted as managers when
the marshals, State judges, district attorneys, and all the court officers
were Republicans, and they were not afraid then, but now, when the
oflicers and court machinery are Democratie, they become nervous and
feartul of prosecution.”

Another strange feature of the testimony of these witnesses is that
the negroes were turbulent,  Managers feared personal injury from tur-
hulent negro voters (Clarkson, p. 791, Adams, p. 792, Scott, p. 793),
and did not want to serve on that account. Yet they all had served in
former elections, when the negro voters were more turbulent, more in-
flamed, more unanimous, and more violent than now, for they all tes.
tify that there were at least 100 negroes who would have voted for El-
liott, and a great many more who staid away because they did not want
to vote for Smalls. ’ : ‘

I'‘car comes upon these men violently in proportion as danger de-
creases, - The less danger the more scare. The more danger the less
dread.  This is strange but true-—a pysyschological anomaly that
should be veferred to the physicists. They swear there are 200 white
Democratic voters and at least 100 Democratic negroes, and yet, with
these 300 against 250 lukewarm, nonchalent negroes, these managers
were afraid, Fn o

Such is eontestee’s evidence and explanation of the failure to hold
a regular election for Congressman at Gadsden precinet. There wasno
trouble in finding boxes, managers, and all the paraphernalia for hold.
ing the State and county elections. Adams and Clarkson came to the
polls and voted for State and county officers in the very same building
in which they should have held the Federal election.

An unprejudiced man can not read their testimony without coming
to the deliberate conclusion that these Democratic managers, Ly pre-
concerted plan, neglected their duty and failed to qualify and serve in
order to prevent an election and disfranchise nearly 500 voters for no
other reason than that these voters were the friends and supporters of
the contestant,

1t were, in our opinion, better for their manhood had they given the
real reason for failure to serve, instead of falsely affecting a timidity
they did not feel and a fear which, aceording to their own oaths, was
as haseless as an idiot’s dreamn, There should therefore be added to
Smalls’s vote 451, ~

THEFT OF BALLOT-BOXES,

We come now to examine another act in this drama of fraud. It re-
lates to the theft of ballot-boxes, I'here are tivo instances so shameless,
50 open, s0 inexcusable, that the counsel for contestee could not and

H. Rep.1-—6
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did not, in regard to one of ’ch(*se ‘boxes, pretend to defend t,he 'wt!on
of the mana,_,ms with regard to it in his oral argument.

“We refer first to the Adams Run box in bolleton County. -

“Three Democratic managers, to wit, L. C. Iehhng R. T, ng aml
A B. Gonzales, conducted the election. “There is not in the reu)rd &
syllable of testimony to impeuch the pm fect log: xhcy and puu,eml nat-
ure of the election.

After the polls closed the wm‘s were: (*mmtvd the retm'ms ‘made out
and witit the ballots placed in the box. The other two Imanagers then
p}a('ed the box in charge of the third manager ((GGonzales) as return-
ing officer, and he carried it to Waterboro’, and instead of delivering
it to the properofficer, he left it at the house or store of one Gruber,and
the box was never hmrd of again, so far as thig record discloses.

- Who or what Gruber was does not appear ; but it does appear that
[w was not an officer of ﬂw eieetxm: xmd lnd no aubboritv ta haud}e or
receive the box. .

Thiese are the undmned Lu,tw as to tlus bo:x. : 'l‘hey 1est up(m the tes
timony of two of the managcrs thum%elvcs. - (Behling, p. o.id d‘ml Gon-
zales, . 53b.)

Of course, Imvnw no tmv, the (:}mvcwsors made no remm. ; o

© The question for the House is, Whether the faultor neglu,t or crime
of one manager can deprive the cxtmens of their election and contestant
of his rights under it%  If 8o, the power of the people is gone and their
right to rule through the honest ballot is lodged, in South Carolina at
least, in the hands of a few men called managers.  The law as laid down
gives to the contestant the right to show by secondary testimony what
the vote really was. (MeCr ary, Law of K Llections, pp. 97, 1313 11 Mich.,
362; 9 Kansas, 569.) -

At this stolux box there were two Federal supervwors ‘one was a
Republican (Bailey) and the other (Simmons) was a Democrat. These
men cach kept-a poll list and made a retm b, and (:u(,h szgnul thc other’s
list and return.

This return is not; dumd It; is found at page .)31, oSZ,andm as,fol-‘
lows ;. : o :

Rctum of Hw elcclwn Imld at Ad&ms Iwm pr ﬂmwf ( t;lleto;: (;acmtj, Norrmber 2 1886'

Tim w]m}o number of votos gwun for munher nl Cpngn waa 214 Ot w]noh‘
Sty received 1775 of which Ellioit rec eived 37,

We, the undersigned supervisors; certify that the above is Gor rvut} mt.um of: the
votes cast at the election held M; Adams Run pmcmob of Collot«m County, on the 24
day of Novunlmr 18‘3(; ‘ L . ‘ _
S Ee M. W Sxamoxs,

' C. R, BaILRY,.
: Snpm‘msors

‘ ’l‘hese roturns, oﬁioml in theu' chara('t;er, :md attexted by the Federal
supervisors of each party, should be counted, and to umu,smnt’s vote
must be added 177 and to contestee’s vote 37, e

“T'o reject and refuse to count this return is to permit contesteo to be
benelited by the fault or crime of his own partisans. = Nay, more, it is
to permit the triumph of criminal neglect, designedly perpetrated in the
interest of contestee, by which American citizens are cheated of their
electxon. Who cian aiiord to do t ns? «th can ‘bﬁ{)l’d to be partwﬁ
tcnt? : : e

FOR'I‘ MOT'!‘L BOX, TR

A case Lmdrml to the one just examined, with some spmy varlatmns,
is the case of Fort Motte box, Orangeburgh L;mmty All of the officials,
save one supervisor, were Democrats.
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The managers were Bouzard, Taber, and Wannamaker. The election
was regular.  There is not a breath of testimony to impeach the fair-
ness of its conduct. Friend and foe alike agree on this point. 'The
trouble begins with the delivery of the box, after it had been locked
and sealed, to one of the managers, Mr. Wannamaker (Democrat), for
safe delivery. (See evidence of Keitt, pp. 99, 100; S. J. Thompson, p.
101; Wilson, pp. 101, 102; Lemon, 102, and Murray, 102, 103, 104,)

The box was delivered to Wannamaker on the evening of November
2 (the day of the election),  He carried it to Orangeburgh City, to the
oftice of Dr. Hydrick, a Democratic county politician, Dr. Hydrick re-
fused to take charge of the box.  Then young Izler, on the morning of
the 3d of November, carried the box to B. II. Morse, or Moss, one of
the county board of canvassers and president of the board. Moss is o
Democrat, and was the proper party to take the box. He refused to
tako the box, although told what it was, upon the ground that it was
illegal for him to take it. The box was then deposited by Dr, Hydrick
and Mr. Izler in the office of Judge Izler, probate judge of the county,
where it now remains, The box was produced, and the witnesses all
believed it to be the same box, but could not swear positively to it.
Taber, one of the managers, testified that he could not swear to the
box, but could swear to his signature to the returns on the inside,
The attorney for contestant then took the key and procecded to open
the box, when o scenc occurred, described in a note by the notary publie
during the examination of Taber, one of the managers. ,
- We extraet from the testimony (Ree., p, 108). Taber,one of the man-
agers was on the stand : R o .

Q. Could you identify reéturn it scen —A. ‘I could identify my signature: -

(At this stage of the proceeding Mr, Taft, counsel for contestant, took the boxdnd
was in the act of loosening the key from the hox, when Mr. Wannawmaker; connsel
_for the contestee, grabbed it away, breaking the cord, aud- pitting the kéy inhis
pocket, and, upon my demand, refuscd to give up possession of the key.—J. M. Q.)

Q. Who were present when the ballots were counted '—A. The managors:

Q. Have yon the rotarn that you filed that day?—A. I have vot. :

- Q. Can you produce it ¥--A, 1 can not, ‘ ,

- (Counsel for contestant here requests counsel for contestee: to produce the-return.
which is in the ballot-box offered. in evidence by contestant, the key of which Lias

just been foreibly broken from the box by the counsel for contestee, and it is within
the power of tho contustee to produce said return. L S
Counsel for_contestee denies that such records or returns have been proved 1o he

inliis possession.)

Counsel for contestant then offered the box in evidence, and also the
returns in the box. Why they do not appear is best told by the officer
who took the testimony (page 110): '

It is to be regretted that [ am unable to forward with the testimony taken hero the
“hallot-box ™ purporting to be the “Jort Mette ballot-box, returns und ballots,”
offereéd in ovidence by counsel for contestant, marked by me ‘“ Exhibit'B,” for the
reason that after the oxamination had coneluded I wasin the act of taking c¢harge of
the box when Mr, Wannamaker, connsol for the contestee, tovk foreible possession
of the samo and refused to surrender it to me. - I demanded the enstody of the box,
and was informed by Mr. Wannamaker that I should not have the box, and that if I
attempted to take it away there would be a disturbance. He heing supported by a
large number of his friends, and not wishing to precipitate a row, I'made no farther
attempt to obtain it, :

’ R JNO. H, OBTENDORFF,.
Not. Pub., 8. €.

Judge Izlet‘; probate judge, testifies, at page 92, that the box was
placed in his office in a closet soon after the November election, and
i8 there still, in the same condition as when first placed there,

Such, in substance, is the story of Fort Motte box as told by the

H. Rep. 3636——3
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officers of the election and other party friends of contestant, (See testl-
mony of lzler, p. 104; Hydrick, pp. 106-7; Wannamaker, p. 107;
Taber, 108-9; Bouuund 110-11, and B, P. IAIQI‘, p. 92.)

\Im\ whut are the undcmul and ondeniable facts ?

(1) An election was held ’lt Burt Motte box regularly and tuirly on
thc legal day. )

(2) Every manager, the clm‘k all the peace officers, and one of thel
two supervisors were Democr Wb, the party friends of contestee,

(3) That the box with the returns, sealed and labeled, was carried
to tln- county seat, within the timne fixed by law by a proper officer.

(4) That within the legal time the box in its perfect integrity was de-
livered as required by law to the Democratic president of the board of
county canvassers, who simply refused to receive it.

(D) That the box was then locked up in the court-house, to t,he t‘ull
knawlcdgo of the board of cam’a&sers, and they refased to c: Anvass or
count it. ‘

(6) That the peaceful and legal attempt of contestant m open mxd
identify said box and its ratumm was foreibly remat(,d by contestee’s
counsel.

(7) That the box and its contents bmug offered in evidence, the cus-
tody of said box was properly claimed by the officers taking the testi.
mony, that it might be forwarded with tho record, but by a threat of
violence made by contestee’s counsel the custody of the box was refused
to the officer and was assumed by contestee’s counsel and party friends.

Here, then, is & whole chapter of frauds., The law of South Caro-
lina required the box to be delivered by the returning officer to the
chairman of the couuty board of cominissioners.

The returning officer, who was one of the managers, deliberately vio-
lated the law in leaving the box thh Mr. I/ler, at the prxvate ot’ﬁce of
a physician, B
. This Mr, Izler, a reputable youug genduuan wml tor the box .md
wrtlnu the lngal time delivered it to the proper officer, Dr. Moss or
Morse, and told him what it was and how he came by it. 'Dr. Moss (or
Morb(,) violated the law in not recciving the box. It was his duty to re-
ceive and countit, and then make any staumenb he may have deemed
proper as to how it reached himn,

The third violation of law was when conte%tee’s couubel preveuted by
violence the opening and identification of the box. It was offered in
‘evidence to be sent here to the House of Reprmcnt'mvm, and is not
here because contestee’s counsel forcibly took posscbszon of the box.

What are the conclusions?

Contestee’s partisan friends deliberately vnolate the law in suppre&s
ing the box, and contestee himself (acting through his counsel) by force
and threat of violence suppresses and hinders the ]udlclal inquiry as to
the box and its contents.

Suppressio veri—suggestio falsi.  All things are presumed against him
who suppresses the truth and prevents inquiry.  Shall contestee be per-
mitted to take advantageof his own wrong and of the willful and erimi-
nal violation of the law by his partisan friends?  Is the sinof the gulltv
to be visited upon theinnocent ¥ Shall he who suppresses the bestev
dence by force, fraud, and violence stand up in the face of the court of
Jast resort and insist that secondary evidence shall not be produced and
admitted?

- Such is not the law. : '

‘The tairness and peaceful chamcter of bhe electlon is not, questmued

Returns of the vote kept by a Federal supervisor, and signed by both
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Democratic and Republican supervisors, is in the record, Under the
simplest rule of law they must be received and counted.
These returns are found at page 166 of the record, and are as follows:

‘ : FORT MOTTE, ORANGEBURG CO.
Robert Smalls e ,
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. Return"of the election held at I'ovt Motle piecinet; Orangeburg Co., November 2, 1886,

The whole-number of votes given for member of Congress was 304, -Of which Rob.
ert Smalls received 236, - Of which Willimin Elliott roceived H8. : :
© We, the undersigned supervisors, certify that the above is a ‘correct return of the
votes cast at the election held at Fort Motte precinet of Orangeburg Cointy, on the
24 day of November, 1886, ; :
‘ . Horace KriTT,
8. J. MURRAY,
Supervisors,
There must, therefore, be added to Smalls’s (contestant) vote 236 votes,
and to Elliott’s (contestee) vote 58 votes. N

STUFFING BALLOT-BOXES,

We come now to examine yet another feature in this landseape of
frauds.  We refer to the deliberate alteration of votes by means of
stuffing and pretended purging of ballot-boxes. The law of South
Oarolina provides in substance that if more ballots are found in the
box than there are voters on the poll-list that all the ballots shall be
returned to the box and thoroughly mixed by shaking, and that the
excess of ballots shall then be drawn out of the box. S ‘

- At Pocotaligo box, Beaufort County, 143 votes were cast. All the
nanagers were Democrats, and the clerk was also a Democrat.  The
poll-list is found at page 262 of the record. It shows the names of 143
voters.  Inside of the poll, with the managers, were several Democratic
officials, to wit: Mr, Richardson, collector of the port at Beaufort, and a
custom-house employé, and Mr. J. L. Morrison, and one or two State
constables, all Democrats.  When the box was opened there was an ex-
cess of 105, or 248 votes in the box. The Democratic managers then pro-
ceeded to get rid of the excess of votes. The story is best told in the
langnage of a witness, and he is uncontradicted.  Bawmptield (pp. 307
and 308) thus testifies: : R ; : ‘

Q. Did you witness the connt.?  Andif so, state whatever facts came to yonr knowl-
edge or observation in- reference to it,—A. 1 did; in the afternoon my suspicions
were aroused by the apparent nervonsness of the managers, especially Mr. Frampton,
the chairman, and the eirculation by them of certain rumors to the efieet that the
votes in the box were tie, and that certain Repablicans who were lond-monthed for
Smalls, the Republican candidate, were mzcl‘et}y voting for Win, Elliott, the Demo-
cratic candidate,  As I crossed the pinzza to enter the room where the voting was
going on I overheard a conversation between Mr, John Frampton, tho ehairman of
the hoard, and Mr, H. W. Richardson, collector of the port of Beanfort, as to how to
dispose of the oxcessive votes in the box.  Soon after Mr. Frampton annonfieed that

the roam would have to be clearad and that the connting would proceed. I asked him
if any citizens would be permitted to witness the count.; he said that I micht stand at:
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the open doar, but that I couldn’t remain in the room. He did, however, permit Mr,
H. W. Richardson, collector of the port of Beaufort ; the paymasterin the U, 8, Navy,
James T Morrison ; a boat-hand in the custom-house; and othors, who I think were
State constables, to remain iv the room, The open- door in which I stood was not
more than four feet from the tablé on which the box was placed, so that I could wit-
ness tlie count. ! . o ‘ -

Before opening the box Mr, Frampton directed that the light, which was but an
apology then, should be removed from the table on which it stood by the box to the
manicl-piece. . His position was, one hand on the box, the other directing the re-
moval of thelamp; reminded one more-of a necromancer about;to perform a feat of
legerdemain than an oflicer performing o sworn duty. - He finally opened the box
very carcfully and proeceded to take out the ballots, -Aftér taking-ont 143 ballots,
Iaying them one upon another, face down, corresponding with the huniber of names.
on the poll-list, he stated that there were more hallots in the box, and that he wounld
have to return the 143 hallots to the box and that some one with his back to the box’
should withdraw the excess and destroy themw, in which opinion Mr. Henry Men evi-
dently concurred. T called his attention to the fact that be conldn’t kunow the excess
of the bullots in the box antil all of the ballots were connted, and that, therefore, he
did not - know how imany ballots to destroy. ‘They botl still insisted that that was
the proper manner to dispose of the excess, The paymaster suggested that the proper
way was to'destroy all the ballots left in-the box;and count the 143 already drawn
out, - IR o - : L
Allthe Demoeratys present excopt the supervisor, Mr. Hanimoud, and Mr. Richard:
gon, were opposed-to counting all the ballots in the box, and thus to expose a glar-
ing fraud. After considerable discnssion Mr, Richmdson eame to-my résene, stating
that T was right, that the law required that™ all the hullots should be counted, to
which themanagers rehuetantly consented, - Upon counting the remaining ballots in
tho hox there were-fonnd to he: 143, All the ballots were then returned to the box
and Mr. Frampton, tarning his back ' to the hox, drew out the 142 whieh were inex-
cess, which were destroyed, . It was then found:-that of the ballots remaining in the
box there were 87 for Elliott and 56 for Smalls.  The ballots that were taken out—
the 143—were 1aid on the table, were mostly clean and lightly folded, so that they Iay
comparatively smooth on the table, indicuting that they were never voted singly.
During the removal - of thoge ballots from the box I'noticed that they wore apparently
folded- together in a large bunch and called the managers’ attention to the law about
ballots ‘heing folded- together, and noticed . that subsequent to that Mr. Frampton’s
handswere put lower down in the box, so that Feouldn’t gee what he was doing. - He
destroyed tivo Elliott hallots folded-together after I had spoken to him. b

“When the process of purging the box of the excess of votes was fin-
ished, the manager counted the 143 votes left, and found 87 votes for
Elliott (contestee) and 56 votes for Smalls (contestant), Now the curious
part of the story comes.  An examination of the record from pages 215
to 260 discloses the names and oaths of 118 men, each of whom swears
he voted for Smalls. - The poll-list (Rec., p. 262) discloses the names of
these identical 118 voters as having voted at Pocotaligo box. If 118
men whose names are on the poll-list voted for Smalls, how is it that he
received only 56 votes, or in other words how wasg it that 62 of his votes
were stolen from him? ‘ '

That the ballot-box was stuffed is clear. One or two, or even a dozen,
surplus votes, out of a total poll of 143 votes, might by accident or care-
lessness get into the box, but here over a hundred extra votes were in
the box. The box was stuffed. No one denies it. How was it done?
Who had charge of it? Three Democratic managers, a Democratic
clerk, two Democratic State constabless It was stuffed in order that
the purging process might be resorted to. The fact that nearly double
the proper number of ballots got into the box winle in charge of the
managers solely, is proof so overwhelming of their deliberate fraud that
their every act is tainted, and the presumption that the law ordinarily
attaches to official acts, omnic praswmuntur rite acta esse, is destroyed
and every act of these managers attainted with suspicion and fraud.

Why did not contestee put these Democratie ofticials upon the stand.
Did he fear to doso? They were all within the jurisdiction, Contestee
administered testimony within a stone’s-throw of them. Contestant
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charged them with fraud and crime, and proved it; yetnotone of them
is put upon the stand to contradiet or to defend. And if the sanctity
attaching ordinarily to the acts of managers of an election is destroyed
as to these officials, it is competent, for contestant to establish the true
return as best he may.

He proves 118 votes out of 143. The canvassing-board gave him but
66, To his vote should be added 62 votes, and from Elliott’s vote of
87 should be deducted 62 votes, leaving him 25 votes at Pocotaligo
box. ‘ ‘

The next instance of ballot-box stuffing occurs at Providence box,
- Sumter County.

The election was held, the box opened, and all of Elliott’s ballots
sorted and placed in one heap, and all Smalls’s ballots placed in another
heap., Then it was found that there were only 119 voters on the poll
list, while 199 ballots were in the box. Iere was an excess of 90 bal-
lots. The Democratic manager, Kingman, thén put back Elliott’s
ballots first, and on top of them put Small’s ballots, and, without
mixing them, caused a small boy to draw out 90 ballots, the number in
excess. Of course all of Smallg’s ballots were drawn ouf, and the bal-
ance, 119, were counted for Llliott. One of the Democratic officials,
outraged at the manifest fraud, refused to sign the returns. (See tes-
timony of Richardson, 412-13, and of Mahoney, 353.)

Now, this story is not contradicted. No attempt is made to contra-
dict it.  All of the managers and officials were Democrats. The box
was in their sole custody and it was stuffed with nearly double the num-
ber of ballots cast. ‘

Then the law for purging the box was travestied by a gross and
glaring fraud that so vitiates the returns as to render it wholly worth-
less. There is no proof as to what the real vote 'was, and the only
recourse to correct the wrong is to reject the count ¢n toto. From
Elliott’s vote should be deducted 119 votes. : »

The next chapter of frauds relates to Green Pond precinct, Colleton
County. The managers and officials were all Democrats. :

The box was in the back room of a store, and the voting was through
a window. This back room was separated from the main store by a
wooden partition, which was pierced by a door, which led from the vot-
ing room into the store behind the counter. '

Now, the law of South Carolina requires that—

At the close of the election the managers and clerk shall immediately proceed, pub-
licly, to open the ballot-box and count the ballots therein, and continue such count
without interruption or adjournment until the same is completed.

The correctness of the count is an essential of the election. The laws
made to secure this result are mandatory., The managers—all Demo-
crats—did not “immediately proceed publicly” to open the box and
count the vote. What did they do? They first closed the poll, then
shut the window and were hidden from public view for eight._or ten
minutes. What they did in this interval is fully disclosed by the record.
They returned 160 votes for Elliott and 35 for Simalls. And yet from
pages 473 to 530 of the record are found the plain, uncontradicted testi-
mony of 134 witnesses, each of whom swore he voted on that day at
that box for Robert Smalls, (See testimony «* Chapman, 502, 503,
504, and of Singleton, 520, 521, 522.)

he violation of the mandatory provision of the law in regard to the
“immediate, public count,” the sccret session of eight or ten minutes
after the polls closed ; the return for Smalls of 35 votes when 131 men
swear they voted for him in that hox on that day, destroy utterly the
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managers’ return.  But contestant proves 134 votes. The managers
gave him 35. To this vote shonld be mldetl 99 votes, and from con-
testee’s 160 votes should be deducted 99 votes ,

LAKE TTY PR ECIN(‘T

. . ) .
'l}m next gamut in this scale of frand varies the music somewhat.
Hitherto the frauds were committed within the Seventh district.  Lake
Jity precinet, in Lake ’l‘o\\’nshxp, Williamsburgh County, is in the Sixth
Congressional district.  But in a neighborly spirit some of the voters of
that precinet voted for contestee, who resided and was a candidate in_
the Seventh district,  The Votﬁ returned was 101 for Klliott, 18 for
Dargan, none for Smalls.,  These votes, east by persons residing outside
“of the Seventh district, at a preciuct also outside of the dmtrwt were:
actnally connted for contestee by the board of  canvassers, (bue testi-
mony of Kinder, Demucmh(' commissioner of o!u,tum, pp. o, f;, 75 of
W. Scott, L) S
The (lxv ision of districts is M,f fm'ih at roemd page 187 The Sixth
~(hstm't embraces Lake Township, in- Williamsburgh County. - The
Seventh district embraces part of Williamshurgl (,uuuh but not Lake
Township. Lake City is in Lake Township, and thvrotore in the Sixth
district.  The statement is enouglh.  I'he 101 votes cast there for con-
testee must be deducted from lns votc. : ‘

MI&('ELLANEOUS FRAUDS.,

- We deem it proper to notice 'ﬂso the cases oF several polling pre-
cinets where two boxes were placed, with hut one set of managers for
the two boxes, and at which votes were received from per GOE resxdmg
in different Congressional districts,

TFor instance, Indiantown precinet, in W xlhmnsbm'gh O (mnty there
were two boxes, one for voters trom the Sixth (Dargan’s) (]l%tl‘lct, and
one for the bt,venth district. - IYor these two hoxes only two persons
acted as managers, or one for each box. The returns gave Elliott 85
votes and Smalls 73 in one box, and in the 0&1101 Dargan had 51 votes.
This box was counted.

So with Kingstree precinet,  There were two boxes and only three
managers, or one and a half managers to each box. There were 105
votes for Elliott, 80 for Smalls, and db for Dargan in the two boxes.
1t was counted. So also with Cedar precinct—only two boxes and three
managers. — Yet the box was not rejected. At all of these boxes there
“were violations of law in that the boxes were not distinetly and properly
-~ marked 8o as to show whieh box was for the Seventh and which was for
the Sixth district. We donot claim that these hoxes should be rejected,
but we do claim that even-handed justice should be done, and that if
boxes where Blliott had majorities and only one or one and one-half
“managers acted were counted, that the House of Representuatives should
not throw out boxes where bnmlls had majorities solely because but

one or two managers were present and acted. :

Ufherzx*u*gu]m-:tw and frauds, as at Grahamville, Beaufort C ounts,
and Sutter’s precinet, Williamsburgh County, are cumphunml of, but the
proof is c(mﬁwtmg and no posmvo proof as to how those boxes were
- returned. ;
~There are proofs, too, in the record that at Prospect promuct and
- Bloomingdale precinct, in Williamsburgh County, illegal votes, in all 12,
‘were cast and counted for Elliott. So with other precincts, but we do
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not deem it necessary to point them out or insist upon them here, as con-
testant’s election is shown condumvoiy and beyond a doubt wnhoutz
them,

: REGAPITULA.TION. :

TO recapitulate, we find that the board of canvassers gave Iilliott and
Smalls votes as follows.

For William EHobt coo . cr oo i i e e 6,493
For Robert Smialls oo oo Cemenian R R SRR 1] |

LHiott’s declared majority .« ceee it verneesneeesan sannne cnmnss casunnnnes D32

To the vote of Smalls, under the evxdence and the lay, mu.st bv added
as follows: ; , : TR

Voters refused I'eglﬂxfmtmn intending to voto fm‘ Robort %mans S ORI oy )

Vote at Brick Chiurch, Beaufort (,mmiy B PG N P T 1113
Vote at Brick hpiscopai Church, Berkeley Oountv Lt eeeen et e e ROT
Sandy Tsland pl(,(nwm Gmr"etown Conntv fe bt neiaay cne i G st inn e g3
Cedar Creck precinet, (nowetown CONMNEY v v aaene caenns varninenee s insnnans 18
Girier precinet, C‘oorgotown County......... b teaaee smeees ceabea i cewe e 6H

Ranteo precinet, Georgetown Connty ... i iciiiiireidiiamii e cdiiinn s L 212
(v wlsden precinet, Riehland County c.oovuooi. oo it vvnieicasawancmniios 451
Adams Run preecinet, Colleton County . ..ol cinoiiiiiliimeinnivaurnsmnane, s W 177
Fort Motte precinet, Omngcburgh (‘ouutv P S 2 1

Pocotiligo precinet, Beaufort County ... oiuiie iios ciiaiisiesvvielvoaninaes 62
Green Pmnl precinet, Colleton County. R e e e s i i 99
,"Iotal to be added. ................‘....V."._;_.‘..... .......... RESEION e 2,145
Vohz as returned: bv State board. : ieeee 5,061
‘ T()f.ll vme for Robert Smnlls.u.,... .”. .”.‘..'. ..... B Cemie e 8, 106
Votes to be added to Elliott’s vote as follows : :
Briek C hnrvh, Bt forh ot o e ii e vas i et e ia s e amea e s s Al
Brick Episcopal Chureh, Berkeley County.......c.... cemiie Feeseseimsd cessans
Grier precinet, G(*()rgmown Connty. ..o iviiiveinn. ce i pmim P A 4
Sanfes |nccmvt, Georgotown County......o... Cieies R R R F P 4
“Adams Run, Colleton Counvy...... B LR R 37
Fort Motte, ()xan;,eburghCouuty., ...... B R I .«
CTotal tohe added.. ... covioiiin it vt e e R 10 |
Vote as refurned bs State board. ... .o 0l B M P | I 14
T()MI 5 Ty PR PR L6,644
Deduet as follows from Ialhott’s vote: ;
Pocotaligo, Be: aufort COUNEY vein e s e cminanasevs dunsis haes saman rveeeieene 62
P m\’idvn('v Sumter Connty....ovvoieennn. RS PR R 111
Green Pond, Colleton Cotmty..o_...... A N 09
Lake City, Wlllmmsbmgh County.oocis mornsenenmneroenionnssaanecians R 1)
381
EIOU S 10EA] VOUB. .ottt ties caiaes voieit ceviie sainnnimns anironnnsneans sanene. 0,044
Deduct cove i i i i e e P FUR N . R st
EHiotts raal vote, ... ............ S e B PO URIETR O | 31

Sall’s real vote:. .ol oweeinu ... i lamans D A ISP - N 111
R Y RS L S S SR 6, 263

hnmllw m.umsty...-.. el i e il ..‘,“.;.;-...,; ................... e LRI

If we add legally- -registered vr)tors, 27 7, who were rqected faumlls’sf’
Ju.st and legitimate majority is 2,120,
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To account for a majority in o district where the Republican colored
majority is seven to one contestee sets up several pretexts.

First. He declares that Smalls was once convicted of bribe taking,
and that the colored Republicans repudiated 1liim on that account.

Second. 1le declares that Smalls was very unpopular in the district,
and that many of the leaders voted and worked against him.

Third. He declares that contestant and his partisans resorted to riot,
force, and intimidation, by which large numbers of colored voters were
intimidated and prevented from votmg for him, and were coerced and
terrorized into voting for contestnnt.

Eleven years ago, Nowmbcr, 1877, Smalls was convmted b§ a petlt
jury of bribe- taking while a member of the State senate. His case was
ﬂppoaled, and pending said appeal a Democratic governor of South

Carolina pardoned him, without any request or solicitation of Smalls or
lnq friends.

Not only this, but the Democratic governor of South Carolina, “re-
posing mspooml trastand confidence in Smallg’s loyalty and 1ntrmmsm,
as in his integrity and readiness to do ;,ood and faithful service,” ap-
pointed and commissioned him a captain in the State militia, whic
appointment was advised and consented to by a Democratic State
senate,

More than this, while the facts in relation to Smallg's trial were fresh
and ripe in the pnhiu, mind, and before he had been- pardoned, he was
elected to Congress, and smcc then twice re-elected.

Yet contestee seriously insists that the fact of his conviction oper-
ated powerfully against Smalls in the election of 1886, It did not oper-
ate against him in 1878, or in 1880, or in 1882, - It did not deter a Dem-
ocratic governor from appointing, “ by and with the advice and consent”
of a Democratic senate, Smalls to oﬂ"xcu in1879. Yet contestee seriously
1insists that the voters and people of South Carolina bad to reflect nine
years before the real and dreadful nature of Smalls’s offense was appre-
ciated by them. This pretext of coutestee is not worthy of further
notice, and we dismiss it.
~ The second pretext, that Smalls was not the choxce of his p‘wt;, is as
baseless as that just considered, :

Smalls was nominated by his party convention on the first ballot and
without a struggle. There was not 2 delegate against him except from
Berkeley County. A colored politician, W. 1. Thompson, from Berkeley
County, aspired to the nomination, and a portion of the delegabes from
that county were elected in his favor. But Smalls had the delegates
from all the other 8 connties and was nominated on the first ballot, re-
ceiving the vote of nine-tenths of the convention, only 8 votes being
agfm)st; him. Contestee introduces the testimony of W, H. Thompfson
to prove that Smalls was not the choice of his party. Thompson’s tes-
timony is at pages 630-635 of the record.  Analyzed, Thompson’s testi-
mony simply shows him to be a politician, a ohxouic office-holder and
office-seeker, who was never satistied with the party nominee unless it
was himself, who had bolted several prior Coungressional nominations
of his party. When Mackey was nominated Thompson bolted for Lee.
When Lee was nominated he bolted for Smalls,  When Smalls was
nominated he swears lhie bolted him for nobody; that he made no
speeches for or against him. Ho is flatly <'mntm(het0d in this, for six
thnesses swear to speeches made by Thompson in favor of Smal!s after
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he wag nominated. (bimmom, Re(i.,p. 138; Rivers, p. 136; Wright, P
131; Middleton, p. 125; Tickling, p. 123, and Clark, p. 117, ) Of these
SIX mu}, all were from Lcrkekw bounty, and three of the six were pw
cinct chairmen of the Republican organizations,

But to show exactly what Thompson’s testimony is worth, he swore
that he supported Smalls for Congress in 1882 aud 1884, and then
swears he would not vote for him in 188(» because he had been convieted
of bribe-taking., Smalls’s conviction was in 1878, When Thompson was
asked it he did not know of Smalls’s conviction when he was supportlug
him in 1882 and 1884 he answers:

' I did not kunw it nf my own knowlulge orl wmlld not have besmirched myself thh
'Inm , :

~ Yetin | bis testmmny he swears that he held ofﬁce in bouth (Jorolmfm
five years before Smallg’s conviction and six years after, was a public
man, prominent in the counecils of his party, and yet he did not know
of Smalls’s conviction until nine years after the verdict had been ren-
dered,
The simple truth is that Thomp%on perjured himself and is uuwox'thv
of belief.
Sautelle, Ahruls, and C. B Smalls testxfy after the fashmn of ’llmmp-
son, but v ach and every one of them is contradicted and ench one
is shown to have made Spnu,hcs for Smalls after e was nominated,
Swails (p. 147), Freeman (p. 152), I, R. Richardson (p. 158), and Osten-
dorf (p. 462), and 139 other wnnesseq, swear that Smalls was the choice
of his party' that all the leaders supported and spoke for him ; that
there wasno (lxsnﬂocbmn ; that the charge of ¢ Lribe-taking” wasun old
tale and aftected nobﬂdy, and that the issue between Smalls and Elliott
wis not a personal but & party issue. (See testimony of Andrew, 365;
Murray, 381, 382 ; Ramsay, 382; Keene, 387; Andrews, 390; Andrews,
304 bumth, 598 T ortune, 404 ; Alxck, 106 J ohnston, 407 ; luchardsmx,
;m, and more than a 100 other witnesses of. like )mport) And 80 tho
second pretext of contestee falls to the ground.
ITis third and last pretext is that Smalls and his party, by vmlerwe,
“threats of business, church and social ostracism, so terrorized and iu-
t;:mdated the colored voters as to coerce them to vote for him against
their will
We may pause here one moment to rem"wk upon the consmmucy of
this pretext with other pleas of contestee. On pages 645 and 466
contestee’s answer sets forth : : : . :

ELEVENTH,

That hv a3 svstom of undne influence, threats, mtlmidatmn, aud gocial and r(*l:gxous;
‘osetacism, inaugnrated and practiced by you and your supporters at Beaufort and
Ladics’ Island, and other neighboring places in Beaufort County, as well as hy the
pulilic «l«nmma(xmm and uterances made by you and your parnmna agmnst all
colored voters who desived to vote for me, a I.wgc number of such voters, at cach of
said precinets, were prevented from voting for me, wherehy your vote was largely
mmwmml That a short time before the election the colored Democratic club of

Ladies” Island, while attending a Deniocratic mass-meeting in the town of Beaufort,
were attacked by wmob of your partisans andsapporters, and were treated with the
greitest lhl}l"‘l”f\, 4 mlonms, andl outrage ; and sodetermined and p«-mst« nt was this
systemeof intimidation; that ¢ven sines the clection the children of my colored sup-
porters on Ladies’ Island have been prevented by threats and abuse, by your sup-
porters and partisans, from attending the public schiool 3 this system of violence and
intimidation-has been earried on, not by the n’spmt.tble and orderly colored people,
nor by a majority of that race, but-by the violeut and the turbulent and by the pro«
fessional politicians, who, to conceal their designs, have instigated women and even
children to the commission of such acts.  This 8\'st¢~m of intimidation was not inaa-
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gurated at this election for the first time, but has been carried on for years in and
around Beaufort, and was practiced in the election of 1884, in which you and T were
opposing candidates for the same oflice; w votable instance being the beating and
mobbing of one of the managers of the I'ederal poll on the streets of the said town of
Beaufort on said election day.

TWELFTIIL.

And I further allege that you were nof, the free choice of your party for the nomi-
nation as member of Congress, and that yonr nomination for said position created
great dissatisfaction to your own party, especially to many influential leaders thereof,
one of the eanses of which was the fuet that yon had heen convicted-of reeciving a
Dbribe while State senator from Beaufort County, and this matter was made an issuo
in the eampaigo.  This gave me the support of a large number of voters of yourown
political party, and this support was further angmented by the fact, that, although
a general election was pending in the State of South Carolina, there was no contest
betweon the two political parties, and the issue in this district thus hecame one be-
tween individuals,

W. EvLvLrorT.

Here are the two pleas side by side as they came from contestee’s
hand., In one breath he says in substance :

You, 8mall, so terrovized and intimidated the people of vour own race and party as
to foree them to vote for yowagainst their willy when they wanted to vote for me,

Pausing only long enough to take breath, he then adds:

You, Small, were so unpopular hecause you had heen convicted of bribe-taking, and
the contrast between you and me personally wag so much to your disadvantage that
many of the leaders of your party and many of4ts voters voluntarily voted for mein
preference to you, :

How can these pleas live side by side? They are so inconsistent
that in a court of law contestee would be obliged to get off of one and
on to the other, and forced to eleet upon whieh he wonld stand.

We have shown that lie can not stand on the one.  Let us see if there
is bottomn enough in the other to rest a claim to his seat in the House
of Representatives. : ,

Contestee cmphasizes in another part of his answer the plea of in-
timidation at Brick Church, Beaufort Connty. If intimidation existed
anywhere it existed there, according to his own story (contestee’s
answer, page 643, third clause). The canvassing boards agreed with
contestee, and though no protest was made by the Demoeratiec managers,
the box was thrown-out because of riot, intimidationyete.  And it was
the only box in the entire district thrown out because of intimidation of
voters. 1t the plea falls, then, as to this box, it must fall entirely.

Mr. L. W, Fripp, Democratic manager at Brick Churceh, in his eross-
examination (page 628), testifies that ¢ there are only 18 white voters on
Saint Helena Island)”  DBrick Church is the voting precinet for Saint
Helena Island. : ‘ i '

_ ButElliott received 45 votes at Brick Ohurch, Conceding that every
white voter voted for him, he received 28 colored votes. Surely they
~were not intimidated.  More than this, Fripp, Democratic manager
(page 628), testifies ay follows : - : i o

Q. Will you give me the namo of any person or persons that you know of who
were proventod from voting by threats or violence, at the last clection, at the poll at
which you wers oneof the managers?—A. [ can not. :

. Do you know that there is onethat was so prevented $-A. No.

Gabriel Ilddings, the other manager (page 443): :
Q. Was there any unusual noise at the poll that day 1—A. There was not more
than what we are subject to on election day, i :

Q. Btate if there wag a great anxiety on the part of the people to get through
~voting.—A. 1t did not seem 8o more than usnal at any other election, ‘
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Cross-oxamination: o
Q. Were you at tho poll all dayt—A. Yes, I was.
Q. Were not the polls closed at any tiwe during the day and voting stopped in con«
sequenco of disturbance at the poll I—A. The poll did uot close.

Jackson W. Brown, clerk and supervmor, testifies at page 290, and
again at pages 439, 441 ;

Q. Give your name, age and residenco. State where you were on the 2d day nf
Novenher last; what ofticial position or pos:bmns you held in connection with the
clection,— A, Jackson W, Brown ; age, 32 years; resido on St, Helena Island.  On
“the 2d of November last T was at’ the ¢ 'ongressional poll as supervisor, and as {hoere
was pooue {o wet as elerk the manager hegged that 1 would act.

Q. What tiine did you arrive at tho poll and what time did youn leave —A. Lurrived
hy d‘n light and never loft till all the votes were wuntul and everybody disbanded.

(3. Was there any disturbance at the poll 7—A, No,

). Was there or not any qmmvl insgide; the po]lmg precinet dnrmg that day 1—A.
Notne, ! )

Q. Did or-did not Georgoe Rlvvxs and Udeg Gantt have words inside the room
where the poll was held which caased the poll to clogset—A, They did not inside the
roon nor.outside, to my knowledge.

Q. If the poll Iad beon closed on thut account wonld you not have known it A
Feertainly would,

Q. Did nota gom‘i many woien comes mto and pass Lhrough the polling place dmmg
the voting 3~A. They did not.

Q. Was Sthe. polbelosed for any reason during the day t—A. No.

Q. For what purpese did Gantt go into the poll on. iim day of elcctmn —A, 'I‘n my
Know ledge T eould not state at this time,

Q. How Jong did he remain in ﬂmm !—A. Not more t;han a minute or 50, a8 woll uy
L ean remember,

Q. Did he have anything to say while in there ; and if so, what did he say 1—A. He
did not have anything to say, only there was trvm«r to-get in-at the same time two
“ten, and Mr. Fripp objected, saying that they must yote one by one, and Gantt t,rxul
to correct tho boys, telling them that they must come in one by one, ,

Q. Was thero or not many porsons who desired fo vote but ¢ould not vote bewum}
of the allegeil loss of their registration certificates —A, A great muny of them,

Q: Wero there any persons that you know of at the poll that day who did not vote
or could not, vote on account of the noise and disturbance made by Republict ans ¥—
A No; there was not one.

We now cite the tesmmony of the Democratic supervisor of (*Iu'tmns,
a white man, an organizer of Democratic clubs,  This witness is Gap-
tain Ransom Ward.  His testimony will he found at page 296, record :

Q. State vmn‘ naine, age, residence, occupation, and whero vou were on the 24 (l.»y
of November Jasb—A. A, R. Ward; "5 vears; St Helena; merchant and planter.
1 \\.ts at the Congressional polls on St Helena Island.

N Were you one of the dectmn officers; and, it"so, in what capacity did you act §- =
/ hu;nl\lwl. ol

Q. How long did you remain M) the polls?7—A, Through the day. I didn’t get hiero
tilllate, and T'remained hero after 1 got here, abont when the mail loft, a little atter:
L, nighits sickness in my family detaine dmu o

0 During your stay at the polls was there any noious conduct ot dmturbanco
dmmu the du) ?-~A. None that I saw.

7 We cite John Major, a colored Democ at and pa;rtigan ’of 'conte,stec
(Ree., p. 211): ‘

Q. Stato your mre, natio, rwulenw, and_oce u]mtum, and where YOu were on Nn-;
vember last,—-A. Joln Major; 325 Tripp’s. l’mnt, St Holenaj am a farmer, 1 was
hvw voting at the Congressional polI :

Q. Was there or not auy disturbance, riot, or xwtuus (mxduct., or my um:mdatwu
ui volers, as far as you saw, that day 1A, 1\0, 8ir, : :

- Q. How long did you remain at the polls T—A. Till about half paﬁb Dy sir.

Q. Whit were you doing most of the du) A Imsuo out tickets, sir.

Q. Whose tickets 1-—A. Colonel Elliott’s; -

Q:Were or were you not. a meinber of the Democratic clnb, and were or were you
notan oflicer of said club AL T wus the pl(“il(l(‘!n (wf tho (,Iul). , :

C r«msm\fumnml by Mr an)xh

© Q. Wasn't there a good deal of threatenxng agamst Democrais by Repubheans be-
fnre the day of eloction on St.. Helena Island ?—A. No, sir; not in my presence,
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Nexb J cﬁ‘rey Ho}mes, a colored mrtmn ‘of contestee (I e(,., . 29 3)

Q .smn, FOUL Name, age, remdence, m,cup;mnn amt state where you Wore on tim
2& day of November Tnst.—A, Jeffrey Holmes; 36 years old; Coftin Point; am a
farmer. - I was here, at the Congressional poll, at Dr. Peters’ shop all day. '

Q. Was thers or not any riot, riotous or disorderly conduct, or any intimidation oi‘
voters, so far as.you saw that day 1—A. No; Ionly saw at ond time the manager, Mr,
Tripp, come out and say they couldn’t vote bocmxse there way so much racket ont-
side, They stopped about five minutes. . Cyrus Jenkins was out there making alittle
fun for the boys, and after he came ouf zmd mad{a that" e&spres&ion ‘then wcx} thing
was-quiet the balance of that day.

Q. What wero you doing at the polls 7—A, I Was xasmug “out, ‘\Ir. Lllmtt’s tickets. -

Next is March Aiken, a colored Dcmocrat and a pe‘we officer, who
voted for contestee (Rec., p. 204): :

Questwn. Give your name, age, occupat:on, and state where you were vn tius seennd
day of November fast.—A., March Aiken; 46 years ama farm&m I was at the p(}il
here on that day, . - . _ ,

Q. What poll 1—A. 'l‘hxa Rame pon‘, Congresswnal pon L ‘

?) What were you doing at this Congressional poll 1—A T was oonab&ble at thﬁ
poll.

Q. How lnng did you runmn at the poll ?««A 1 was thore when :t npumd and re-"
mamed Lillit closed, ,

]Q {Du} younos remain them the entire day?wA‘ 1 Wi 19 thwe the c;mm i Ly, ti]l m
closer

Q. Was there zmv nm‘ !‘ietmm comiuot d;shubar;ve, or atw mmnn}atim; of votors
during that day !—A, I was in the houso ‘311 the day.. -All the racket wag to thisdoor.
and that door.. When thoy called out the names I could have heard it, and thoy told
Jme 1o ¢lose the door and go out and. stop the meko - There was nmhmg hghimg
only joking and running raid on one another,~ - , ,

Q. What timo was that 1—A. About betiwyeen 12 and 11o ahwk
Q. Did it eass W hen ymi m]d ihom to cstop“wA Yes. su, tlwy wm
door, ~ .

Q. In the nmmmg did youor ‘not, as ('onamble, farm the pc()ph, mi;o a Ime ?—A, Yus,
siry by rushing aud pushing the door I went out aud h)rmﬁd thom ina Ime. .

S Q, Did you vote that day I—A. Yes, sir. - , L

- Q. Yor whomdid you vote?—A. I voted for Lll:ott R PR
@ Was there, or-not, any intimidation, as far as-you saw. or he,u d, or. auy vmloum
or threats ninde agumst any person who desired to vote for Wi Iuﬂw% for Congresy
on that day 1—A: "I don’t know. Thv men w ho dxstubumd the twkc ‘Lﬁ can answer, . |
was here inside the door,” o

Q. "Phen you did not ]ma,r any ?-—-A No, mr, h¢ ("h(ln’t no more timn nﬂ) tlm mckcb
out the doors. I was in the houso all the time. S : ,

Q ‘Wasthe racket the joking you spoke of beforo ?—«-wA Yps, s;r S

Next is Dr. W C. Peters, whxte I)emocmt, in whow éthm’i;heia.lég::
tmn was heki : : :

Q.- What is yourname, whem do. yau Iwa? zmd whata in ymir occnimhon i"“"A Wm.ﬁ
C. I'Mms, Tlivoon St lfﬂmm Island, and am a practicing physidian; = .
© Qv Whire wero you ‘on. the' second day of November last —A. 1 was at my oflice.
during the hours of 9 to 65 1 was away part of that time making professional visiis:

Q. Cun you rémember what portion of the time you wero aw (LV;?MA As oA A8 l
can recolleet it was botweon the hours of 11 and 2 o'clock. : ,

: (g;, During your stay, what was the character-of the o}cetum asfy :
‘gonduet of the people at the polls2—A. The people here on this: island haw hold
on here several ttmes, aﬂd I s&w 1o dni‘erwee in. them of wlmt; m W hera'

(mt from ‘Hm'

x‘(-. g : : .
Q Way tlmm any nomus beha.vmr or vml( nco? «A Nunc that; 1 have soen.
Q Wauis it or not a peaceful election f—A. It was apeaceful election.” Sl
- Did you ornot hearany of the m.m,xg,esm on. clmt d.xy hpeak of’ tho nhnnu‘ter oi
L!m elw'mon 7—-A. L can’tsay that Ldid, = \ i - ‘
Q. Didiyou hear 01 any. vmlencu or dmurdm : }
that day 1~A: No.
Q.- Where was liLhe Congresmmmi pﬂli eif Brwk Chmchz)
C?unt]y held on Lhe second ci'x,y of Nnvmnhm 3.wt ««-A At. my of
Istand, o
Q. Did ‘Vou nse aportum of the annn bmhlmw kn vmu m\ n ]“”t'“
day 1-—A. T did.

"{m : St Htﬂmm

a dmmg Hu\
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Such is the testimony of all the officers of the election, colored and
white, Democrats and Republicans. Such is the testimony of three
colored men who were canvassing for Elliott and issuing his tickets,
Uniformly and strongly do they testify to the perfectly peaceable char-
acter of the election. There was no riot, no intimidation, no tighting,
no quarreling, no threats. Their testimony is corroborated by that of
at least fifty witnesses vide testimony ot Watson, p. 455; Middleton,
p. 435; Med Nayer, p. 436; Jenkins, 437; Singleton, 4415 A, Small, p,
443; Nab Small, 4445 Guantt, p. 291; McDonald, p. 2035 Jackson, p.
296; Washington, p. 297; L. F. Chaplin, p. 297; J. B, Colonel, 297 ;
Watkins, p. 298; P, Watson, p. 298% J. Young, p. 298, 299; Mack, p.
199; Hasel, p. 209; C. Jenkins, 209-300; T. B. Rivers, p. 300; Tony
Watkins, p. 300, 301; L. Chisolm, p. 30L; M. Riley, 301, and many
others.

Now, in the face of this plain, positive, official, and unofficial testimony
contestee seeks to bolster the plea of intimidation at Brick Chureh by
the testimony of such witiresses as Chance Green, Abram Scott, and a
few others of that kind. Brick Church is the key-stone of this arch of
monstrous fraud. If it crumbles, contestee’s ease crumbles with it.  No
wouder, then, that the most superhuman effort is made to sustain the
action of the canvassing board at Brick Church. To show what means
are used to exclude Brick Church, let us examine Chance Green’s testi-
mony. It is found at page 584, and blackens and blurs and blisters
with perjury eleven pages of this record. We ask careful attention to
it. He opens by swearing, in substance, that he was at Brick Church,
Saint Helena Island, Federal poll; arrived at 7 o’clock to issue Demo-
cratic tickets, and so informed a crowd of 20 men who stood near the
polls.  The 20 men wanted Green’s ticket to vote and ¢ go home quick;”?
he issued Democratic tickets to the erowd ; the first one that went up
to vote it was Jonas Howard ; Jonas mounted the platform to vote the
Democratic ticket when he was pulled down, the ticket torn from his
hands, and his life threatened.  Chance Green gave him another Demo-
cratic ticket and marched up with Jonas, but neither Jonas nor himself
could vote ; he theii left Jonas in the road when 6 men with clubs went
up to Jonas, and ordered hun to go home if he intended to vote the
Democratic ticket, and Jones went home. The men who interfered with
Jonas were all Republicans.,

Such is the substance of Chance Green’s first utterances. To show
the monstrous falsehood of this statement we insert right here the evi-
dence of Jonas Howard, pages 469 and 470 : ‘

JoNas HowaARD, a witness of legal age, produced by contestant in rebutial after

notice, deposes as follows in - reference to questious propounded by contestant’s
counsel : :

Q. Give your name, age, and residence.—A. Jonas Howard; 52 years; at the vil-
lage St, Helena Island, : S
- (. Were yortor not at the polls on the 2d day of November last at Dr, Poter's
store?—A. Yes, Co : P .

Q. Were you or not on that day throwu from the platform and had your coat
torn —A. No, sir. - : : g .

Q. Did or did niot any one.onthat day do anything to you '—A, No, sir.

(0. Were you or not prevented from voting on that day 3—A, No,sir,

Q. Did youn or not attempt to vote ——A. Yes, sir, - R ,

Q. Why did you not vote ?—A. Because my registration paper was destroyed.

Q. Did you or not go on the platform of Dr. Peter’s oftice and try to put in your
vote *-A, No, sir. - P : ;

Q. Did.ov dil not any person threaten or abnse you ?—A. No, sir...

Q. You say that youn attempted. to vote; for whom did yon attempt to vote 1—A.
For Robert Smalls. ' '
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Green’s second coherent statement is that there were 416 men who
wanted to vote the Democratic ticket, and he issued it to them. He
is very positive of 416, for he counted and had it all put down. Take
416 from 548 and we have 132, Now, as only 548 votes were polled
that day, both for Elliott and Smalls, how was it that 416 men (and
Green swears there were 416) burning with desire to vote Elliott’s
tickets were terrorized by 132 men, and that, too, with Democratic
nmud;wers and constables and supexvlbors to ald the 416 against the
132 '

Green’s thml intelligible statement is that Charles Myers was going
to vote the Democratic ticket when one Crofut bought his vote for the
Republicans for the price of $1, and Meyers acknowledged the bribery
to Green,

Charles Myers (the bribed) swears, at page 316, as follows:

Q. What is your name, your age, and occupation, and where do you reside 1—A,
My name is Charles Myers;.ny age, thxrty -eight years; I am a farmer, and reside on
St Helena Island.

Q. Were you present and did you voto at the wa Congresewn&! electmn on 8t.
Helena Island 2—A. I was present and voted,

Q. Yor whom did you vote ?—A. For Robert Smalls, ' o

Q. What was tho character of that elcction ; quict and peaceable, or othermse 1—
A. It was quiet and peaceable,

Q. State who, if any one, offered you money on that day.—A. No, sir ; no one offered
e any mouney on that (l{w, sir.

Q. 1t hay been sworn to in this cause that Jumes M, C‘mtut attended that poll and
offered you. money, and’ others money. in your presence; is that true ¥—A. - No, sir; I
had dono voted when he comie over ther ¢, and. I bad no talk with him, aml I never
heard him ofter anybody any money ; that’s all I know about that.

BQ Do .yon Imlong to: 'my church over thm‘e 7—A. I belong to the Ebene&ur Church
(Ba )t)xst) :
¢ Q1 Has any one be«n oxpe ]}vd from that church in comequenoe of hisbeing a.Dem-
ocrat I—A, No;sir,

Q. Hus thero been any threats, violence, or abuse durmg thc campangn or electmu
to provent any man voting as he chose '—A. No, sir.

James M. Crofut (the briber) swears, at page 332, as. follows :

Q. State your name, age, occeupation, and umdcn(-(, 1—A. My name is Jas. M.
Crofut; my ago, {ifty- four yearsy my occupation is-real-estaté hroker, :md I reside
in the town of Beaufort, Seuth Carolin.

- Q. How long have you lived in Beantort 2—A. Over 20 ycars. :

Q: Were you present at the polls on-$t. Helena at last election 1—-A. I was. -

Q. What was the character of that election—quict and peaceable, or otherwise ; 1
mean at the Federal poll1—A, 1t was quiet and peaceable.

Q. Did you offer ono Charles Myers, in particular, or any other person or, persons,
sither money or any other consideration to vote for’ General Qm.dls for Cungmsg or
to vote tho Republican ticket 1A, I did not.

Q. Did you take voters off from the poll into some small mth near. by and pay
them money or other consideration to vote as you wished, then carry them to the
Federal poll and see that they voted as they had agreed to ?—-A I did not, inany
way; shape, manner, or form, whatever,

Q. Did you keep a freo stand, where coffee and uamlalus wore furmshul to thnsc
X'luf \iotled the Republican twket, and refuse them who voted the Dunoumtm bwkct e
did not,

Q. Did you treat dny one at mthm of the ntamlﬁ ‘wround the polls on thab day, and
if 8o, was 1t done on account of his politics ?»«A Ldid not treat ‘myhudy on that dn)
or authorize any person to.do it, :

Q. Did yougo to the polls that day with your puckv(s filled with mone y 80 a8 10 hu
m)tlwablo by outsiders; return home with them that: evumw with them flat and
erapty —A. T did not. "L left Beuautort with five doHars inmy pr)(aket which 1 took
from my book-keeper in the morning, and I returned home with something over a
dollar in my pockeétin the ovemu«, dnd 1 paul @«50 fox transpormtmn to the pull and
one dollar to retarn, :

Green’s fourth sfatunmnr is thmt (/roint cre 1ted such a dlsburbmwe
within three feet of the polls that Mr. Fripp, the Democratic manager,
had to come out and request silence, when the Republicans cursed him,
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using langudgc too foul for prmt, aud Fripp. was obhged to go in and
vlnw the poll for a half hour,

M. E.-W. Eripp, Democratic manager (pp. 6>(>-629) Gabriel Ed-
dings, Republican manager (p. 443); ; Ransom Ward, I)emm,mtlu super-
visor (p. 296); John Major, president of the ])vmou‘ wtic club (p. 296),
and many other wltnc&,ses smmp tho lie upon Chance (xreen’s fourbh
statement,

We quote John Major’s tostlmony (p. 296):

. State your age, nae, residence, and oceupation, and where you were on, No-
vember last.—A. John M.qor, 32 yeams' Tripp’s Pt., St. Helena; amafarmer I was
hiéve, voting at the Congreassional poll,

(. Was there or not any disturbance, riot, or not(ms conduet, or any intimida-
tion of vole rs,-as far as you saw, that day ?-——A No, sir,

Q How long did youremain at tho polls3—A. Till about half-past five, sir,

. Whaut were yon doing most of the day ¥—A. I issue out tickets, sir.
. Whose tickets --=A. Col. Elliott’s.

(g Were or were you not a membor of the Democratic club, and wom or were you

not dn ofticer of said elub $—A. I was the president of the club. :

Cross-examined by Mr, VERDIER:

Q. Wasn't there a good deal of threatening against Democrats by hepubhoans be-
tmn the d,w of election on St. Holena Ia]aml ?—A. No, 8ir; not in my presence.

Chance (len’s fifth statement is that one Frank Jenkins had ob-
tained from hnn (Green) the Democratic ticket, and was proceedmg to
vote it when Oyrus Jenkins interfered, tore the ticket from his hand,
and Frank Jenking was forced by threabs to go home wwhout votmg

I\mnk Jenkins testifies as follows at pages 437, 438:

Q. Give your nanme, age, and residence.—A. Frank Jeukms born in 1858 February
1hth; xmui’m at Oliver Fripp's, St. Helena,

Q: Did you ornot Ko to the Federal poll, held at the office of Dr. Peters, on 8t.
Ih]!iun.x Island, on the 2d of November last;?-—A I was out in the road; not at the
Y]

: €. State what time,—A, T got here about 2.0 ‘clock in the afternoon.

Q. Were yorr ernot at Dr. Deters' oflieo e arly in the morning, or near there at that
time '—A, Noj I was not. I had no special cause for being there any sooner.

(. Do you know Chance Green1—A. Yes; Iknow Chance Green. :

Qo Did you or not meet him at any time in the merning on the 24 of November last,
the day of election !—A. Noj I never met him in the morning, but I met him in the
eye illll"

Q. Did Chance Groen give you an eclection ticket in the morningof that day or
not t—A. No; he did not.. I had no usoe for a ticket, for I had no register paper.

Q. Chunce Green has stated in his evidenco in this investigation that he met you
and ather ‘men, and that vou asked him for an Elliott twket, and that he gave you
one. Is that true or falss #—A, No.

(. T do_not think that you understand the queﬂtxon. My questxon m, is it true or
false 7-- A, 1t is false,

(). Did you or not atterpt to vote that day ?-A No; I did notintend to vote that
di n. I had uo register ticket, and I could not vote without one.

Q. Were you threatened or abused by anyone on that day ?—A. No no more than

‘the hoys met togoether and fun and joke cachi other.

Q- Did ov did not alarge erowd follow you to the poll where. yon intended to
zut}( 1AL I\u, [ did not attempt to go to the poll to vote, for I had no register
ket

Q 1);«1 or did not any one elso puli or push you from the platform in frout of Dr.
Peters oftice, where tho poll was lield T—AL z\u, I-was not ‘near Dr. Potﬁm’ ol‘hco, I
didnot cross the side of the ditch. : ,

Q. "Then you were not on the platform, were you ?-——A No, I was not.

(2 Do youtnew Cyrus Jonking?—A. Yes,

Q. Did ho or did-he ot pull you from the phtfurm and- tear a txcket that you ha-d
i your lind 2==A, e never palled me from the platform; I picked up a torn ticket ;
i not look at it to see 17 it was for Elliott or Smalls, and afterwards lie took it
fron me, aud said that I could not read ;- [ paid no attention to him, becatse I knew.
that: \ms the way he was always immmg with me from a little hoy. ,

Q. Did he or not say anything to yon about voting ¥~—A, No; he was talking to

H. Rep. 1—7



80 SMALLS VS. ELLIOTT.

th(;\ hoys about voting, but I had nothing whatever to say, because I had no register
ticket, .

Q. Did he or not gay to you, “ You think we are funning, but we don’t intend to
let you vote?’—A. No, he never made any such expression to me,

Q. Did Sharper Rivers haveo anything to say to you about voting a Dewmocrat
ticket I—A. To my remembrance 1 never saw Sharper Rivers that day,

Q. Did you get any other ticket after the piece you deseribe was taken by Cyrus
JenkingT—A. No, '

Q. Were you not afraid to stay at the poll for fear of being bLeaten 7—A. T was not
afraid; I did not come there with the intention to vote, but only to be with the boys;
I never heard such an expression used as heating anybody. -

Q. Chance Green has testified that you got a Democratic ticket from him, and that
you went to the poll, and that Cyrus Jenkins asked you what you was going to do
with the ticket, and that you said that you were going to vote it, and that Cyrus
Jenkins said not to-day, we don't intend to let Democrats voto to-day. Is that true
or false ?—A., Noj it is notso; it is false.

Q. Did Chance Green give you an election ticket in the morning; Rivers at the
same time said, No, don’t let’ him vote. Is that true I—A. I uever saw Sharper Riv.
era that day, Tt iy false,

Q. Chance Green, in this investigation, has sworn that after Cyrus Jenking had
taken the ticket which he gave you from you, that you went to him and got another
Elliott ticket and went to vote it.  Is that true or false ¥—A, [t is false.

Cyrus Jenkins testifies as follows (R., p. 323):

Q. What is your age, oceupation, and where do you reside ?—A. 1 am forty-two
vears old; am a farmer, and reside on St. Helena Island, Beaufort County,

Q. Were you at the Federal poll at the election held on 24 November last 1—A.,
Yes, sir, ,

Q. From what hour until what hour were you at the poll ¥—A, Frem nine o’clock
until the vote was counted, but I had been to the other poll at the church,

Q. What was the character of that election; guiet and peaceable or otherwise $—A.
Yes; it was very pegecable, sir, : .

Q. Was there any violence or threats made or abuse indulged in to prevent colored
men from voting for William Eliott if they chose I—A. No, sir. :

- Q. You were charged, on the testimony of March Washington, Chance Green, and
others who have testificd in this eause, with using threatening and abusive language
and-tearing up a_Democeratic ticket of W, 'I', Pritchard, Is it true or not?—A, No,
siry Inever saw Pritchard on the day of election.

Q. You were also charged by the same parties with abuse of and tearing up the
ticket of I'rank Jenking, — Is that true?—A. No, sir; it is not.

Q. Did you also use any threats or abuse at any timo against colored Demoerats
or do you know of any being used by any onoe else, eithor on the day of election or any
other time before or after the clection; and if so, what was it that was said, and by
whom was it said:?-—A, No, sir; I nover did.

lQ. How long have you lived on St Helena ¥—A, All my life; I've lived nowhere
Cise,

Q. Then you have no delicacy or hesitation whatever in swearing that the late
olosction wan absolntely peaceable and quict, so far as the poll on 8t. Helena preciuct
is concernedt—A. Yes, gir; I have no hesitaney in so swearing. :

Cross-examination by Mr, Verniwr:

Q. Whon on the day of election did you go to the State poll at Brick Church {—A.
About ten o'clock, 1 didn’t stay at that poll after T done vote very long. ‘

Q. How long did you stay at tho State pollt—A. I staid at State poll till about
threo o’clock in the evening before I turn buack. : :

- Green's fifth statement is thus fully disposed of. ,

His sixth statement, as to Crofut’s confession of bribery, is already
shown to be false by Crofut, quoted above. It is false on its face, be:
cause, even if Crofut had been engaged in wholesale bribery, it i8
wholly improbable that he would take an ignorant, blatant political
enemy into his confidence, and tell him all about it, -

Greew’s seventh statement, as to Gantt’s going to demand a Republi-
can constable and causing the polls to close, is shown to be false by the
evidence of the Democratic manager, Mr. Fripp (p. 626), who swears that
when he complained of the noise Gantt took the erowd away, and thus
aided in restoring quict, 1t is also shown to be false by Eddings, an-
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othier manager (p. 443), who swears that Gautt; helped to restore quxet
by Major, already quoted above, and by & dozen other thnesses, nof
necessary to cite.

Green's eighth smtement. as to Gantt’s interference \vlth River: S, is
disposed of by Gantt (pp. 291-293) and by the witnesses cited above, and

even by Rivers himself, one of the plancts of this mendacious sy a,t,em of
which Chance Green is {the sun and center, and who fails to cor roborate
Green’s account of Gantt’s interference with Rivers,

‘Green’s ninth statement is, that, being Republican precinct (,lmn'nmn.
he was charged with being a Democrat, and hearing threats against
-all Democrats he went boldly over to the Democracv to show them
he could do as he pleased. But before he boldly avowed his change
of heart he called a Republican meeting, and Bampfield, Whecler, and
Sheppard threatened to run all Democrats off the island. These threats,
coutrary to contestee’s theory, strengthened Chance (:rmn’s rusolumun
to change to the Democracy. _

‘e then heard Smalls and ¢ Red- Hot Joe ? Robinson thrmtun soual
‘and religious ostracism and exile from family and home even at the
muzzles of guns, and narrates a lot of inconglomerate stuff, part hear-
say and part purporting to be his own experience, the nmst; thrilling of
which is that he (witness) and March Washington were hunted by armed
men, some of whom came to his (Green’s) door and asked for Lim, and
lay in the woods all night, w(utmg for him to klII him, and all b(,cuube{
of his Democracy. e

e swears that many men could not vote for Lllmt,t becmtse of tln‘wts,
m:d thot & g“eat many Iay AbOllt the poihs waiting ior the thrcats to
cease,

Tt is tedious to fol!mv thm thnebs further. Ibnoufrh to say he is
ﬂdtl) contradicted in nearly every statement he has made by every offi-
comt the election of both parties, by the colored aupporters of contestee,

by Major (p. 436), by Jenkins: {p. 437), by Brown (p. 439), by Holmes (p.
142), by Adam Small (p. 443), by Philip Brown (p. 447), by Hazel (p-
115,, by Grant (p. 449), by Ranson Ward (p. 296), and by more than
twenty other witnesses, aud, finally, by himself, as witness the fo!luw-
ing extracts from his cross. examnmtlon (p ”90)

Q You say when you got to the poll there wers twmnby men stan dm;., thom who
askediyon for tickets, " Give me tho natesof those men,—A, I don’t know the naues
of those men, I don't koep books for fhem. A man goes. fo issue twkets; can he re-
metnber the names of all lie issues to?

(. Give me the names of any of them. —A. 1 g:we txckt ts; s far as' b CalLT mnmnher,
to Daniel 1 Poreher, K. C. CImplm, Frank Joukms, and svvemi more; others I can’t-
,wmmnbm their names. " -

Q.- How many Democratic txckots did: yon say you mauml otk ﬂmt day ?-—«-A I thmk
I issued: about- 400 tickots, niore or less,
Q. How neh less do you think, or how much miore 1—A. I think it was more,’ for

the Democrat men there that wml’wd txckut, I t}unk 400 was tlm last m'wuut I had,
oy ook, (p, 590.) '

 Bwears he kept no l)ook and next 1mge t,hm, he md kecp a book of
vtlw names of thoae to whmn he issued tickets.  Again (p. 591):

Qo T you had no cunvemsctmu wnh thee,u t,wmny mnn th.u wn spnke M !'»—-A
Fdid have conversation with them,
Q. How long did that conversation lant, ?«—»A ‘Abont nw umnm-s 'uull wvutaway
-frnm them up the read to: is8ue somo-more tiekets to other men. A
“ Q. Did you see these men .;;,mu z\Hm you: !oi& them 1. A‘ l dul '
eine. hack from up the road,. ‘ ;
CQu How many times did yml SN) thwn ag:sm w—a\. »‘*OHH‘ W
some went home, -
Q. Did. you haveany furtlmr Luuw&rmtmu \\’tth them —A. It u!

H. Rep. 3536——
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Q. Having seen them in the moruing, sud secing come of them most all-day; and
having had several conversations with them, how is it now that you can’t remember
their nwnes?—A, I seen them in the morving and some of them on their way back
home, and siid they conld not vote, the threats of the Republicans were too great.

Question repeated.—A. I ean’t romember, }

“Queastion again repeated —A, They aro strangers to mo; they were Democrat men,

- Q. Givo me the names of the six men you claim pulled Jonas Howard from the plat-
form of the polls,—A. There was a crowd, and I did not know who was it done it,
i:n](ll he was too scared to tell, for 1 asked him, and he said those Republican men most

ill me.

Q. Did you geo it done?-~A, Traw when they jerked-h'm down in the crowd, bt
could not see who done it, I had to Jook out for myself then.

Q. Give mo the names of any of that crowd.~A. 1 tell you I do not know the
names ;3 he himself conld not tell who done it.  He got scared and ran howe,

Q. Was this crowd also composed of strangers 7— A, Tho way they wero mixed up,
if my brother had been there I conldn’t know him. I had (o look-out for miyself.

Q. Whut do you mean by loking out for yourself 7—A. To watch and _see if any
one was going to hit wme; the threats and tho cursing that was made by Republican
menand women, :

Q.. You say you were watching the women and men to see. if they were guiug to
striko you.  How is it that you can not remember any of them ?—A. If there s a
crowd in one place all talking and hallooing, how can I fell who is iv?

Quéstion repeated.~—A. I can’t remember them, because they wero in w erowd mak-

ing their threats,
- Q. Then the only reason you can assign for not knowing any of-this crowd of men
and women is tliat they werve threatening and talking 7-—A. They were threatening
and-pulling this poor man, Jonas Howard, off the platform. If I must tell you the
truth about the whole thing now about ine, 1 was actually seared of the crowd;
was afraid I would get Killed before I got home; just talked with them so and heay
what they say. Every one of the Republican officers know if -a Democrat man goces
to the poll there with g Democrat ticket  in his hand lie stands a poor chanee of his
lifo; hoemay got killed any minute, ; :

Q. Then that is the only reason you can assign for not knowing the names of any
of these people I—A. That is the only reason, ’eanse T was too scared. ; '

Q. What time of the moerning was that 7--A. 1t was about five o’clock when Jonas
Howard polled hisvote, - ' - . ‘

Q: Doyouwnean in the morning or eveusing 7--A, 1t was about in the evening when
the poorman polied his vote.

Qi Avo you sure it was in thoevening ¥—A. Yes, sir. L

Q. Did ho voto at all that day ?~A. I can not tell whether ho did or not j I gave
him another ticket 5 he was too scared 5 I think after that pullivg about he must have
gone hiome, -

Txamination-in-chief (p. 584), Green swears that he arrived at the
polls at 7 oclock a. m.; that he gave tickets to {wenty men who wanted
to vote the Democratic ticket ¢ quick” and get home, for fear of their
lives, and that Jonas Howard was the first man who started to vote,
The extract from his cross-examination, above quoted, makes him swear
that it way 5 o’clock in the evening when “the poor man (Howard)
polled his vote ;” and then he swears that he don’t kuow whether How-
ard voted at all or not, and after consideration thinks that Jonas How-
ard was ¢ too scared” and “ must have goune home,” R
~ The testimony of Chance Green has been closely followed, analyzed,
and its utter falsehood established, only because it was the best type
of its class as adduced in this record. - S ;
- The plea of intimidation is overthrown, Torty-five voters, of whom
perhaps 17 were white, voted for contestee at Brick Cliareh, He re-
ceived, therefore, 28 colored votes, Colored men openly issued his
tickets and voted for him, not only at this, but other polls in the dis
Arict.  And vet not one has been killed. = Not one has been assaunited.
Not one has been turned ont of the chureh, Not one has been descrted
by his wife.  Not one has been socially ostracized.  Not one has heen
molested or boycotted in his business and profession. .

Bat we had forgotten——one man was turned out of the church fov his
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Gpolitical opinions.” Let lnm tell hisg oWn storv The wmxess 1s Abra"
lmm Weston, and his testimony is found at pages 793-4.

- Q. Does not a colored man visk a greut deal by votmg the Demoeratic tic kol ‘F-—A
Yes, sir. - They turn men-out of the churehes ahd societicy for voting the Democratio
ticket, T know a pmavhar whio in 1884 war turn away from his chureh hecsuse he
voted tlw Democratio ticket, I inyself wastorned out bocanse 1T ovoted the Demo-
eratic ticket. T know that some ot (mtpmphs voted the ticket aud thiere woilld have
seen bloodshed in the ehurch on_aceonut nf \utmg wxih Hm Demoerats if the }aw
~ad not interfered.. s . ;

Cross-examined’

Q. How long have you heen a Denioerat ?-~A. Hmvn I Wil t,wonty one vmm uld 1§
\nH he thnty-sevon in June.

- Q.. How long havo you helonged to ihv chareh 2==A. &mm' I was sixteen yoars oll.
Q. How did ztlmppml that it you were a l)mnocmt, that you were not turned out
of the chreh before 18347—A, Because I took part in proteeting the preacher who
voted the Democratie. ticket, They had nut nom! that 1 vntvd the’ imnmumt,m
ticket until I took up for the preacher.

Q. Was there not more interest taken in electieny ]umr to 1881 thun at that- tuuo
or since {—A, It did not reach our church until 1t NE )

Q. Heow many mlm‘od !)emoemm \uu'ﬂmrv in wm o!mwh prior to 1884 ?MA '
About nine, :

(3. Wius there m\ mfm(mms or pmscnptum ;n'mr {o 188# A. Thero was tsxlk ﬂf
it, but it got to its height in 1884,
: (i Have colored people taken niuch interest in tlu' Tast tw, (~l“Nm|m 1AL No, mr,
nnr muehi .

. Do they have a fair show in polm(-s in an’ precinet; LA, Yes, sir, . B
B S QL le“ they have any. rvpmﬂwmtmn on the board of m.umgers ?—-—A NG, mr, rm
nepubiic (1R B : .

U Wonld thoy hke to be t‘epr«*mnted 1—A. I dt) lmt. know‘ o

Q Are-there not severai eolored men in that precinet sufﬂclently mtolhgonb to :u-t.
as managers 1—A. No, sir; not any. ‘

Q. What were yuu tunwd oat 0. t"m ch the ﬁmt tnne for T-~A T was ?urm'(l out
about wonen,

Closely. and patr*ut;v we have foilowed thl\} x‘ecurd aml we solemnly
iwt we that the unly casualtios that occurred in the Seventh Loxxgrea-
sional distriet on account of political opinion were as follows: . - ;
(D) A crowd of boys and women chased three men at Beaufort the
evening of the day of a political demonstration, and one man: wa&
slig htls injured by a piece of brick with which he was struck. -
©{2) A colored man was lightly tapped with a switch by a woumu. :
.”,( ) A dog was shob-mpposed on account of the political opinions of
oW HePr,
) A mule was. shun——supposul for sa mu reflson ; both zshnntmge b\r
unknown parties.

(5 Abraham Weston was turned ont ot t}w Mmrch, but it IS no!;'
clear whether for women or polities, :
(6 The wives of Abram Scott and Roland Wlute, two (olorod l)emo
erats, deserted them for two. or three week, White: tells, page 613, 3
how the family pe:we was. brokmn and how zt wa& retumm! We msm t,”
;“ part of his te stimony ;- SR D S

Q. Do you know or hot wheﬂmr Abmm S(‘()ﬁ’ﬁ wnfo M‘t ium on acémmfy nt‘ lua vm‘- :
ing the Demoeratio ticket 3—A. Yes, pir; she left him, and 1 had to go to hermother's.
lonse to conx her back to her place; then she told me that she aint coming back as
long s her husband VOLes & ]}mnmr.\t tickot ;- she was ull the time q:mrrvlmg thh -
!wr !Hl%h atily she has Just made: up her mmd to come ]mme . o

e um-examnmtim; hy Mr; Wi{ﬁ'??n i .

Q hm say that-your wife loft you bac.mse y(m are a])nmoomt?ni\ Yu; Airlo

~Q: Whei did shaleave you and how long did she stay 1—A, She staved :sway from
mo abinit @ weeks ; sho left directly afterwe voted, the very next day. ‘

Q: Did on vum the Demoeratic tickeat, and, if-86, how didishie l\m)w it ?«-«A, Yms* >
‘She knew it hecanse some Republicans went !mm(s anttold her that night. .

-
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~ Q. You gay that Abram Scott’s wife Ieft him also ; when did she leave, and how long
did she stay !—A. She stayed off about 3 weeks she left him about 2 weeks after we
voted,

Q. Your wife has left you- before, haau’t she ;-—-—A. No, never left e before this
time,

Q. From the time that she left you till the time tlmb she mcurnad did you ever go
to see her 1--A. No, sir,

Q. How long after vou sent ‘Abram Scott to persnade her to come hack was it be-
foreshe cane 7—A, It wius a week and a half beforo she came, :

Q. You also went and brought Abram Scott’s wife baek, didwt you +—A, Yes, 'sir;
I went and coaxed herto come back home,

The above is sample stuff of this plea of intimidation.

We might, were it useful or profitable, go on and analyze the test}«
mony of the other witnesses, nome white, some colored, who swear falsely
to bolster up this plea of intimidation. Rach and every wituess who
80 8wears is either contradicted directly or by himself. Most of these
witnesses cited by the majority, as Sautelle, Lawrence, and others, who
swear to intimidation so glibly and generally, when asked upon cross:
examination for names, dato. and pm‘ticulms, are unable to gi\'eﬂmn.

Buat we forbear,

We ask only that the tostnnonv be cxmmned and the law unnphmi
with,  With that we will be content.  Partisanzeal and intolerance mn: vy
condone and affirm the monstrous wrong done by the election anthoritics
of the Seventh Sonth Carolina distriet and retain contestee in the seat
to which he was never elected, but the fact will still remain that he oc-
cupies that seat by means of h‘ wid and erime and perjury. ’L‘lm rovmd
will not down,  The facts arve facts forever,

The minority recommend the adoption of the f()llowmg as o suhsn
tute for the 1‘%01!11&10]1 offered by the majority : :

Resolved, That, Wll inm Elliott was not elected and is not (‘nmlm! to a seatin the,
Fiftieth Congress from the Seventh South Carolinn distriet,

Resolved, That Rolert Smalls was elected and is entitled to a Hi‘:l.f in Hm l*mwm
Congress hmu the Seventh South Carolina district,

J. H. ROWELL,
L. C. Houxk.
‘W, C. Coorer..
J. LYMAN.

J. T. JOUNSTON.
H. C. LopGgr.



